AWM

A13 1710312622 #255
COMPANIES HOUSE

THURSDAY




Vision

Impactful digital
transformation, responsibly
delivered, at scale.

Revenue Public Services Revenue Gross Proht

+62%  +82%
wE£Dl.IM ©£36.5M ©£16.Im

(FY2020: £31.5m) (FY2020: £20.1m) (FY2020: £12.0m)

Adjusted EBITDA Cash Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share?

4+ 87% 106% ... #69%
to £7.]m £5 7m bank to 6 ]p

{Fy2020: £3.83m} (FY2020: 3.8p)

Adjusted EBITDA Margm tC02e per Eim Revenue Hours Donated

217% ¥23% 4+ 83%
to ]4% 37 32 tCO2e to ] 654

(FY2020:12%) (FY2020 48.61tCO2e) {(Fv2020: 204)
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Fwant to acknowledge and thank our tear rmembers,
whaose talent, dedication and support are at the heart of
everything we achieve. The Panoply was founded with o
commitment to doing business with purpose and making
a difference to the communities in which we operate.

During the pandemic this sense of purpese has been
strengthened as we completed numerous projects
supporting critical aspects of the coronavirus response.
We are incredibly proud to have delvered a range of
services to support UK citizens during the pandemic,
including work with NHSX, Department for Business, Energy
and Industrial Strategy (BFIS), NHS Blood and Transplant
and Camden Council.

Alongside our support for clients during the pandemic,
we have placed a strong focus on assisting cur team
members. We acknowledged the need to support
everyone with their own individual circumstances, putting
our people first in these difficult times.

We also worked hard to become a more diverse and
inclusive organisation, making progress in closing

72% of the 18 key gaps we have identified across pay,
representation and inclusion scores. We have invested
heavily in properly understanding our environmental
impact, partnering with Emitwise to measure maore of our
supply chain that ever before, helging us to get closer to
aur goal of neutralising the historic emissions of the whole
business, We continue te contribute to the communities
inwhich we live and work. Through our 1% pledge we have
been able to deliver our third Future Leaders incubater
programme, supporting underepresented digital
entrepreneurs.

Qur agile, user-centred way of working is perfectly suited
to delivering value in o new way for large organisations
serving the public These institutions have traditionally
been constrained by legacy technology and processes
that - clthough designed to mitigate risk - actually
increase the chances of failure.

Through the combination of cloud technologics,
empowered agile teams and a focus on the user,

we deliver significantly more impact than traditional
approaches to transformation. It's now possible to deliver
maere impact through better outcomes. We have seen the
benefit of fantastic services delivered at speed during the
pandemic: with the right approach we believe this can
become the norm for the public secter as awhole.

As the world around us changss, we must also evolve
and adapt, honing and growing our skills to respond to
aur clients’ changing needs. Our acguisition moedel is key
to this approach, and this yvear we welcomed healthcare
transformation specialists Difrent and managed services

cormnpany Keep IT Simple Ltd (KITS) to The Panopiy. In just
three years we have grown from three people to circa
500 employaes and 200 contractors, a huge jump
from when we started out. Now is the time to make
sure we build upon our success to date and realise the
opportunitizs ahead. This report explains cur ambiticus
new goals for 2025 and the changes we're making to
enable us to cchieve these goals. These changes will
set us up well to become an accredited B Corporation
2y 2023, taking our place within ¢ global moverment of
businesses as a force for good.

Qur financial performance underpins our commitment to
doing business with purpose. Our revenue increased by
62% this year; adjusted EBITDA, as a measure of our overall
financial performance, increased by B7%; and we saw
impressive adjusted diluted earnings per share of &1p. Cur
continued growth and success demonstrates the unique
combination of talent, operating model and purpose

that we have assembled at The Panoply. We deliver
meaningful work that makes @ real difference to our
clients, with our high-performing, agile teams upskilling
and sharing knowledge every step of the way. This is what
enables us to provide value to arganisations seeking
genuine benefits from digital transformation, securing
success both now and in the future

While we've seen strong organic growth from winning
and delivering interesting wark collaboratively across
companics in The Panoply, our recent strategic review has
also highlighted that our previous brand strategy and the
structurgl legacies of many rapid ccguisitions threaten to
hold us back in the future,

That is why now is the right time to take a bold step to build
upon our successes to date and achieve more.

AllUK companios within The Panoply arc co-creating

a new, single organisation. Under one new brand, we'll
market, sell and deliver together, enabling us to radically
improve cutcomas for citizens and communities at scale.

We know we can deliver impact effoctively and officiently.

Now, we need to organise ourselves in a way that supports
us to daliver at scals.

This work is now well underway with a multi-workstream
programme in place. We expect 1o introduce our new
brand for the first time in Auturnn 2021, with dll existing
brands fully retired and organisational integration
completed by April 2022.

Thank you for your continuing suppert

Neal Gandhi A/‘
12 August 2021 reaimer i
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Playing Cur Part

Dunng o Covid=i8 panaoimic

, urw"u oy 2020 wos o

this vital supsoort

In February 2020, as part of our risk identification and
management process, we agreed on a set of values-led
principles that have guided our decision making during
the pandemic. They were:

3 To do all we can to retain our talented
workforce so that post-crisis we areina
strong position to take advantage of the
economic and social recoveary;

H
i
]

To favour the health of our employees over
any client pressure to work on site. To close
offices when we felt the risk ta employees was
too great to continue to ask them to come in;

.
h

|"M
e

To ask employees whose roles became
temporarily under utilised to volunteer in their

T r'm'ca! fi"Dl‘ﬂ e dore vihie

thar cnd their nr.niae

We believed thot these steps were in the interests of the
wider community, giving much-needed government
support to those companies that were and are facing
significant hardship.

Having identified the business risk early and putting the
welfare of our teams first, in the first week of March 2020
we instigated work-from-horme plans two weeks ahead
of UK government instructions. Being a cloud-native
company, the transition was straightforward and we saw
no loss in productivity during that time Staff utilisation
remained stable at approximately 70%.

We are also proud te have assisted in the Covid-18
emergency effort directly. Our work included:

- Rapid delivery of Covid-19 home test ordering service
for NHSX

+  Building o personal pratective equipment ("PPE"} stock
level dashboard for North East London NHS Trust

cormmunities to assist in the crisis whilst on full ‘ . )
pay and not to make these team members «  Developing a system to bring companies together to
redundant; manufacture ventilators
- +  Creating systems and processes for Camden Councit
"i To learn from the 2008/9 financial crisis and to ensure shielding residents received the assistance
i ensure we remained commercially free by they needed
not taking any government funds, snabling +  Suppaorting the Competition and Markets Authority
us to make our own decisions beyond the . - .
pandernic. via the Department for Bu siness, Energy & Imdlu stricil
Strategy to create o system which cliows businesses
1o be held to account for unfair behaviour during
the crisis.
The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply ¥/ Company number: 10533096
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In detail: Delivering the UK's
COVID-19 home testing service

The!

At the start of the pandemic 40% of frontline staff in
NHS crganisations ware In Isolation with uncontirmed
Covid-19 symptorms. NHSX challenged us to dellver a
hormo teat oroaerng servios inoradibly qulckly — from
scratch. The aim wos to ensure the safety of key
waorkers and encble those inisclation to return 1o waork
faster following negative Covid-19 test results.

situaiion

Our delivery team was deployed into a complex multi-
Jepurbngnl und snult=vendur gffonl i deliver Covid=12
support services.

We worked quickly ond within a doy, we set the
project’s goals and KPIs, identlfled who was Involved
In the averall programmme and thelr rolefskll sets,
and deslgned sha-to-end user [ourneys dnd service
tlueprints.

We led a multi-disciplinary, multi=vendor team to take
the idea from infancy to implermentation and deliverad
home testing kits for NHS organisations and key workers
I seven aays.

We conducted diary studies, documenting Londoen
Ambulance Service Staff to understand the end-to-end
experience for staff.

We implemented service analytics, collecting service
performance and user behaviour data, and iterated
Lhe service using quantitative and gualilalive data
sources such as surveys, user testing, service data and
contact centre logs.

We also set up a dedicated Assisted Digital contact
centre, supporting users with accessibility needs. The
service successfully launched around a month fater
for key workers, accepting orders from the wider public
two weaeks after launch.

1| SINNGDOVY 8 LHOdIN TYNNNY 1Z0T




PUBLIC SECTOR SOFTWARE AND IT SERVICES
BY ZCTIVITY®

Operations £6.1bn
£2.6bn Softwdre £2.6bn
£6.1bn £2.6bn M

Consulting £0.7bn

i the time o

~..30
LETTE

The Pancply was created to do things differently. We are
driven by our values, and the belief that business can do
better — for people and for the planet. Our organisational
maodel is a direct challenge to those of large, traditional
consultancics, whose ways of working have remained
largely unchanged and are unsuited to providing value
in the digital-first era.

The UK's large institutions — across bath public and private
sectors — continue to struggle with significant technical
debt, legacy IT systems and outdated ways of working that
limit their potential to change. The Panoply helps these
organisations to tackle their present challenges, building
rasilience and adapting to changing circumstancas in

the future.

Perfectly pluced o respond

In a year that saw significant disruption frormn Covid-19,
our flexible operating model, our trusted, multidisciplinary
teams of experts, and cur commitment 1o making a
difference meant we were perfectly placed to take on

the challenge. As organisations sought to adapt their
operations for remolte waork, or launched new products
and services in response to a radically different world,

we had the tools to help.

Tha Software and IT Services (SITS) market is worth

an estimated £51 8bn in the UK, with the public sector
comprising £12.1bn of this total. With 75% of our operations
in the public sector we were weli placed to seize the
apportunities of the markst as institutions responded
with increased spending to the pandemic.

the panoply//

HERITAGE VE NEW 50

Heritage £8.4bn

£8.4bn £3.7bn

New £3.7bn

The need to kesp services running for citizens during
the pandemic - and the catalyst this has provided for
digital transformation moving forward - has preduced
a significant market for SITS companies operating in the
public sector.

The Compound Annugl Growth Rate (CAGR) for the public
sector SITS market is 1.3% from 2019-2023", of which in 2020
New solutions (Which The Pancply operates in) make up
37%, with Haritage at 62% By 2023 New is set to overtake
Heritage, accounting for B1% of the market.

Health - as a subsector of public sector SITS - is forecast
to see particularly strong growth from 2018-2023 with a
CAGR of 3.8%" Our acquisition of healthcare digital service
delivery specialists Difrent in Septemnber 2020 enables us
to take full advantage of this activity, and a market worth
£312m more in 2023 than in 2019. Central government

is another subsector projected to expand, with a CAGR

of 1.3%, and a market worth £284m more in 2023 than
in2018"

The UK IT operations market acceunted for more than half
{52%) of the total SITS market in 2019, and by 2023 could

e worth as much as £28.2bn™ - or 56% of totol UK SITS.

In March 2021, we acquired managed services company
Keep IT Simple (KITS), whose market-leading expertise

in service integration and management will helo us

to delivar even more value to large organisations by
meeting their technology operations needs.

The Panoply Holdings Ple
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Central £4.9bn

£22bn Local £2.2bn

£1.90bn lcaitk LLYbN

£4.9bn Defence £1.8bn
£1.8hn

Education £0.7bn

Police £0.6bn

Doing businegss responsiply

Another dominant theme of the past year has been
increased awareness of the issues affecting our people,
plonet and communities. Calls for racial equality gained
momenturn with the rise of the Black Lives Matter
moavement and increasingly erratic climate events threw
the environmental crisis into sharper focus.

As an organisation founded on values of social and
environmental responsikility, we have welcomed
calls for business to be — and do — better To reflect
our commitment to putting our people, planet and
community first, we are announcing our intention to
become B Corp certified by March 2023,

We make genuine differences in the communities in which
we work and live, with over 1600 employee volunteer hours
donated this year, and 1% of all our profits given to charity.
We take complete responsibility for our impact on the
planet. We have worked with Emitwise to measure our
entire scope 1, 2 and 3 footprint which is fully offset through
Gold standard cffset projects via Ecclogi. We have dlso
partnered with Rewilding Britain to further their vital work
enhancing bicdiversity.

During the Covid-18 pandemic we have strengthened our
cormmitment to our people. As work and home lives have
converged throughout the pandemic, we have supported
our employeas with up to £1208 of childcare support in
lockdown, an employee Health and Wellbeing scheme,
and o winter fitness challenge.

We have closed the gaps in inclusion for
underreprasented employeas We have voluntarily
introduced ethnicity pay gap reporting — exceeding

the expectations of an organisation of our size — and, in
recognition of the specific challenges faced by black
communities in the workplace, decided to measure tha
inclusion of our black workforce separatsly from those of
other minority ethric groups.

We continued our bi-annual Future | eaders Prograrmme
supporting young entrepreneurs from underepresentad
backgrounds, which this year helped those struggling
due to Covid-19 and included an inclusive BBQ catering
company, a digitcl vaccine passport business, and o
career developmenit platform for black and minority
ethnic women in the cybersecurity industry.

Over the next year we will continue our model of growth
through acquisition, adding further skills and specialist
focus areas 1o the business that will enable us to meet a
broader variety of client needs. We expect the rapid pace
of our growth to continue.

I the accelerated forces of change in this pandemic
year have taught us anything, it is that our organisations
must rethink their operations, culture, and approach to
technology to survive in a digital-first era Those who are
digitally native, and who empower and trust their teams,
are positionad tc thrive.

The Panoply Heldings Plc
Company number: 10533086
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Public

Commercicl

1O 5 SUR SFCTORS

Local Government
Central Government
Health

Education

Cther public services including;
Housing and Not-for-Profits’

Multiple other Sub-Sectors

%

29%

24%

20%

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Our Model

What mcakes us different

We believe an increasingly complex world needs a new
rmodel to achieve high impoct outcomes for clients and
their employees and more valde for stakeholders.

We combine the dynamism and agility of smailer, expert
teams with the scale required to confidently address cur
clients” most pressing needs, as they navigate the rapidly
changing nature of society and business.

How we do it

3. Agility at scale

We make the complex simnple at the scale
required, with the agility that our clients deserve

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply/’ Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Commercial Vision

Achieve UK run rate revenue of £100m and
£12-£14m run rate EBITDA by March 2023

Deliver 10% to 15% organic revenue growth per
[e[alal¥lay}

Ensura around 70% of opercting profit drops
through into positive cash flow

Deliver progressive divicdend policy at 15% - 20% cf
netincome!

Add more than £35m of revenue through earnings
enhancing acquisitions

Keep leverage low at below 1 times run rate EBITDA

Commerciadl

Impact Vision

Decreasing all 18 gops identified across pay,
representation and inclusivity.

Measuring and offsetting our historic carbon
footprint entirely

Kickstarting digital careers by reaching 1000
unigue beneficiaries through cormmunity action
and community investment

Impact

1. Consensus Revenhue Forecast

reo £71.2M

2.Revenue Growth

~on £51.1M

{FY2020: £31.5m)

3. operating Profit to cash flow

FY2021 .I 0 60/0

{FY2020: 9%}

4.Dividend

FY2021 0. 6 p2

{Fy2020: nil)

5. Revenue from Acquisition

FY2021 £ 6.3 m

{Fy2020: £6.4rm)

8. Leverage®

FY2021 0.7

{ry2020:01)

PEnts. the

Frved divizler.ct ot € dpo e shone
NN GO pany stetutoy

e e not ceb? et iding Inees haeiltien o ceied vt narrokscl
LENDS tar call sbrstdtdl 5, €0 they Ieed By b the 20roup by thee sl paiond

7. Women in senior leadership

FY2021 4 0 o/o

(Fr2020: 39%)

8. Carbon intensity per £lm revenue

FY2021 37.32 TCO2E

(Fr2020: 48.81tC0C2e)

9. Careers Kickstarted
rvaon 002

(FY2020: 324}
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Our Vision for 2025

Our ambition far March 2025 is to become atop 28

UK public sector supplier, building upon our existing
momentum and track record in delivering public services.
In practice this means generating daround £150m revenue
per year from UK public sector work by this date.

The Panoply was created on the belief that businesses
could and should step up to help governments and
not-for-profits tackle the big issues that are affecting

our communities. We do that through the work that we
deliver and also how we cperate. Our impact amiitions
sit shoulder to shoulder with our commercial objectives.
We hold curselves to the highest standards of corporate
governance and are accountable to ali stakeholders, not
just our shareholders.

the panoply//

2025 on run rate basis

2 Toachieve o run rate revenue of £200m (£160m public
sector, £50m Private sector) by March 2025

3. Deliver 10-15% organic revenue growth per annum

4. Tomake further earnings enhancing ocguisitions to
rmaet this revenue goal

5. Deliver ctleast 70% of operating profit through to
positive cash flow

6 Deliver progressive dividend policy at 15%-20% of
netincome

[EEaFATSr ]
1. Halve the 23 gaps that we have identified across

representation, pay and inclusion for employees from
underrepresentsd backgrounds

2. To achigve net carbon zero status

3. Tokick-start 5,000 digital careers, reaching 5,000
unique beneficiaries through cur community action
and community investrment programmes

To deliver our 2025 vision we will accelerate our plans
around consolidation, streamlining our focus around the
customer and enabling the business to deliver a much
clearer integrated value proposition to our ¢lients.

In Septermber 2021 The Panoply will launch a single new
brand, uniting all its businesses and the holding company
under a single name for the first time. We expect to have
fully retired all existing brends by April 2022

Through this consolidation of brands and internal
functions including implementing new business-wide
finance, HR and preject management systerms, the
business will be positicned to accelerate our full service
offering to our clients, by delivering agility at scale.

This will enhance our competitive positioning as the
only madern, full service scaled digital transformation
company, covering consulting, solutions and operations.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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We are bound together by a collective desire to
radically improve the services that matter to people
and a belief that businesses can and should behave
responsibly and leave a positive legacy.

As our business evolves and grows so should the values thot drive us. As we finalise the new
brand to launch in Septemibzer 2021, we will be developing unified values and behaviours for the
integrated business.

As a people-focussed business, the four values that underpin our culture are:
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We wark together
effectively. We believe that
together we can achieve
and deliver more and
wmplify our linpact.

Agility with trust

We are dynamic, modeamn,
and agile as well as
profeasional and safe. We
bring Lhe benefits of a small
business together with the
security larger businesses
provide.

We are bold, challenging
ourselves to be better We
know we need to bring
people along on this
journey.

wWe value difference not just
in gender, ethnicity and closs
but in personality, talent and
perspective. It takes alltypes
of attributes to make a
great team.










Case Studies

continued

Supporting local
government
reorganisation

Challenge

We recently suppu led Buckingburnshing's lionisilion o
a single unitary authority, making sure they were oble
to maintain their service delivery for residents.

The conncil delivered the programma through their
internal team but recognised the need for support
and insight to improve their approach and overall
governance of the change programme.

Approuch

We started with a reviaw of tha pragramma’s initial set
up and plan, revealing areas for improvement. We then
led severd crucial projects within the programme that
included reviewing the approach to fees and charging,
rebranding for the new council, the ICT workstream
including access control and the new intranet.

We coached the council's internal team to enhance
their approach, sharing cur extensive experience in
delivering complex projects and suppotting other
unitary programmes. Qur advisery role also included
helping the programme director target areas we felt
were cause for goncern, working together to decide
upon the best solution quickly.

To make sure activity was prioritised to meet core
deliverables and milestones, we supported the internal
team to review their milestones and dependencies o
keep the workload manageable.

We developed o real-time programime assessment
model to show the impact of the slippage versus
the reality of the delivery, broken down to align the
governanee structure of the programme. We also
ran go-live readiness assessments to identify any
operational challenges which may exist on day one,
credting areas of focus for the team.

the panoply//

“This project helped establish a new Council,
providing the platform te fundamentally
transform the way public services are
delivered in Buckinghamshire. It was o real
privilege to play a part in helping the councils
todeliver their vision of asingle council to
improve outcomes now and into the future.”

Mike Dearing, Executive Dirsctor =

Transformation, The Panoply

With the council's PMO lead, we helped oversee @
successtul vesting date as all other resources were
deferrad anta Covid-18 raesponse. We then worked
with the service directors to review these outstanding
deliverables and rmake sure they were handed ovet 1o
business as usual.

Impact

Despite the enormity of the change, the new councll
successtully went live during Covid-18 with no impact
on the services residents received. The new council
can now continuea on its journay to deliver outstanding
services to its residents consistently ocross the county
of Buckinghamshire.
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Delivering Growth

Since inception The Panoply has foecused on delivering
profitable organic growth, and last year we set the targst
of driving 10% to 15% organic revenue growth per year
over the three years to 31 March 2023, with maintained or
improving margins.

We can confidently state that we are on track 1o achiaeve

this target, with FY21 organic like for like revenue growth of
18% this puts us well on track to achieve our stated target

and as such we have committed to extending this target
tc 2025.

Profitable organic growth is one of our core values: we
achieva this growth and profit as clients recognise our
value through delivery
Growth through Goguisition

Since IPO in December 2018, The Panoply has completed 12
acquisitions. During FY21 to the end of March 2021 we have
acquired 3 additional companies: Arthurly, Difrent & Keep
1T Simple {KITS).

Not only do they contribute significant revenue and EBITDA
they also provide capability and sector penetraticn.

sabilities:

MS Azure Cloud Platform Gold Partner Credentials

AWS Certifications & delivery capobilities

Run and Manage Live Critical Services

g :
Ith (Difrent)
Utilities (Arthurly)

Public Hea

Large Central Government Departments (KITS, Difrent)

Through origination cur internal M&A tearm has
- ldentified more than 200 target companies
- Made more than 170 contacts with target companies

Received 80 responses, with more than 80 being
positive

the panoply /s

- Held more than 80 introductory meetings with more
than 80 progressing to second meetings

+  Progressed to NDA & RFI stage with more than 50
target companies, several of which have resulted in
offers being madeo

Our continuing success has enabled our HSBC revolving
credit facility to be extended twice in this period from £5M
to £7M and now to £20M of which, £7m remains undrawn.

ME&A Corumercial Vision 2025
M&A will play an important role in helping to achieve our
next milestones for 2025,

The strong M&A pipeline will ensure that a number of
earnings enhancing acquisitions will be completed to
balance organic growth with ccquisitive growth, and
support the delivery of cur growth goals.

The Panoply will continue on inits efficient approach for
acquiring and integrating companies. We continue to add
additionul capability and bolster existing capabibty to our
integrated operations.

We continue to:

+  Add further capabilities covering:
- Data engineering and data science
- Artificial intelligence and machine learning
— Cybersecurity and security operations

- Microsoft stack. Azure, Power Flatform, Pover Apps,
Power Automate, and Office365 & Dynamics CRM

- Amazon Web Services
— Google Cloud Platform
— Devops and Devsecops

- Automation

+  Bolster capabilities that enhance our customer
offering in the public, health and adjacent sectors.

+  Ensure acquisitions are not seen as immediate exits
for their founders but incentivised to build long term
sustainable growth through a consideration make-up
that is majority share based.

- Ensure acquisitions are immediately earnings
enhancing

The Panoply Holdings Pic
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



strong financial fundamentals
Profitable (adjusted EBITDA)

Cash generative — 108% cdsh conversion
Milestone dividend payment in 2021
Adjusted EBITDA £71m, cash at bank of £&.7m

Access to structural gl’OWth markets

Software & IT Services market worth an estimated
£51.8bn in the UK

Public sector comprises £12.1on

CAGR for the public sectors SITS market is 1.3% from
2019-2023, projecting stable grewth for the industry
over the next few years

Health sector expectad to grow at 3.8% CAGR to
£2.2bn by 2023

Revenue is 71% public sector, across central and local
government, healthcare and education sectors

A unique, full service proposition for
clients

Cloudifagile native

Deep integrated expertise on every engagement,
collective strength

Drives ability to take market share from legacy
competitors

Focused exclusively on new technology rather than
heritoye syslerms

Increasing ahility to win larger £3m+ deals and the
accelerated move towards digital transformation
across both public and private sectors

Investing for growth

Proven capability to guickly build competitive
offerings In key areas

Prepared for the move to conversational Al and
Robotic Process Automation to solve the problems of
legacy technology

Laser focused acquisition strategy

Continuing to target strategic earnings-enhancing
acquisitions that will add to ocur capabilities or help
us further strengthen our position within the UK public
services market

In-house crigination and M&A team

Making only acaerctive acquisitions

Management and wider employee
buy-in

With significant stakes in the company and invested in
its purpose

employees engage through share Incentive Plans and
Option Schemes.
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the panoply

Alongside strang organic growth, wa've scaled the
business through targeted acquisitions. During the period,
we acquired purpose-driven digital transformation
businesses Difrent, Arthurly and Keep IT Simple. These
acquisitions have added immediate value to the
Group, significantly expanding our capakilities and
kolstering us as o key player in delivering these services
to organisations of scale. As a result, we have increased
our position in the public sector and, notably, grown

our foothold In hedlthcare, a key target market for the
business.

The pandemic prompted an unprecedented acceleration
of digital transformation during the period, but we

do not expect to see a slowdown in activity as life

returns to normal. Quite the opposite, we expect digital
transformation will only become more important in the
years ahead - as part of a future where organisations

will continually look to refresh and update their existing
capabilities in order to meet the ever-changing needs

of customers and service users.

LR nurpose

Across the business, The Panoply is driven by its sense of
purpose and core focus on delivering sustainable, positive
change for people and communities. In a year which has
seen many areas of the public secter under significant
pressure, our projects have enabled these organisations
to continue providing their necessary services to people
across the country Projects of note include working in
partnership with Camden Council to help Camden and
local public service partners match vulnerable residents
with relevant support during the Covid-19 crisis, as well as
NHS Home Testing. Environmental, social and governance
{E5G} issues are increasingly moving up the agenda and
barn proud to say our leng-standing commitment to this
field continues to be a key differentiator from many of
aur pesrs.

From Board level down, we are unified by this commitrment
to positive impact. To reflect this, The Panoply has set up

< Board-level ESG committee to ensure our ESG practices
and the quality of cur reporting continues to be of an
excellent standard. additiondaily, a further measure taken
during the year is to make our Group CEOs accountable
for ESG metrics, dedicating an equal space and weighting
in monthly board meetings to discussing progress against
non-financial KPIs.

The Panoply Heldings Plc
Cempany number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



This year we consolidated our Sustainable Futures work
into three key areas: People, Planet; and Community.

I'm extremely pleased with our performance across all
our Sustainable Futures areas and further detail on our
progress can be found in the Chief Executive’s Statement
further below.

In a year that has further brought to light the significant
inequalities and imbalances in the UK and globally,

I'm proud to see the Group has only become more
emboldened in our mission to tackle these issues
head-on.

Corporale governance

The Group's risk management is up-to-date and
approprate. The Beard continues to assess and monitor
the principal risks to the Group and remainsg cegnisant of
the ongoing impact of Covid-19 ta our end markets and
stakeholders.

This year the Board established the Environmental, Social
and Governance Committee ([5G Committee) which is
chaired by Isabel Kelly, and has the primary responsibility
to assist Executive Management in setting the Company’s
general strateqy with respect to ESG matters, and to
consider and recommend policies, practices, reporting
and disclosures that conform with the strategy.

The Panoply’s Board is commitled to operating proper
standards of good corporate governance and has
applied the principles set outin the QCA code to the
Group Post period end we have completed a Board
effectiveness review which whilst receiving positive
results provides us with areas of further focus as we
move forward.

we highly value nur shareholdars, for whom we are
ultimately seeking to deliver value which has been
achieved with purpose. As d result, we recognise the
importance of keeping all shareholders up-to-date and
engaged, and we remain committed to transparency in
all cur corperate communications.

I would like to sincerely thank all our team memibers

for their dedication and hard work throughout an
unprecedented year. It has boen an exceptionally testing
time for all, and our staff have truly gone above and
beyond to deliver exceptional work far our clients, stepping
up to the many challenges posed by the pandemic.
twould alse like to extend a warmweicome to all new
team members from Difrent, Arthurly, Keep IT Simple

and Nudge Digital.

Ouilook

While we are beginning to see the light at the end of

the tunnel for the pandemuc, the changes to working
practices are here to stay. For an increasing number of
organisations across the public and private sector, digital
transformation is no lenger an abstract term but an
essential and ongoing service. In this context, The Punoply
stands apart from its monolithic competitors as an agile
clayer that can deliver a growing range of digital projects
at great speed and with first-class technical expertise.

We continue to strengthen our offering year-on-year
through key hires and strategic acquisitions. With our
strong management team, best-in-class businesses and
a substantial market opportunity, | remain highly confident
in our ahility to fullill all our commercial objectives, in
tandern with delivering positive, sustainable change.

Mark Smith Mootk Sepsitth

Chairman EEEPE AT
12 August 2021

The Panoply Heldings Plc
Company number: 10533098
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Chief Executive's Review

Qur tearns have been resilient, determined and innovative
in their work, despite facing often-difficult working
environments and an unprecedented scale and urgency
of demand from our public sector clients at the coalface
of the crisis. In this way we have proven beyond doubt
our value proposition - that small, multi-disciplinary
teams working in an agile way, can deliver incredible
projects that solve real problems and meet real needs.
We are proud to have driven positive, sustainable change
across many public sector organisations which have, in
turn, supported those across the UK in dire need of their
services.

This year saw us grow substantially in scals, with our
headcount growing to 504 at year end (FY2020: 414). We
are proud to have not furloughed any staff and provided
full pay throughout the year We have been mindful of

the greater presence work has played in many people’s
lives in this unprecedented time and have therefore
significantly increased our activities around mental health
support and diversity and inclusion, geing above and
beyond to support our people's wellbeing.

Collaboration aeross the business hos become even
closer, with several of our brands having mergedintoa
smatller number of core, customer-facing brands. This
strategy has proven successful, allowing our teams
across the company to work together on larger and more
impactful projects which points towards further brand
consolidotion in the future as we plan to move towards a
single brand, simplifying and strengthening our offer to
customers.

the panoply//

Alongside our organic growth, we welcormed three new
companies in the period (Arthurly, Difrent and Keep IT
Simple), all of which have so far brought significant value
to The Panoply. Post-period end, we also acquired Nudge
Digital, extending our footprint in healthcare.

We are proud to have raised our financial expectations
during the year and to have now met these new
sxpectations. Sc far, we have also delivered against the
Commercial Vision set out last year, further details of
which appear below. We therefore take this opportunity
to detail additional, further-reaching ambiticns below
The Panoply has an exciting road ahead and we are
committed to moving forwards at speed to capitalise on
the opportunity.

il overyisw
We gre very proud of the cutstanding financial
performance we have achieved; itis a testament to the
dedicaticn of our teams and the power of innovative
thinking. We have delivered strong revenue growth, up

62% and adjusted EBITDA up 87%. This was driven by the
full year impact of FY2020 acquisitions and the three
acquisitions made in the year, alongside strong organic
revenue growth of 19%. The statutory koss after tax was
£2.2m (FY2020: £3.0m). The adjusted profit after tax, which
we believe enables readers to better understand the
underlying performance of the Group, as it shows the
operational performance excluding one-off non-recurnng
iterns and fair value adjustments, showed the full extent

of aur growth up 85% tc £5.0rm (FY2020; £27rm). A full
recongiliation of adjusted proht befors tax is shown in the
Financial Review section. Adjusted diluted EPS was up 69%
to61p.

Net cash generated from operations before tax and
including lease payments was £61m, delivering a cash
conversion ratio of 108%. Gver the period, the Group
continued to closely monitor and manage its costs ina
prudent fashion. As at 31 March 2021 the Group's financial
position showed retained cash reserves of appreximately
£5.7m and a net debt position excluding impact of leases
ot £7.3m (below 1x pro forma EBITDA - being the EBITDA if
all the companies ccquired in FY2021 been in the Group
for the full year) Cash generation is expected to remain
strong and the Group has a £20m revolving credit facility
in place with HSBC of which £7m was unutilised as at

31 March 2021

The Panoply Holdings Flc
Company number: 10533086
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Growih strategy

From inception, our vision has been to bring together

a panoply of companies and skills in order to provide

an entrepreneurial, full service capability, delivering
outcomes to large clients at a fraction of the cost and
time of their traditional suppliers We have also sought
to give cur companies the combined balance sheet
that enabled them to win substantially larger contracts
than they would have won had they remained small,
independent companies. With four contracts worth more
than £3m won during FY2, versus three in the entire multi
decade collective histories of the acquired companies,
this strategy has proven successful.

Whilst FY2021 has been a tremendously successful year,
with like-for-like orgaonic growth ot 19%, we believe that
we can continue to simplify our offer to clients by further
consolidating our business and embracing a single
brand, which we will execute upon during FY2022. This
new single brand will focus on our key vertical markets of
central government, local government, healthcare, not
for profits, and cernmercial sectors, and will offer those
sectors a modern, full service aliernative for their digital
transformation needs. This significant changs programme
within the Group is already underway and has the full
support of the management teams of ali current brands
within the Group. We are excited about the opportunities
for further organic growth that this next phase in our
strategy will bring as we take an integrated change,
experience and technology offer to market.

This change will see us move to a single P&L structure with
a single sales, account management and back office
structure in the UK. It will also allow us to further leverage
our Eastern European development facility in Bulgaria.

Inline with this plan, we have changed our ccquisition
model, predominantly removing earn outs in order to
facilitate faster integration and encourage better levercge
of the Group's wider resources. This new model was

used for the recently announced acquisition of Nudge
Digital on 30 June 2021. To further support our growth,

we will continue to acquire companies that either add
capabilities or additional vertical markets to The Panoply.
Future acquisitions will be on a part cash, part shares
basis 1o align management's interests with the long-term
success of the business. Those acqguisitions will come from
the UK and, over time, frorm other countries, as we scale.

As before, acquisitions will be earnings enhancing and

we will continue to focus on profitable, cash generative
companies that we believe will benefit from the scale
benefits that The Panoply brings, particularly around their
ability to win larger contracts and leverage existing case
studies.

Finally, the acquisition of Keep IT Simple, (KITS), has seen

us lounch a recurring managed services offering into
central Government, running live services. This offering
significantly increases our backeg coming into each
financial year, giving us d stronger platform for growth
than ever before. This is in addition to our existing recurring
revenues driven by our commercial sector clients.

Overall we are positioned well to drive double digit like-for-
like organic growtih alongside further acquisitive growth in
the years to come.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Chief Executive’s Review

continued

FY2021 Progress against Commercial Vision
Last year, wea laid out our six-step Commaercial Vision, which we wanted to achieve over the three years to FY2023.
Below is o summary of our performance against these goals.

the panoply//

Produce 10% to 5% organic revenue growth
per annum

¢.70% of operating profit to drop through
into positive cash flow to generate
significant cash reserves

To use this cash to set up o progressive
dividend policy for sharehalders ot
approximately 15%-20% of net income
(adjusted profit after tax}

We dim o use a mixture of positive cash
flow and our listed shares to make further
earnings enhancing acquisitions to add
more than £35m of revenue

Given aur size and scale we balisve that
liquidity is important and will therefore aim
to keep leverage low at below Ix Pro Forma*
EBITDA

On this basis we aim 0 gehieve g run
rate revenue of £100m by March 2023 and
deliver £12m-£14m EBITDA

19% organic revenue growth

106% OP to cash flaw
£61Im cash genearated from operations
incl lease payments

Aggregate Dividends of 0.8p
9.4% of net income (acljusted profit
after tax)

Made three acquisitions, cumulatively
adding £181m of run-rate revenue

Pro Forma Leverage of less than X Pro
Forma EBITDA

Consensus analyst revenue
expectations for FY22 of £64m
Consensus analyst EBITDA expectations
of £87m

The Panaply Heldings Plc
Company number: 10533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Alongside cur Commercial Vision, we have also publicly stated an Impact Vision, to achieve by FY2023.
This reflects the equal weighting we give to hnancial and ESG progress.

HIRCce auuinstinas

Close the gaps that exist in our business Made progress in
and wider industry. Decreasing pay gaps, closing 72% of gaps™
reprasentation gaps and gaps in inclusivity

Leave no Trace. Megsuring and offsetting Invested in software to collect data and

our historic footprint entirely measure emissions and cffset 1,815 tCO2e

Equip our communities with futureproof sarears kick-started
skilla. Kick-atarting 1000 digital caroers

The Panoply Holdings Pic
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Chief Executive's Review

continued

New goais

On the basis of the progress made to date and with our
continued strong organic growth alongside our pipeline
of acquisition cpportunitics, we reiterate our confidence in
reaching our stated March 2023 goals. Therefore, we take
this opportunity to intreduce longer term goals to March
2025,

cial Mision for FY2028

. Toachieve a run rate revenue of £200m {£150m public
sector, £80m commercial sector} by March 2025
To deliver 10-15% organic revenue growth per annurm

To meke further carmings enhancing acqguisitions
to strengthen our offer, achieve gredater scale and
support our overall vision

4. Tobecome atop 20 public sector supplier by March
2025 onrun rate basis

5. Todeliver 70% of operating prefit through to positive
cash flow

8. Todeliver progressive dividend policy at 19%-20% of
net Income

7 Todeliver improving EBITDA margins

et Voo Fyab
1. Halve the 21 gaps that we have identified across

representation, pay and inclusion for employees from
underrepresented backgrounds

2. To be ontrack tc achieve net zero status

3. Tokick-start digital careers, reaching 5,000 unigue
beneficiaries through our community action and
community investrment programmes

We believe that our growth strategy, as described above,
will drive us towards these longer-term geals.

Collaboration has olwoys been key to The Panoply and
we embraced this further during the period through

the continued deployment of Foundry4, FutureGov and
Manifesto as our core ‘full service’ brands. This is part of an
ongoing journey towards structuring the Group in the best
possible way to leverage our strengths, simplify our offer,
and make the biggest difference to clients.

By bringing our expertise togsther under these namas
we have simplified our value proposition for clients and
allowed The Panoply to win increasingly larger and more
impactful projects. In FY2021 the business sccured 4

the panoply/

contracts of a value over £3m, comparad with none in
FY202C Itis important to note that these contracts were
at scale and multi-disciplinary and could only have been
won under these amalgamated brand propositions.

In addition, we began to centralise some HR and finance
systerns & functions to increase efficiencies and unlock
synergies across the business.

prGisiiinn
:

We completed three mOJDF acquisitions in the period, all
predominantly in the public sector:

- Arthurly, a technology services business with
particular strength in the Microsoft technology stack

+  Difrent, a digital transformation consultancy focused
on the healthcare sector

+  KeepIT Simple, a provider of high value IT suppaort
and transformation services, predominantly to publc
sector clients

Thanrks to the highly complementary nature of these
acquisitions they have integrated well into the Group and
all have generated significant revenue. Far example, two
recently won contracts were only possible to win because
of the capabilities added to the Group vio the acquisition
of KITS. Furthermore, the acquisition of Difrent has given

us a strong foothold in the growing healthcare sector with
healthcare revenues now representing 9% of total revenus.

We are now in a position to offer an even more
comprehensive end-to—end offering to our clients,
ranging from consulting and solutions through to ongoing
operations.

Acquisition remains a key tenet of our strategy and we
have a nurmber of potential opportunitics in the pipeline.

Across the year we have continued to build our public
services base with 71% of revenue in the year from this
sector (FY20: 64%). This was generated from a wide range
of projects ranging from hyperscale cloud migration
programmies through to high level organisational change
initiatives. New client wins in the year include NHS Business
Services Autherity, NHSX, Flanning Inspectorate and HM
Land Registry.

In addition, we have further built our capahbility inits sub-
sectors, building a beok of reference case studies and a

burgeoning reputation ccross central governrment, local
government and healthcare.,

We have proven the value of our preposition by working on
significant projects with public services clients, showing
them that small groups of experts can deliver results.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533095
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Example projects include:

«  Supporting the NHS Business Services Authority to
deliver its digital transtormation agenda and digital
health delivery overseas

- Assisting the Planning Inspectorate to deliver its
planning appedadls service into Beta

+  Working with HM Land Registry as partners in its
digital transformation programme and digital service
development

= Enabling local authorities across England to access
the £3.6ln levelling up’ Towns Fund alongside
the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government

Raobust recunring petformanse in cemmeigial seeto:
29% of revenue came from the commercial sector in the
period and it continues to be avery important sector to
the Group. Cf that approximately two-thirds is recurring
ravenue from clients such as News UK, Funding Circle,
Cargill and Dow Jones. The roster of recurring revenue
clients is mainly made up of large-scale corporates.

One example of our commercial work is a project
undertaken for Dow Jones. The successiul set-up of the
team of News UK, another company of the News Corp
Group and current client of the Group, supported the
choice of The Panaply as a strategic partner for the
planned growth of Dow Jones. Through the collaboration,
The Panoply helped build o high-performing tech unit that
acts as an extension of Dow Jones' core technclogy team,
supporting this team in the development of distinguished
web and mobile applications, APls and data feeds.

A S P
3 irgnstormalis

The past year has shown erganisations of all types and
sizes that it is possible to implement digital transformation
rapidly and at a reascnable price Beyond this, it has
shown exactly how much of animpact implementing
these kinds of programmes can have.

Last year we stated our belief that the impact of

the pandemic will be toc accelerate widespread
understanding and demand for our services. Wo have
now seen this borne out, Itis becoming incredasingly
recagnised thot a small, but skilled, multidisciplinary team
can be trusted to deliver. This can be done across aven
the most complex projects

The Software and IT Services 'SITS' market in the UK s
worth £51.8bn, of which the public sector is £121on. The
public sector SITS markst has previously revolved around
the drag of large legacy deals provided by heritage
suppliers However, this balance is changing in favour of
new, agile suppliers that have the people and resources

to deliver agile at scals. Agile now represents £3.7bn of
the total £12bn value, up 18.6% year on year. With digital
transformation being a continuous process and that
requires angoing investment this repzresents an exciting
opportunity for The Panoply, which we believe is one of the
only truly digitally native and also full-service players.

Current trading and outiochk

The business has had an extremely strong start to FY2022,
and has already completed ancther acquisition, which

we believe reflects the growing reputation we are building
within our target markets. In Ql, we signed approximately
£18.6m in new contracts, a record quarter. A number of
wins have been made possible by the Group being able to
leverage the capabilities brought to us by the acquisition
of KITS in March 2021

Coming into the current financial year, we had a
confirmed backlog deliverable in the year, including
annualised recurring revenue, of approximately £39m.

Ql bookings have added approximately £16.5m in further
recognisable revenue in FY2022, taking the total revenue
plus backlog to £55.5m, with three quarters left to go. Ql
trading continueas to deliver revenue growth at abave our
targets of 10%-15%.

As o result, the company expects revenue and EBITDA
for FY2022 to be significantly ahead of current market
expectations and for us to deliver analysts’ expectations
for FY2023in FY2022.

This year we will continue to focus on delivering against
cur commercial and impact vision, through our strategy
of consolidation to a single brand and a single P&L
driving further organic growth and continued earnings
enhancing acquisitions.

+  Ageinst our 2023 commercial vision of 10% to 15%
organic revenue growth per year, we gained 19% in
FY2021, we will continue to target this growth and profit
as clients recognise our value through delivery.

+  Since IPO The Panoply has aoquired 12 businesses
with the latest post period acquisition of Nudge Digital
Limited increasing this to 13. These acquisitions have
provided the ability to grow at a substantiat pace,
whilst providing the access to growing markets and
incredible talent,

Logking ahead, itis clear the demand for digital
transformation services continues at full pace As
our reputation grows and our capabilities continug
to strengthen and diversify, | am confident we are
well-positioned to take advantage of the significant
oppertunities ahead aeross our target markets.

Neal Gandhi ﬁ /ﬁ
Chief Executive OFficer  Foara o the 13,208 o &ovie

'

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Financlal Review

We continued to see a large amount of repeat business
from customears, with 67% of custormers billed in F¥Y2021 also
Billed in FY2020. Most excitingly we have seen an increcse
in the scale of the contracts we are now winning as a
result of the combined services of The Panoply including
four deals over £3m up from just three in the combined
multi decade history of the individual companies prior

to acguisition.

Gross margins were at 32% against 38% in the prior year.
The reduction was driven by a change in the makeup

of the services that we provide, with growth in our
managed services and recurring business. This has seen
us add significantly to our backlog for FY2022 which
stood at £39 0m (FY2020: £15.0m}. Gross margin has alse
been impacted by some Covid-18 recruitrment scaling
challenges, exacerbated by our top line growth, which
meant that we had anincreased reliance on contractors
at higher rates than full time employees. The Panoply has
now reached a scale where we can address this through
our newly centralised HR function and greater hiring of
permanert employees. As a result, we anticipate an
improvement in gross margin moving forward

the panoply/

Adjusted EBITDA was £71m up from £3.8m in FY2020
reprasenting an increase of 87%. Statutory EBITDA was
£1.8m, up from aloss of £0.8m in FY2020 representing an
increase of 400%. Adjusted EBITDA margin was 14% up
from 12% in the prior year. Tha increase in margin is mainly
driven by PLC costs remaining largely flat as we continue
to scale. In addition, we have seen a reduction in certgin
overheads as a result of Covid-19.

The statutory loss after tax decreased by 27% to £2 2m
{FY2020: £3.0m). The Directers believe that an ‘adjusted
profit before tax’ measure is more representative of

the underlying performance of the Group. To arrive at
adjusted results, adjustrments made include acquisition
expenses, amortisation related to acquired intangibles
and share-based payments and the impact ot fair value
adjustments along with the corresponding tax impact of
the adjustments.

Thie fair value adjustment reflects stronger than forecast
performance of the Group companies and amortisation
is a charge that does not reflect the underlying
performance or prospects of The Panoply

The following table summmarises the adjustrments:

Statutory loss before tax

Amortisation of intangible

assets relating to acquisitions 2,458 1,558
Loss from fair value maovement

in contingent consideration 4,280 3,764
Share-based Payments 294 129
Costs relating to acguisition

and restructuring 746 591
Adjusted profit before tax 5,913 2,902
Tax (including impact of

amortisation and costs relating

to acquisition and restructuring

adjustments) (898} (230}
Adjusted profit after tax 5,015 2,672

As a result of the acquisitive nature of the Group and its
use of shares as censideration, the Directors believe that
on adjusted share count for the purposes of calculating
earnings per share isrequired. As such the Directors

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533098
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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calculate an adjusted diluted share number by taking
the weighted average basic shares and including the
maximum shares to be issued in respect of contingent
consideration to be paid based on perfarmance
measures met in the period, together with the maximum
share options outstanding. The following table
summoarises the adjustments:

1

PPN

Frnhe
Weighted average basic
shares 63,784 43,162
Shares relating to future
contingent consideration 13,728 22774
Shares relating to
Share-based payments 4,436 3,885

81,848 74,821
Adjusted diluted earnings
per share {pence) 81 36

Based on these alternative non-GAAP measures the
business achieved adjusted profit after tax of £5.0m
(FY2020: £2.7m) resulting in adjusted diluted earnings per
share of 81p (FY2020: 38p). The statutery loss per share for
the period wos 3.5 (FY2020: 6.3p loss).

Coasiifio

v Cnad cash cotrvension

Net cash generated from operations before tax and
including lease payments was £51m Cash conversion,
calculated by reference to the adjusted profit before
tax but after deducting costs relating to acquisition and
restructuring was 106%.

In total, cash increased in the year from £4.6m ta £57m
But net debt excluding the impact of IFRS 16 leoses
increased from £0.4m to £73m as a result of payments
made for acquisitions completed in the period. The cash
congideration for the acquisitions was £16.5m, with £2.6m
being funded from the Group’s cash reserves, £6.9m
funded from cosh acquired and £8.0m funded through an
extended revolving credit facility put in place during the
year with HSBC. Tha net debt position at the year and was
significantly below 1x Pro Forma EBITDA

HSBC have extended their revalving credit facility with The
Panoplyto £20m. £13m has been drawn down in total for
acquisitions in FY2020 and Fy2021 leaving the Group at
the year end with a further £7m to draw down for further
acquisitions. This together with cash flow generated

from operations provides a strong basis to continue our
acquisitive growth into FY2022.

Bolonce Snzel

Intangible assets have increased significantly in the year
as a result of the acquisitions completed.

Total deferred consideration at 31 March 2021 was £12.2m,
of which £10.8m relates to deferred consideration where
performance obligations were met in the period {further
details set out below). We continue te note that thisis a
liakility thot will be satisfied through the issue of shares
and not through cash. Once this is removed, the Group's
current ratio at the year end was 18 (FY2020:17) providing
solid liquidity.

Dividons

Following initiation of our first interim dividend the Board
ara pleased to announce a final dividend' of G.4p per
share subject to approval at the AGM. The proposed final
dividend, if approved by shargholders, will be payable
on 1 October 2021 to all shareholders on the Register of
Members on 24 September 2021 This will take the total
dividend paid to shareholders in respect of FY2021 to 0.56p
per share.

Aduitiona! considarat
As a result of the strong perfermance of Group companies
during the current and prior period, turther consideration
is payable and will be satisfied through the issue of new
ordinary shares. As at 31 March 2021, the total value of
consideration that is payable based on FY2021 accounts is
£10.9m, resulting in maximum further shares to be issued
totalling 13.7m which reduces to 3.8m based on the closing
share price as at 2 Juby 2021

wares ta

8,026

, 1,593
838 0825 1,015
1,887 0.831 2,390
290 1000 290
507 1.225 414
10,867 13,728

Oliver Rigby .
Chief Financial Officer  ».ez

Tme

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Sustainable futures.

Environmental, social
& governance report

The Panaply Holdings Pl
. . Company number: 10533096
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ESG Report

Sustainable futures

Qb We used the World Economic Forum's (WEF) standard for
consistent ESG reporting to identify the recommaeanded
metrics aligned with these targets. The WEF released a
white paper in September 2020 to develop a core set of
common metrics and disclosures on nen-financial factors
for investors and other stakehelders. This framework

Our non-financial KPls track the progress we're making incorporates all of the majer existing ESG standards and

in building SUStOIHGble futures for our people, planet splits the metrics into four pillars; principles of governance,
and community. pecple, planet and prosperity.

We align our sustainable futures strategy with the UN This table shows where you can find each metric, as
Sustainable Development Goals that we feel we are best described in the WEF framewacrk within the ESG report. It
able to contribute towards. We focus on SGG8 'Decent also shows vhich SDG each metric relates to and which
Work and Economic Growth” and have identified the standard we have used to capture the data.

targets 8), 8.4, 85 and 8.6 as pricrities.

(ENEA N Lot

Dignity and equality Black StT represenlation GRI 405-1b 85 2% 42
Diginity and equality SEB inclusion scare gap GRI 405-1b 85 1% 43
Dignity and equality Lisability inclusion score gap GRI 405-1b 85 3% 43
Dignity and equality Disablity SLT representation GRI 405-1b 85 6% 42
Dignity and equality Employee inclusion score GRI 405-1b 85 85% 43
Dignity and equality Ethnicity pay gap (mean} GRIN02-38 85 4% 48
Dignity and equulity Ethnicity pay gap (median) CRIND2-38 85 0% s
Dignity and equality Fernale SLT representction GRI 405-1b 856 40% 42
Digrity and equality Gender inclusion score gap GRI 405-1b 85 0% 43
Digruty and equahty Gender pay gap (mean) GRING2-38 8b 16% 46
Dignity and equality Gender pay gop (median) GRI102-38 85 19% 48
Digrity and equality LGBT inclusion score gap GRI 405-1b 85 1% 43
Dignity and equality LGBT SLT representation GRI 405-10 85 3% 42

Minority ethnic Inclusion score
Dignity and equality gap GRI 405-1b 85 3% 43

Minority ethnic SLT
Dignity and cquality represenlation GRI 405-1b 85 4% 42

The Panoply Holdings Plc

the panoply// Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Dignity and equality

Dignity and eguality

Dignity and eguality
Ei-gnity and equality
Digrily and equality
Dignity and equality

Lignity and eguality

Dignity and equality

Health and
well-being

Health and
well-heing

Health and
well-kieing

Health and
well-being

Health and
WeH*being

Clmate Change
Chmate Ch_r,ﬂ_:]e
Clmale Change
C_\ir_rf_t(_e Change
Chnrr_j?t_e_ Change

Climate Change

Climate Change

Freshwater
availability

Nature [oss

Maodern slavery cudit

Modern slavery statemeant

Overall minority ethnic
representation

Overall black representation

Overall disability representation

Overall female representation

OQverall LGBT representation

wage level % {CFO Median)

% employees participoting in

well-being programmes

Employee satisfaction score

Employee wellbeing score

Imjuries and Fatalities

Percentage of employees

that are contractors
or temporary staff
Carbaon offset total

Energy Intensity ratio
{per £Im revenue)

Eniergy Intensity ratio {per FTE)

Reduction of energy
consumption

Scope 1 emissions

Scope 2 emissions

Scope 3 emissions

Water consumption

Land use and ecological

sensitivity

GRI 408-1b,
GRI 4091

GRI 4051

GRI 405-1b

GRI 405-1b

"GRI 202-1,
Adapted from
DoddFrank Act,
s SEC
Regulalions”

Adapted from
GRI2016 403-2a

GRI 405-1b

GRE201S
403-9a&b,
GRI 2018 403-64

GRI 3051-3, TCFD,
GHG Protocol

GRI 3051-3, TCFD,
GHG Protocol

GRI3051-3, TCFD,
GHG Protocol

GRI 305:1-3, TCFD,
GHG Protocol

GRI 3C5:1-3, TCFD,
GHG Pratocol

GRI 3Q51-3, TCFD,
GHG Protocol

GRI 3051-3, TCFD,
GHG Protocol

SASE CG-HP140al,
WRI Aqueduct
water risk

atlas too

GRi 304-1

GRI 405-1b

Fa2as

87 -
87 -
89 13%
80 3%
85 8%
85 48%
85 12%
856 471
28 80%
85 76
856 74
28 0

8.8 24.61%
84 1915 tCO2e
84 37.32"t7C£)29
g4 4 31C0Ze
8.4 7”7?9.9 tCOZ2e
84 6.4tC0C%e
84 235 lCO_?.e

84 1,8851C0%

84 -

47

47

42

42

42

42

42

72

40

40

40

40

72

53

51

hl

53

63

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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ESG Report

continued

Sl Trencc

Pz

% people trained in anti-

Ethical behaviour corruption 88 - g7
Ethical behaviour Number of corruption incidents 88 - g7
Governing
purpose Stated purpose 81 - 86
Protected
ethics advice
and reporting Protected ethics advice and
mechanisms reporting mechanisms 8.8 - el
Quality of
governing
body Governance body composition 85 - 84
Risk and opportunity
oversight Disclosure of risks 8.8 - 75
Stakeholder Material issues iImpacting
engagement stakeholders 88 - 78
Caommunity and
social vitality Careers kickstarted 46 268 52
Community and
social vitality Community Investment total GRI 201-1 81 £33,930 5%
Communily and
socia vitality Comunily Action hours a6 1654 57
Community and Adapted from GRI
social vitality Tax paid 201-1 g1 £341628 132
As refaerenced in
Employment and 1AS 7 and US GAAP
wealth generation Capkx ASC 230 8l £716,819 nz
Asreferenced in
Employment and 1AS 7 and US GAAP
waalth gencration Share buybocks + dividends ASC 230 81 £138,44% m
Employment and
wealth generation Employee turnover GRI 401-1a&b 8l 18.46% 40
Ernployment and
wedlth generation Employee wages and benefits GRI 201-1 81 £24171,021 12€
Employment and
wealth generation New jobs GRI 401-1a&b 81 55 72
Employment and
wealth goneration Oporating costs GRI 201-1 81  £44,084331 108
Employment and
wealth generation Revenue GRI 201-1 8l £51145,880 28

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021

the panoply#
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Employment and
wealth genaration

Innovation of better
products and

services

Innovation of better
products and

services

Innovation of better
products and
services

worforce Growth

% revenue from controversial
clents

Nurmber, type and impact of
physical and technological
legacies

Significant indirect economic
impacts, including the extent of
impacts

GRI 401—1G&L‘_)m___ 8]—_ 5?3 29 )
- s 9% 73
. 82 - 66
8.2 - 66

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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ESG Report

Sustainable futures

Sustainable futures
for our people.

We are closing the gaps that exist in
our business and wider industry.

Decreasing pay gaps,
representation gaps and
gaps in inclusivity.

While contributing to SDG:

8.5 Decent, equal work opportunities for all

We will get there by implementing:

+ Fmployes wellbeing initiatives

+  Diverse recruitment processes
Employee inclusion networks

+  Wellness activities

the panoply//

Sustalnqble futures
planet,

We are leaving

no trace.
Measuring and offss
Our historic Tootpring
{-35‘1'Uf’6i‘y‘,

While centributing to SDG:

8.4 Decoupling economic growth from
envirenmental degradation

We will get there by implementing:
Carben reduction strategies
Carbon measurement pregrammes
Carbon offset partnerships
Sponsoring ecological regensration

Green Incentive schemes

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Sustainable futures
for our communities.

We dare equipping our communities
with future-proof skills.

Kickstarting 1000
digital careers.

While contributing to SDG:

8.8 Youth education and training

We will get there by implementing:
»  Future |eaders prograrmme
+  Other volunteering activitics
= Donating 1% of pre-tax profit

«  Donating 1% of employee time

e

We are delivering
impactful work.

Radically improving the
sarvices that mattor

While contributing to SDG:

81 Sustainakle economic growth

We will get there by implementing:
Targeted client crigination

Embodding impact targets within our M&A
practice

Ethical ways of working

The FPanoply Holdings Pig
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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ESG Report

P@Opl@ continuad

Al

People

Closing the gaps that exist in our
business and wider industry

We are working o ensure
sustainable tutures for all of

our people through a focus
DOlng &

'

on employae wel
satisfaction anad workic
diversity, inclusion

& equality

the panoply//

Never have these issues been mora
imoortant. The past year has tested
us all, blurring the lines between
home and work in a way we have
never seen before.

Employers have had to take greater
accountability for the mental

and physical wellbeing of their
employees. The world is finally
beginning to wake up to the need to
tackle systemic inequalities. As the
headlines move on, we must ensure
that our commitment to addressing
these issues does not waiver.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 105330¢6
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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T work with several compinies
cind The Panoply is the most
socially and environmenitaily
oware and the most inclusive

for gender and ethnic

be gesocioted with it

ANnonyimous, fron aur Divorsty &
Inclusion survey

1. Ernployee wellbeing & Satisfaction

As an impact driven professional services business

we understand that our biggest asset and our biggest
impact lies with our pecple. We are investing in the
mental, physical and financial wellbeing of our staff. The
Panoply pays all staff atzove the living wage and delivers
a programme of culturally relevant wellbeing inftiatives
which were accessed by 80% of our workforce last
financial year.

We are a low risk business in terms of occupational health
and safety issues and had no reported serious injurics or
tatalities at work last year.

We measure the wellbaing and safisfaction of our
employees regularly through anonymous surveys. This
year, employees scored their satisfaction as 7.6 out of
10 on average and their wellbeing as 7./1. This was o
marginal improvement of last year's results of 75 and 7.2
reapectively. Our annuc] employce turnaver was 18.40%,
kb

The Panoply provides free access to an Employes
Assistance Programme (EAP) for all UK ermplayees. We
provide the EAP as a confidential employee resource
designed to help our people to deal with personal and

professional problems that could be affecting their home
life ar werk life, health or general wellbeing.

the panoply//

Background SO A Prouct

wWellness Wednssdays

During the first lockdown we introduced Weliness
Wednesday events. We invited expert speakears once a
rmonth to speok to employees about their physical and
mental health. Some examples of sessions thot took place
are Food for Mental Health, Nutrition & Gut health ond
Managing Stress.

Fitnaess Challenas

The challenge was designed to focus on boosting
employees’ physical activity after the Christmas holidays.
It aligned with the UK's third naticnal lockdown and helped
employees to get outside and get moving during atime
of isolation. The Group clocked up o totak of over 555,000
steps over the course of two weeks.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number; 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Z. Diversity, inclusion and Eqguality

The Panoply strives for equality of opportunity for all, at
avery level of the business. it is our responsibility to reflect
tha richly diverse communities that we serve and to be
aceessible to people from alt backgrounds. Not only do
we believe that this is the right thing to do, we believe
that diverse, inclusive teams are higher performing and
better for business. That is why we have put in place
rigorous review processes to report on our progress and
performance

We have made some excellent improverments this year,
making progress in closing 72% of the gaps that we
rmeasure, but we are aware we still have o way to go.

We will continue to ensure that the quantity, guality and
frequancy of our D&d reporting is best in class. We will
continue to be totally transparent about our results and
our pragress. Not anly does this help us hold ourselves to
account, we hope that it inspires others to acknowledge
and address tha issues that exist within our industry and
start their own journeys towards equality of opportunity.

We are proud of the inclusive culture at The Pancply and

the range of talent that we attract, particularly for a tech

group of our size in an industry not known for diversity. we
intend to help changes the composition of the tech sector
by continuing to raise the standards of our D& initiatives,

raising aworeness of issues and investing in a pipeling of

diverse talent.

EtAPLOYEE WELLBE!L

z

Y

D&lreport
Headlines

We are a more diverse groug of all
levels of the basiness than we weare [V
mionths dgo

Inclusivity scores have reimained hig's

and steady

Particibation and disclosure rates
renmicin lowear than wa would like

Wi nanowea almost all of the
inclusivity gaps. closing the gap
Petween men/women and low income
enployvees entirely

€T
]
—
=

=
i

We st do maore to tackls
equality as black and m

emplovses sl do ol |

.
I
I bR

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
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Diversity at The Panoply

Senior Leadership

Women

&

(Fy2n20r 39%}

Minority etinic

ik

Lo

{FY2020: 12%}

(Fy2020: 0%)

Gap
RZTAN T
Fal Y T e

Drisaityility

(Fy2020: 0%)

Gap
FYoUu20 16% |
FY2021 10% HEEmpmss

Overall Representation

(FY2020: 47%)

Gap
[ FeIEE Lo

Y AT 13

{Fy2020: 7%)

Gap
FY2020. -5%
FY2021 -10% B9

Mincity cthnic

{FY2020:13%)

Gap
FYINT A% 4

FYofiol 7  ssbgemeriges

(Fy2020: 3%)

Gap
FYI010 3%
FYPOR1 2%

(Fy2020: 3%)

Gap
FY2020 1% :
PY2UZ A%

1 GRT
17/

{Fy2020: 8%)

Gap
FY2020 13%
MY 10%

T

Gap
FY2020; -6%
{202, -0% i

Gap
FY2020: 5%
FY2021. O%

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533086

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



incinsion enaras hy amployes cafegory

2020 Gap 204 Gap
Gender 1% Q%
sock Econormc
Disability 15% 3%
Sexuality 5% 1%
Ethnicity 12% 13%

Disclosure:

73% of our employees participated in our 2021 D& survey,
down from 76% last year. For pay gap analysis, 92% of
employees have disclosed their gender and 82% have
disclosed their ethnicity We can only report on the data
that we have and therefore acknowledge that we have
work to do to engage our emplayees in this waork and
improve disclosure rates.

Diversity:

We beliove that diversity is both a cause and «
consequence of inclusive environments which is why itis
so important that we continue to track how diverse and
representative sur workforce is.

We measure overall representation and senior
representation (top pay quartile) for employses from

the following categoeries, wormen, minority ethnic, Black,
disabilities, LGBTQL We work cut the gap by finding the
difference to community reprasentation. We work out
community representation by using UK government
demographic data. Where the data is available and likely
to be different (race and LGBTQI data) we use the midpoint
between UK and London demographic data.

Lowast Inclusion scores

Highest incluzion scores

T
.- " ‘—ﬁT%E Earci

Mirofity . L L
Ethnic

inclucion:

Qur priority is building inclusive environments that work
for everybody which is why our D& reporting focusses so
miuch on how included and accepted employees feel in
the workplace,

Inclusivity scores have remained high and steady this
year despite the obviocus challenges that we have
faced with a brand new way of working.

We work out inclusivity scores based on the average
responses from inclusivity indicators asked within the
D&l survey These questions and methodology are
based broadly on Kantar's Inclusivity Index.

we have made some really encouraging progress this
year in closing our inclusivity gaps. In particular, there is
no distinguishable gop between how women and men
feel ot The Panoply or how included employees feel based
on their sacio-economic background

The exception is the gap between white employees and
employees from ethnic minority backgrounds. Despite the
gap closing for black employees, the gap between mixed
and multiple race employees has widened.

fclusivity Scores

Fowaed aryooedy

The Panoply Holdings Pic
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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ESG Rep

Ole continued -

Percentage of employees who agreed with the following commenits
by ernployee calsgory

100%

0%
40%

20%

Black White Asian Minarity ethnic Mixed! Mutuple Fetrosexuat

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply// Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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31

of people agreed or strongly agreed
with the comment

| believe people of

A TIATH

all identities can be
successful at this
company

Pown from 87% in FY2020

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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0% 25% 50% 5% 100%

Brale  ETerncle @ Undiscosed

Equdlity:

Inclusion and representation dre not far encugh. We want
to make sure that employses have equal access to equity
within the business which is why we have introduced
quarterly pay gap reporting for both gender and ethnicity.

Gur mean pay gap has stayed the same this year with the
median gap increasing from 17% to 19% This is in part due
to acquisitions in the period that have not been as diverse
in terms of gender as we would fike. We are working with
these busingsses to attract more female talent and also
including diversity in our M&A due diligence process.

i B0 184 i FY2020

an Gender P

Ui from 173 i Fyaaso

the panoply/

Py aiztiibution by ethnicity

Hnper

VT AT MR 10
LSS S TRy The [T B, TR (T S

HAPSET e
e Midrlo

Lovwer

0% 2a% =0% 5% 100%

B White R Asan Wulack T Mixed Otner B Undisclosed

This is the first time we have published our ethnicity pay
gap. In general, we are pleased with the results however,
we are awnare that we have more work to do to have more
Black and mixed race representation in particular at
senior levels within the business.

ity Po

(Minority ethnic}

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



QU commitments:

. We arelaunching Cmployee Resource Groups
{ERGs) to act as safe spaces for employees from
underrepresented backgrounds to share expericnces
and idegs apout how we can close some of the gaps.

2 We arg introducing quarterly pay gap reporting for
both gender and ethnicity to ensure that we do not
lose momentum.

3. We have signed the Tech Talent Charter and will be
helping to drive diversity and inclusion within the tech
sector in o measurable way.

Diverse pipelines

we understand that these issuas cannoct be solved
overnight. Inequalities are often founded on generations
of systemic prejudice and that we need to take along-
term view to achieve true equality of opportunity. That is
why we are investing in a pipeline of diverse talent. This
year we have run code-clubs, mentored students, run
careers sessions and nterview skills sessions. We have
sponsored a student who has ambitions to be an engineer
through an Arkwright Scholarship and have continued to
deliver the Future Leaders programme, running a 9-week
incubator for minority owned businesses. More on this on
page 80.

3. Human Rights

At The Panoply, we have a zero-tolerance cpproach to
maodern slavery and are fully committed to preventing
slavery and human trafficking in our operation and supply
chain. We have taken concrete steps to tackle modern
slavery, as outlined in our Modern Slavery Statement
statement.

In the past year, we conducted arisk assessment of the
capacity of the organisation to manage and prevent the
risks of modern slavery based on gov.uk MSAT framework.
As part of the framework we also conducted a risk
assessment mapping of our supply chain by taking into
account:

«  Therisk profile of individual countries based on the
Global Slavery Index

«  The business services rendered by the suppliers
+  The presence of vulngraile demographic groups

High risk seclors that it works with personnel services
{e.9. cleaning service suppliers)

In addition to this, The Panoply includes Modern Slavery
Training as part of the onboarding material for any new
member of staff and has a Whistleblowing Policy that
encourages all employees, customers and suppliers

to report any suspicion of slavery or human trafficking
without fear of retaliction.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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LG Report
Plainet continved

Rm:

Planet

Leaving no trace

Taoving Dha

nployeas ane

the panoply//

The climate and ecological crises
are the two most important issues
facing our species. The complex
nature of both the causes and
solutions represent an unmissable
opportunity to rethink our impact,
renew our health, reinvigorate

our relationship with noture and
rebalance our economy. Businesses
like The Panoply have a responsibility
to take a lead on tackling these
issues head on.

The Panaply Heldings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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The most important part of our envirenmental approach
is to reduce the negative impact we have on the planet.
There are three stages; measure our carbon footprint,
actively reduce the emissions we're responsible for and
offset what can't be reduced.

ennlring our cdibon oo

We have built on the measurements wa made in
FY]Q;’QO, and are now taking ownership of all of our
carbon emissions; scope 1, 2 and 3, both upstream and
downstream. This includes business travel, employee
commuting, remote working and purchased goods and
services.

We have invested significantly in expertise and technology
by partnering with Emitwise to identify all of our emissions.
This maans the carbon footprint we have calculated is

as detailed and accurate as possible. Itis based onthe
data from our finance and expenses systems, a survey
completed by 60% of our employees, our utility bills and
available data from our landiords, waste collecters and
maintenance contractors.

This has resulted in a coarbon footprint of 1,515 tonnes of
CO2 equivalents (1CO28] This equates to 4.3 tCO2e per full
time employee and 37.32 tCO2e per £1 million of revenue,

the panoply/s

Our scope 1 and 2 emissions are 15% of our total emissions,
rmeaning our scope 3 emissions make up 98 6% of our
total emissions.

srep I
Percentage
of emissions

This overwhelming majority in scope 3 is indicative of our
type of business but is more proneunced than some of
our peers because we have calculated our full upstream
and downstream scope 3 emissions. Of particular note is
our purchased goods and services making up 88% of our
total emussions, and our employee commuting emissions,
which make up 7% of our total emissions.

Because of the vastly increased scope of our
measuraments this year, combined with the complete
lack of business travel, comparing this figure with the
figure we published last year is unhelpful. Therefore, to
get a better understanding of our carbon footprint, we
recalculated our FY18/20 carbon footprint using the sams
methodology as we did for this year's. That showed in
FY18/20 we wers responsibls for carbon emissions of

1,631 1CC2e. This equates to 4.06 tCO2e per full time
employee and 48.81 tCO2e per £1,000,000 of revenue.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Purchased district heating emissions

Purchased eloctricity cmissions

Business travel

Employee commuting {including remote
working)

Fuel and energy related services

Purchased goods and services
(including capital goods)

Upstream leased assets
Upstream transportation and distribution
Use of sold products

Waste

ER R STl Y

oty bute

:_‘,Ery ERES AT

tCO2e per full time employee (FTE)

tCOZe per £Im revenue

355

4.36
3950
47.41

184.59

60.61
13.59

1,210.59
0.53
114
128
.36

_. 148368

1531.00

4.05
48.61

4.29
18.20
29.90

10.90

180.67
15.45

1,662.63
1.07
0.27

1.21

13.18

. 188529

1,915.00

4.30
37.32

5 41

478
1.20

276

5096
719

118872
107
003
108
6.27

. 129808

1,269.00

429
068

487

020

4.82
0.92

622

13.83
13.83

794

124.79
7.34

41171

024
012
6.79

.. 52893

573.00

The Paneply Heldings Plc
Company number: 10533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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When comparing the two financial years, the most
encouraging factor is that we've started to break the
relaticnship between economic growtn and carbon
emissions. Cur emissicns per £1 million of revenue have
reduced by 23% from FY2020 to FYZ2021.

This cormparison alsa allows us to do a rough assessment
of the impact of Covid-19 on our emissions. Cur data is
categorised in a way that we can pick certain seurces of
armissions that are positively or negatively impacted by
Covid-1¢ e g. business travel, office energy use, employee
commuting and working from home. Despite the obvious
reductions, the increase attributed to working from home
led to an increase of around 12%. This contradicts the
normal narrative of Covid-18fremote working decreasing
emissions. We'll do more in depth analysis to undorstand
how that can be addressed.

Saarizen By

Business travel 1.44
Employee commuting

{excluding remote working} 575 893
Gffice heating and electricity

emissions 52 33i
Remote working 3.43 185.06
Total 205 229

the panoply/’

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
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We have now pianted over

O offsetiing approach

This financial year we have continued with our policy of
offsetting our emissions via Ecologi Gold Standard Projects
such as investmient in seolar panels in Indic. Emissions
avoidance via offsetting like this is not a perfect solution
for well documented reasons, but done to the expected
standards it has a clear positive impact.

We have purchased carban offsets to the equivalent of
1,915 tCO2e, which is the eguivalent of over 7000,000 miles
driven in the average UK car and almeost 3,000 flights from
London te New York.

We have now also planted over 16,000 trees, but not simply
for their carbon removal potenticl. We see tree planting

is vital to help increase the plunel’s depleted biodiversity,
support local communities, reduce inegualities and help
paople reconnect with nature.

nuinG ond : F i
As a digital native technology service company, we

do not manufacture or sell physical products that
nagatively impact nature, land use, ecological sensitivity,
freshwater availability or water consumption. However,
we accept that in order to operate we need buildings
and infrastructure, which negatively impact those things.
We have therefore used proxy data for the environmental
impact of the water usage in our offices.

We will donate time and money to organisations whose
aimiis to positively impact the systems and societal
norms that have devastated our planet and the
ecosystems within it. Therefore, in continuation of our
donations in FY19/20, we have once ugain donated to
Rewilding Britain.

Rewilding Britain's mission i$ to champion rewilding in
Britain, acting as o catalyst far debate and action, and
demonstrating the power of working with nature to
tackle the extinction crisis and the climate emergency.
Cur donation will contribute significantly towards many
different direct rewilding projects as well as research,
education and policy influencing.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Kate Barclay, Fundraising and Development Lead, Rewilding Britain

Removing batiiers for ernploy
To maximise impact and prove our cemmitment to the
planet, we prioritise action that can be taken by the
organisation as a whoele. Too much emphasis is placed
on individuals when discussing solutions to the climate
emergency, when far more impact would be made by
getting whole organisations, industries and governments
to make changes.

Individual action is still vital though, therefore, we are
helping to remove barriers for our employees ta maximise
their positive impact on the planet

we have joined the OctopustV electric vehicle leasing
scheme. We have passed all the possible savings onto
our employees to open up electric vehicle ownership to
a wider range of people. We officially joined the scheme
in the final days of the financial year so we'll report order
nurmbers in our 2],!’22 financial year report, but interest
hias surpassed our expectations, with over 25 employees
actively looking at the scheme.

We have contiued our rollout of web browser Ecosia,
which has now helped finance over 750 trees. We will
push this initiative much further in 2021.

We have alse continued to offer our employees the
chance to learn more about the causes and sclulions
to the climate and ecological emergencies, with paid
courses from tha likes of Climate in Colour and lunch
and learn talks from Rewilding Britain, The Beaver Trust
and Clio.

the panoply /s

As part of our 1% pledge, employees are able to take
two days a year to dedicats to community action. Many
employees use this time for environmental activism.

Finally, we have partnered with the Make My Meney Matter
campaign to help apply pressure to our pension providers
to align individuals® investments with the Paris Agreement
targats.

falsing awarenscs

We need to use our position to raise awarenass Across our
whole sphere of influence, employees, clients, suppliers,
sharehclders and industry peers. We will continue to use
opportunities such as our annual report to write about
what we're doing and encourage others to share, copy
and augment.

We're also raising awareness by getting involved in
projects with industry bodies and education institutions
We have employees actively involved in raising awareness
of the environmental impact of digital industry via the
BIMA Sustainahility Council, the SDIA Roadmap and
whitepapers.

we briefed and mentored students from [oughborough
University London as part of their collaborative masters
project. Five tearmns chose to work on our briefing about
the envirenmental impact of the digital industry. This
oroject started in March 2021 and we won't see the results
until the summer of 2021, however it has already led to a
commitment from Loughborough University to work with
us to put the environmental impact of the digital industry
into the syllabus on relevant courses.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



We have also been leading the way with our clients We
have delivered projects which are actively addressing
the environmental impact of digital industry for both

The Climate Group and The National Trust, analysing the
barriers and opportunities for delivering local low carben
energy systerms for EmergentEnergy, recommending
and prototyping opportunities for local businesses in

the Oxferd Zero Emissions zone and running Blackpeol
Council's climate assemblies.

Our futurs amiit

Lzowing no oo

Our partriership with Emitwise opens up three crucial
opportunities.

1. We will become a net zerc company by 31 March 2027,
Tha definition we will abide by in terms of net zero,
will be the one defined by the Science Based Targets
Initiotive developed by the Carbon Disclosure Project.
Emitwise enables this reduction strategy by allowing
us to find the insights locked within our carbon data.

2. By 31 March 2023 we will have offset and/or captured
all of our historical scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions. The
benehmarks we now have for the financial years 19/20
and 20/21 allow us to calculate the carlbon footprint
we have been responsible for since the founding of all
of the companies that make up our group. Emissions
are a debt to the planet that we will pay back.

3. we will be as close to real-time carbon neutral as
rossible. Using our data integration with Emitwise to
caloulate our carbon footprint on a continual basis
will enable us to take more immediate, proactive
action on reduction and automate the offset and/for
capture of our emissions in as close to real time
as possible.

We firmly believe that every organisation must now
censider itself an envirenmental organisation, therefore
we will continue to push the boundaries of what an
organisation can do to medasure, reduce and offset

its footprint.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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ESG Report

com munity continusc

e o0 REE I :

Community

Equipping our communities with
future-proof skills

We are kickstarting one
thousand careers, investing
both our time and money in
activities that are equipping
our communities with the
skills they need to contribute
to and benefit from the fourth
industrial revolution.

the panoply

We believe that everyone should
have equal opportunities to
participate in the world that we are
helping to create. The tech sector is
growing at an exciting pace and we
need to make sure that there dre not
pockets of society that are locked
out of the industry through a lack of
investrment in future proof skills. That
is why we donate 1% of our pre-tax
profits ond 1% of our employees’ time
to invest in our local communities.

The Panaply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 3% March 2021



CAUSES SUPPORTED

SKILLS

kickstarted with future-proof skills

HOURS DONATED

1,654

donated to cormmunity action this year
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FUTURE LEADERS PROGRAMME

supported through our Future Leaders programme




ESG Report

Commu ﬂity continued

My expoerioneo on the programme has been
amaozing. Very mach ngedad rhiotivation and
support during Cowvid 19"

Marvin Onu

Community Action

We believe in the power of pecple to transform thelr
communities. That is why, as part of cur 1% pledge,

avery employee is targeted to donate atleast 1% of thoir
time each year to community action, helping to build
sustainable futures for people in the areas in which they
live and work. Although the recent restrictions have made
traditional volunteering more challenging, our people
have shown incredible creativity and determinatien to
suppert their communities this year.

This year 72 employees donated a total of 1864 hours to
community action, up from 904 hours last year.

some examples of community action projects
from this year

Employability workshops

In partnership with Radical Recruits

Helping job seekers froam marginalised communities to

get job-ready by supporting them with interview skills and
confidence.

Work Experience

In partnership with Kori

Giving diverse young people exposure to working within
a digital agency through digital work experience and
netwerking opportunities.

Coding Training
In partnership with Code Canteen

Connecting learners with mentors and providing o space
for anyone who is interested In coding to access advice
and support.

the panoply ./

“twanted contidence in myself and abilities as
arn entreprenesur. | expanded my network and
learnt how the rest of the world runs business.”

Mursal Saiq

"I'm no longer intirmidated by the things tdon't
know and | feel like i1 ready to conguer the next
phase of my busincss with frosh ayes.”

Taylor Semelsberger

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Community Action Grants

Our most active volunteers ecch year are offered an
opportunity to apply for a Community Action Grant. To
provide an additional beost to charities and initiatives that
they are already supporting through community action,
wae provided any member of the Group who contributed
rmora than 18 hours, access to one of five £1000 grants to
donate to a charity of their choice,

Community Grants delivered in FY2021;

Asthma UK / British Lung Foundation Partnership
Spitalfields Crypt Trust
Rewilding Britain

+  Caldecott foundation

. Cots for Tots

Community investment

This year, we donated £33,930 to charities local to whers
our employees live and work in line with 1% of our pre-tax
profit pledged from FY20. Many of these donations were
directed by employees through cur community action
grants and Christmas Give programmes. We understand
that alarge part of the vatue that we can offer to
beneficiaries comeas from our expertise, services and time,
which is why we try to leverage all of cur investments with
additional non-financial support.

Our community investment strategy {ooks to equip
communities with future-preof skills by kickstarting digital
careers. To date we have helped to kickstart 802 careers™
(258 in FY21) and plan to reach 1000 by 2023 We support
o portfolio of programmes that focus on both scale

and depth of impact. We regularly deliver interventions
that dedicate dozens of hours of support to a singla
beneficiary, favouring transformative impact over light-
touch initiatives.

* carear kekstarted = Tunique benahciary from our community
action ar comnrnity investment programmes who hos benahtted
frarm at least | hour of skil's development tramning.

The Pancply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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ESG Report

Commu ﬁity continued

Future Leaders

The pilot of the Future Leaders programme launched
in Gctobar 2019, and since then wea have receved 180
applications und supporied 10 Future Leaders over two
cohorts. The programme was created with a mission
to shake up the boardrooms of temorrow by investing
in underrepresented entrepreneurs today It seeks out
talented young business owners and provides them
with expertiss, mentorship, networks and support
needad for them to succassfully develop themselves
and their company

Diversity of applications:

78%
Disability 27%
Low SER 67%

The 2020 programme was designed to help developing
businesses facing challenges caused by the Covid-19
pandermic and was delivered completely remotely for
the first time Successful participants were offered a
weekly stipend, financial support te equip their home
office space, a1 hisiness coach, weekly professional
development workshops and the chrinea tn piteh o
real investors at the end of the programme

the panoply//
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ESG Report

Community continued

Nabeeha

Arkwright Engineering Scholar

in order to achieve our diversity ambitions we need to

be affecting change much earlier in the talent pipeiine.

In addition to the community action weork that we do in
schools, we partnered with Arkwritght Scholars for the first
time to sponsor our own Engineering Schelar through their
further education

Nabeeha is a talented young woman, attending a state
secondary school in the UK and studying for her A Levels.
She has already received mentorship from a number

of employees from the group with expertise in Artificial
Intelligence and Robotic Process Automation and is
currently working on her first paper on the Environmenital
Impact of the Tech Industry under our guidance.

Christmas Give

Every December the Group makes a donation on behalf
of every employee to c charity chosen by themn. Through
this initigtive last year we donated £7,350 to the following
charities:

In Norwesy

Dyrebeskyttelsen Norge is a nationwide animal welfare
organization warking to ensure that animals are treated
with respect and compassion.

Flyktninghjelpen helps paople on the run all over the world,
providing, among other things, food, shelter, clean water,
legal aid, and education to refugees

the panoply

In Bulgaria
Redom is an organisation dedicated to fighting animal
cruclty in Bulgaria.

Time Heroes is a platform for voluntgering and doing good.

WhereToNow is a charity supporting young people from
low-income families or without parents to continue their
education and find a job.

In the UK
Refuge is the world’s first safe house for women and
children escaping domestic viclence in Chiswick

CALM or The Carmpaign Against Living Miserably is leading
a movement against suicide.

Gitls Qul loud is a UK based social enterprise set up in
2010 with the aim of raising the aspirations of young girls
between the ages of 13-18 by facilitating intervention
programmes in schools.

Rewilding Britain is an organisation aiming to reinstate
natural processes and reintroduce missing species in
Britain.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Campany number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Somc of the organisations we are
proud to have supported this year.
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L5G Report connnp’
PI’OSperit\/ continued

Prosperit

Delivering impactful work

Our people are deﬁ'\/eria‘wg We understand that our biggest irnpoct

i p(JCTfLH Cﬂgi‘t@i comes from the work that we do vy:th

» N : o our clients. The products and services

tra rﬂ_’SfO[ IT}GTIOD eye: yaay, that we are putting out into the world

radically improving the have the potential to make population-

satvices that matter scale impacts on our communities. We
take this responsibility very seriously and
are conscious of the need to ensure our
work is always aligned with our purpose
and vaiues.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply/ Cempany number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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'ESG Report

- Prospeér__it?y continued

Ten of our most impactful projects
Radically Improving the Services that matter

We are improving people’s lives by making the services that they rely on more efficient and more effective. Through
digital transformation we help our clients to deliver more impact, more effectively and at a fraction of the cost.

We are heleing governments and crganisctions to tackle complex and pressing soclal issues, reshaping the way our

communities operate.

#1 Understanding the skills
& capabilities needed to
set the safety tech sector
up for success

[ )
4,

Department
for Culture
Media & Sport

#2 Understanding resident
need in a crisis: supporting
Camden Council’s
response to Covid-19

the panoply//

Vhy does it matter

As internet use grows, s too does the
potential to inflict harm on users The
safety tech sector provides solutions
to protect users from online harms,
and it's growing rapidly, expecting to
see Clbon revenue by 2024 |t will need
the nght people, with the right skills
and capabilities, in order to create and
sustain that growth.

How did weo impro e it?

Our recommendations for gavernmeant
and industry are designed to ensure
that (1} safety tech has access to

the technology telent it needs; (2}

the workforce represents the people
safety tech protects, (3) data privacy
and security are prioritised and (4}
users are kept at the centre of product
development.

why does it matter?

Camden Counci! recognised early
that when facing the community-wide
and long-term chollenges of COVID-18,
aradically different appraach

was needed Working with council
colleagues, we enhanced existing
services; focused on early intervention
and prevention, and strengthened
through partnership across council
services and VCS to meet resident
needs and identify future needs

Moy dicd we improwo it?

We identified situations that could lead
people Lo need support as a result of
Covid-18. wWe mapped food services

ta reduce food poverty, built o service
dircctory helping residents find services
and built Beacon, enabling councils to
copture resident needs, connecl them
1o support and ensure needs are mcet.

who does it matter to?

The project audicnce is government
and the safety tech industry; the
recommendations willimpact any
citizens vulnerable te online harms.

Why wae thisiodisat?

The challenges safety tech faces -
diversity, tolent, privacy — are shared
across tech, but experiencedtoa

more prassing degree by this sector.
DCMS and safety tech businesses are
implementing the scaffolding for this
young sector to become an exernplar
for the industry, while supporting its fast
yet sustainable growth

Who does it maiter m?

This work had the most direct impact
to Camden residents, but sets an
example to wider public sector
organisations locking to replicate and
build a radically new approach to true
collaborative working acrass council
services and with the voluntary and
community sector to create the best
autcomes for their places.

Why was this radica®

This work dllowed staff to coordinate
and deliver support at pace and scale,
designing a truly multidisciplinary
team approach with functionalities

to collaborate with VCS crgonisations
and increase capacity for support, and
ultimately, understand people’s needs
holistically, cnsuring they get the right
support from the right service at the
earliast opportunity.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



#3 Fully managed laas/
Paas for Rural Payments
CAP platform (Common
Agricultural Policy)

|
! Rural Payments
| Agency

#4 A sustainable Drupal 9
web build for the Climate
Group

THE
‘CLIMATE
GROUP

Why does it ratters

The faled implementation of the new
digital-by-default online service, left
the RPA with problems such as;

AN T Solution requinng 300
concurrent users, consistently
crashing at just 21 logons

No Disuster Recovery or Business
Continuity Environments

20+ uncontrolled environments and
teams inherited, with total run rate of
£34M pla

How did vem improve it

Through our design, build and
transformation led programme we
delivered a system architecture and
perfermance that could support over
3,000 concustent users (I0x the original
requirement} by the claims window
period time frame

Why does It malier?

Website users have no say in how much
energy o website eats up Soitwas
down to our developers to set a new
standard. Putting the envirecnment at
the heart of the project we re-shaped
the criteria of what really makes for a
'successful’ website.

How did wo improwvzit?

Emissions have decreased by a
projected 91% across the sites, and
page weights cut by 50% In turn,
average page load time has halved,
increasing the website's overcll SEC
and security rankings. As aresult, more
than 200 trees can fotus on emissions
elsewhere for the next year

Who daoes it matte: tor

The Rural Payments Agency (RPA) is an
executive agency of the UK Department
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
{Detra). The RPA delivers the Eurapean
Union (EU} Common Agricultural Policy
{caP) payments to farmers and traders
in England, paying out cver £2 billion

in subsidies each year across 80,000+
claimants

Wiy e as this radie o'

This poorly performing and expensive
system was re-architecled,
transformed, migrated and then
optimised for performance and value,
resulting in a highly performant,

high capacity platform with

significant improvement over original
requircments and an annual iun cost of
£5 BM, saving £28.8M pfa

wiio does IUmatler o?

with the digitatindustry emitting more
carbon than the aviation industry, this
project opproach should be considered
by any organisaticn locking to not only
rebuild, but improve their web estate

Why was this radical?

We embarked on what might just be
one of the world's first ever sustainable
web builds. Changing our approach
led to radical new approaches, such
as rewriting our Drupal templates,
rebuitding the video player, replacing
it with static images in order to prevent
YouTube scripts from loading, and
rebranding to o much darker pallet

to conserve energy produced by LED
screens.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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'ESG Report

Prosperity «

#5 Translating u social
mission into an immersive
online learning experience

0 S

#6 Delivering home
testing kits to NHS staff

X

the panoply s/

Wiy Clogs 1T ratlen ¥

The learning platform had to be
interactive, engaging and accessible,
but mostly, it had to maintain the
human element of the in-person trips.
This project is the first step forward

in working with new and emerging
technologics, with exciting plans to
combine the digital experience with the
phystcal trips when Lhey continue

How did we mprove it?

Students can take part inlive seminars
guided by experts on the Holocaust.
Content includes a first-hand testimony
from a Holocaust survivor, a virtual site-
visit to Auschwitz-Birkenau Memorial
and Museurn os it is teday, and voice
recognition-based Q&As. Over 400
students have enrclled since its launch
in March.

Why does It muttery

During the early weeks of the Covid-19
pandemic, large numbers of key
workers, up to 40% of staff in some
crganisations, were self-isolating with
covid-tike symptoms. This threatened
the effectiveness of some key front-line
organisations

Hon did we improve it?

Within just 8 days we'd led a leam

to deliver the end-to-end service on
gov.uk enabling citizens to request
tests which were dispatched froma
distribution centre overnight In the first
12 weeks our service had distributed
over 1 million test kits to UK citizens

Who does 1T maiter toy

Getting the basics right whils pushing
the boundaries of an online learning
experienca cnsures the core messages
are lifted beyond the confines of

a laptop screen. The platform has
reduced barriers to access HET's
learning material and effectively
extended the reach and influence

of this ¢harity and therr imporlant
message.

Why was Lhis radhical*

This marks the first time HET has
digitised an offline exporience; making
it instanlly more accessible Light page
loads will allow students to access the
platform on-site when in-person trips
resume. Digitising the administrative
process supports a higher intake, vital
to continuc the tecachings around the
tragedy that s the Holocoaust.

Who does iTntis 1o?

Getting PCR tests to key workers who
were self-isolating allowed thase who
tested negative for Covid-12 toreturn to
work earlier.,

Why was this radico’?

Building a crilical national service

that also interfaces to a physical
supply network and thal scales to
handle the demands of being the

lead slory across the entire UX media

is not something that can usually be
accornplished within a small number of
days in a complex central government
department

The Panoply Holdings Flc
Company number; 10533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



#7 Connecting vulnerable
citizens with supermarkets
to access priority delivery
slots

Department
{or Environment

Food & Rural Affairs

#8 A partnership
approach to supporting
seven district and borough
councils and one county
council to combine,

saving money and putting
residents’ needs at the
heart of two new unitary
authorities.

FUTURE

’,' NORT AN 5

Why does it matter?

This was a gignificant part of the
government response to Covid
providing nceessary support to
vulnerable people unabls to food shop
or use online services during lockdown/
shielding periods

Howe d'd voednmiprove it

Working directly with Defra, our
stokeholders, local authorilies, and
retalders, our collaberative approach
quickly identified lhe core needs of
the users and we developed the initial
portal within 48 hours of receiving the
requiremant The portal itself was in
Pradluction in & days having traversed
governance, security control and o GDS
assessmanl

Mivy doet b matter®

This Northamptenshire local
government reorgonisation creates two
of the largest new unitary authorities in
the country North Northamptonshire
Council and west Morthamptonshire
Council quickly launched two new
minimum viable websites, creating
strong digital foundations that help
resicdents find information, easily
access services and form part of more
complex restdent experience.

How did we improve it?

Working in a multidisciplinary team, we
did a rapid discovery and analysis of
eight existing web estates, undertaking
research and testing with over 400
residents. With their insight, we created
a golid design system for two new
council websites. The public Beta
version in March, scoring 10010 for
accessibility.

Who doas itmatter to?

Allindividuals who were classified as
vulnerable and shielding during the
pondemic

Wy wias this sadical®

Engaged by Defra to rapidly respond to
the Covid-18 pandemic We needed to
assemble a team and produce a portal
allowing for the referral within 7 days.
The service was specifically mentioned
by ministers during the daily briefings
to the UK and two of our team received
MBE's for services.

Whodoss iwmatter o7

Local authorities looking to reorganise
in their place, save money and fully
accessible develop digital platforms
that tegether, create services that are
useful for residents.

Wiy was this e

Wast Narthamptonshire Council and
Narth Northamptonshire Council
websitos went ive on 1 April 2021 Lo
coincide with the official vesting day of
the new authorities. Residents found the
Beta websites clean and casy to use,
ensuring the best possible ocutcome for
residents, local businesses and council
staff

The Panoply Holdings Pl
Company number: 10533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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#Y A child-friendly design
and platform experience
for the Child Exploitation
and Online protection
Command {CEOP)

NCA

National Crime Agency

the panoply”

Wiy daes it mattery

Thinkuknow is an educaction
programme designed o prolecl
children both online and offline The
new website design needed to be a fun
and engaging tool for children to use,
reinforcing the message Lhat they can
always talk to a trusted adult if thoy focl

inany way distressed or uncomfortable.

It also needed to empower parents
and carers to have online safety
conversations with 4 - 7 year olds

Hove did v imipnove t?

we developed a gamified experience
for children using animation and
interaction. We enabled the children
to win badges and print certificates
that they could colour in and keep.
We created four badges to cover the
four scenarios children are exposed
to; sharing pictures, playing games,
watching videos and chatting online.
Collecting stars and badges helped
to keep them engaged, and created g
perseonal experience for each child,

Wi does [T imatiter to?

4 -7 year old children who usc

pheones, tablets or computers were

the primary audience, and parents,
carers or teachers having online safety
conversations with children are the
secondary audience

Why was this radiza »

we created tailored interviews for
each user group, including o child
psycholagist, 4-7 year olds, parents,
and teachers. We tested an early
prototype with our subject children
in order to establish the right tone for
the audience. Not only did the results
from the prototype inforrm our design
direction, but the children were alsc
heard asking their parents when they
could use the website again.

The Panoply Holdings Ple
Company number: 10533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



#10 Empowering
consumers by tackling
unfair business behaviour
during the pandemic

CMA

Competition & Markets Authority

Wiy dogs 1T miditery

Unfortunately some businesses have
trealed consumers unfairly during the
Coronavirus pandemic, e.g by gouging
prices or unreasonably refusing
refunds. Our service has collated
evidence from ~140k people, providing
resources to seck support and enabling
high-prefile cases against businesses
guaranteeing refunds of over £245
million by holiday and event providers.

Howe did we improve it?

We rapicly developed « service,
replacing a form that could not cope
with the higher-than-expected volumes
of traffic. It was deployed within a week
using the GDS frent end and has been
continuously itoratod to botter meot
Lha needs of consumers and provide
evidence for the CMA's actions

Wiho does 1T mdatter io®

This service supports the general
public s consumers, and particularly
vulnerable groups

Why weas this radicas

We first spoke ta the CMA on Friday 27
March, and launched the service on
03 April. Between its launch and 03
May, there were ~31,000 submissions.
The peak was 8,874 entries in one day
This service is stillin use and has now
received ~140k submissions

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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ESG Report

- Prosperity continued

BREAKDOWN OF INCOME
RY SECTOQR

b IR

T
e s 29%

Employment and Wealth Generation

The Panoply’s workforce has continued to grow at a rapid
pace. We are providing well paid, decent jobs across

the group. All of cur employees are paid the living wage,
Indeed our UK median salary was almost three times the
UK living wage last year at £28.01. Qur CEOMedian wage
ratio 1s low at 4.71" and we invested over £24m in
employee compensation and benefits. We crealed

55 brand new jobs excluding acquisitions in FY21 We will
look to increase this significantly over the coming years
in line with cur organic growth strategy and intention to
reduce reliance on contractors which currently make up
25% of the workforce

Employee Cwnership

At The Panoply we support the principle of wider share
ownership amongst all of our celleagues. To help our
employees acquire shares in a tax efficient way, we
introduced a Share Incentive Plan (SIP) in January 2021,
As of March 21 we had 85 unique volunteers registered
in the scheme

The SIP was designed to enable employees to contribute
up to £1,800 per year through salary sacrifice and
purchase shares in the group. To reward employees and
provide additional benefit The Pancply matches the
purchase of thesc shares on all basis.

the panoply//

BREAKDOWN OF INCOME BY
SUE SECTORE

2485

a1 Th 9%

FAdi ol 4

- it 29%

CFE14%

Client Disclosure

The core purpose of The Group is to deliver impactful
work, responsibly. With this in mind, it is impaortant that

we start medasuring the impact of our client work and
making sure that it supports both our cormmercial and
impact ambitions. This year we have worked to develop a
framework for dealing with controversicl client sectors so
that we can ensure that the work we do always aligns to
our values, ethics and ambitions.

To ensurs that we are accountable and responsible for
the work that we do, we will publish any revenue from
controversial sectors each year in our client disclosure
report. Last year 1.8% of our revenue came from sactors
deemed as potentially controversial by the International
Finance Corporation and ethical investrment criteria.

The Panoply Holdings Pic
Cempany number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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ESG Report

Governance continued

Governance

Underpinning everything with
strong principles of governance

We are committed to operating
proper standards of good corporate
governance and have established a
corporate governance model based
on the key principles of the Quoted
Companies Alliance Corporate
Governance Code ("QCA Code”}.

the panoply.”/

The Panoply Holdings plc operates a
business model and growth strategy
that promotes the generation

of shareholder value through its
growth. The company promotes
professionalism, openness, honesty
and integrity between its customers,
staff, shareholders and supptiers

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Risk and Risk Management

The success of the Group depends on the proper management of risk. The Group has a governance structure to identify
and monitor relevant risks at both a subsidiary and a Group level The risks identified are ranked by likelinood and
potential impact, ther tracked through monthly board meetings. Once risks are identified, the Group will formulate and
deploy mitigating stratagies.

The principal risks and uncertainties that the Board believed could have a significant adverse impact on the Group’s
business are set out below. The table is not intended te be exhaustive and the principal risks are not listed in order of
seriousness or potential impact. There may also be risks that are not currently considered to be serious or which are
currently unknown and risks that are outside of the Group’s control. Where reasonably possible, The Panoply has taken
steps to manage or mitigate the risks, or potential risks, but it cannot entirely safeguard against all of them.

Disruption and
uncertainty
due tothe
Covid-19
pandemic

Customers: The ongoing Covid-18 pandemic
has resulted in changes to custemer
behaviours, impacting demand in various
industries and resulted in fiscal interventions
by Governments.

Over 70% of the Group’s revenue is generated
from public services. As the world starts to
return to normalcy, UK Government budget
constraints may lead to reduced spending
in core markets in which we cperate. This will
result in the Group's clients being forced to
respond to such circumstances by reducing
their digital transformation and non-essential
consulting budgets, thereby reducing the
demand for the Group's services, ar putting
pressure on price for services.

People: Covid-19 has impacted the heolth,
emotional and mental wellbeing of emnployees
due to physical isclation for a long period. If
large numbers of amployees are affected,

it could result in business disruption and
necessitate higher spends for ensuring
Business resiliency.

The Group is committed to delivering a
great service to clients which will provide an
impactful outcome to our clients problams

The Group has been focusing on relaticnships
with clients and obtaining feedback with
regards to their concarns in arder to ensure
that the right contracts are in place to meet
the needs of both parties given the constraints
in place.

Focus on diversification of client base into
other areas of public services.

Group-wide massage te all employess to
provide assurance that during the pandemic,
their hedalth and well-being is of paramount
importance. This was demonstrated by

our quick response to the pandemic,
implementing a work-from-home policy prior
to government guidance to do so

Use of rmentaol heatth first aiders Lo Inform how
we can best support team members through
this uncertain period.

An employee assistance programme has
been implemented throughout the Group.

The Panaoply Holdings Plc

Company number: 10533086
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Risk an

continued

The Groupis
embarking

on a business
model change
programme
that will
impact ail
areas of the
business

Identification
and
integration of
investment
opportunities

Qceupational
health &
safety with
new working
from home
patterns

Inability
to recruit
and retain
adiverse
workforce

the panoply//

e

et

Customers: There is a risk that this will impact
processes around delivery and operations

as time consumed by various necessary

ut additional projects from group disrupts
commercial or delivery performance and if
appropriate hand offs at each stage of the
change is not considered.

People: There is a risk that this willimpact the
retention of people if there is not a detailed
plan for execution and appropriate change
management.

The Group's strategy Is to grow both
organically and through acguisitions

There is a risk that failure to complete on
transactions will leave the Group with
substantial unrecovered costs, ar that a
company that has been successfully acquired
does not integrate effectively leading to the
loss of synergies and disiliusionment of our
people.

We have less control over whether the working
environments of our emgloyees are safe and
appropriate.

This could lead to injuries for our employees
and liability which may not be covered by our
insurance policies

The quality of the services provided by the
Group's businesses are fundamentally derived
from the quality of the Group's people.

The Group's performance could therefore be
adversely affected if it is not able to recruit,
train and retain key talent inthe Group's
businesses and at the Group level

The Group believes that the business model
change programme should invelve feedback
from our pecple in the organisation to be a
SUCCESS.

We have ensured through caraful project
planning that there will be no disruption to
commercial or delivery performance during
this period.

Group is investing in people management,
with the recruitment of a Group People
Director who will focus on the employee value
proposition for the Group. The Group aims for
all employees to find and work towards their
lkigai [ purpose.

Focus on incentivising employees through
benefits offered by the Group, such as SIR,
share options, EV scheme and ongoing
support through the pandemic

The Group has a comprehensive M&A process
to ensure that companies who join the Group
aligns with the Groups'’ purpose, values and
vision; adds strategic value to the Group and
strengthens our proposition adding greater
depth or brecdth and hos leaders who can
work collaboratively.

Cnece companies are part of the Group, the
Group integrates the newly-merged company
into its standard monthly reporting cycle
where {financial) risks, if any, are identified.

Cceupational health surveys and guidance
distributed to employees and financial
suppert given to improve home office set-ups.

Our godl is to have a diverse workforce that
replicates the diversity of where we cperate.

The Group puts culture and purpase in

the forefront of what we do {o become an
employee of choice for ernployees. Wa
actively set our KPIs te focus on the diversity of
our workforce and managed the KPIs with the
same prominence as our financial KPls.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Breach

of legal,
regulatory and
contractual
information
security and
data privacy
legislation

Cyber security
risk

Impact of
inflation

Competitors
with the ability
to undercut
our businesses

Non-compliance could expose the Group to
liability ond fines (for example under GDPR),
and negatively impact profit and cash flow in
the shert term, cause reputational damage
and damage customer relationships and
credibility in the market

The Group relies upon the confidentiality,
integrity and availability of its IT systems
internally and as part of its service offerings
to customers. Cyber security events are
occurring more frequently, and attacks are
designed with greater complexity

A major cyber security event causing loss of
availability or loss of customer data could
limit the Groups’ operations, expose the Group
to fines and cause reputational damage,

and damage customer relationships due to
reduced credibility in the market

Inereasing cost of workforce (employees as
well as contracters) resulting in a squeeze in
marging

The Group's compelilors nclude large
consultancies and technology companies, as
well as smafler niche companies.

Itis part of the Group's strategy to exploit the
current disruption of the digital transformation
services industry and to focus on working with
clients to meet their noeds.

The Group reviews the impact of new
information security and data privacy
regulations and legislation on the Group and
its customers. The output of these reviews
influgnces the Group’s internal controls

and processes and the design of products,
solutions and working practices.

Cyber security threats are monitored by each
individual cornpany and any risks of cyber
security are communicated througheut the
whole group on atimely basis

Focus on gress mardins and operating costs
to understand the reasons for decrease in
margins. These wilt be discussed with the CFCs
of each Group company and an action plan
agreed.

Recruitment within the Financial Planning
& Analysis are of Financee to focus on data
analysis and forecasting.

The Group is focused on delivering first class
services to clients and working hand-in-hand
with clients to meet their needs.

we believe that the way we provide services
sets us apart from competitors so that our
clients con see the value of the work that we
perform.

We continue to monitor the bid to win ratios to
identify potential risks.

The Panoply Holdings Pic
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Sectuon 1/2

SiTiant

The dlrectors of The Panoply and all those of alt UK
Companies must act in accordance with a set of general
dutics. Section 172 of the Companies Act requires Directors
o take into consideration the interests of stakeholders in
their decision making and is summarised as follows:

“& Director of @ company must act in a way they consider,
in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success
of the company for the benefit of its shareholders as
awhole and, in doing so have regard {amongst other
matters) to:

The likely consequences of any decisions in the long-
term

+  Theinterests of the company’'s employees

+  Theneed to foster the company’s business
relationships with suppliers, customers and others

«  Theimpact of the company's operations on the
community and environment

The desirability of the company maintaining a

reputation for the high standards of business conduct,

and

+  The needto act fairly between shareholders of the
company

This section serves as our Section 172 statement,

The Board considers, beth individually and together,

that they have acted in the way they consider, in good
faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the
Company for the benefit of its shareowners as a whole
{having regard to the stakehalders and matters set out in
secticn 172{i)}{a-f) of the Act in the denisions taken during
the year ending 3t March 2021).

Qun Vigion: lmi
ft.*—[ angibly deftvored, at o
The Board recognises that engqgement with the
Compgany's stakeholders is critical to the success of the
business in reatising this vision. The Directers continue
to have regards to the interest of our people and the
Company's other stakeholders, including the impact of
its activities on the community, the environment and
the Company’s reputation when making decisions. We
recognise that promoting the long-term sustainability and
success of the Company is intertwined with creating value
for, and engagement with, our stakeholders. It should
therefore be al the core of our business.

Engagement with stakeholders is not new and has been a
part of the business since its inception, but the obligation
to include the Section 172 statement presents an

the panoply/+

opportunity to iliustrate to you how your Board engages
with stakeholders and how this has impacted on your
Company's decisions and strategies.

The Directors are fully aware of their responsibilities to
promote the success of the Company in accordance
with Section 172 of the Act. Our intention is to behave
responsibly and ensure that management operotes
the business in a responsible manner, operating within
the high standards of business conduct and good
governance expected of us

ment with Siakehaldars
holderz

We understand that the success of our business is
intrinsically linked to the impact we have on our people,
planet and the communities we work with and for.

From our clients, suppliers, our people, our shareholders
and our planet, building strong effective relationships and
engaging regularly is imperative to our continued success
and impact.

Effective stakeholder engagement builds trust,
strengthens our legitimacy as o socially responsible
business and supports our efforts to develop and
implement effective solutions to bulld sustainable futures
for our people, planet and communities.

Car Clinnts

In 2020, averything we tock for granted was upended.
The way society and communities worked, learnt and
interacted was transformed overnight How people
shopped, socialised and entertained changed radically,
and the nature of work changed in a few short hours

Hirswe eng rou clis

Covid=19 required us to plvot how we supported and
engaged with our clients from a physical to 100%
virtuol presence overnight.

We were committed to being part of the solution at g
tirne where our clients were focused on saving lives
and delivering crilical services This enabled us to
build relationships that will grow for years to come.

+ We continuously evolved how we communicate and
deliver our services based on client feedback.

For some clients, we co-locate or embed our peopls,
which helps facllitates clear communication,
collabaration and teamwork.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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The change in working enabled us to support our clients
during some of the toughest periods ever experienced,
this proximity ta cur clients has led to some incredible
work.

Delivering the ventilator Dashboard The Department of
Business, Energy and Industrial Strotagy (BEIS) was asking
businesses to offer their support in the production of
ventilators and ventlator components. They wanted to
quickly put up aform to collect businesses’ information
after the relevant call centres and email accounts were
overloaded. we delivered this form live in one day.

O Sharah

by

Sere

Our focus is 1o ensures that all of our shargholders are
treated equally and fairly, so that they may fully benefit
from our continued successful execution against both cur
impact and commercial vision We believe it is important
that our shareholders understand and support what

we are trying to achieve as we rely on their continued
confidence to support our growth activities.

Here: gofe vty o shidiieh ol

Covid-18 required us to adapt how we engage and
continue to build our relationships with our Shareholders
Investor roadshows became virtual and investor events
moved to online platforms. This change enabled us to
see more of our shareholders, more regularly and provide
them greater levels of detail oround our ocperations and
the impact we were having on cur people, planet and
communities we operated In.

This year we engaged with our shareholders through
various channels, mainly:

. Investor rocadshows

. AGM, which the Chairman, Non-Executive and
Executive Directors attend to ensure engagement with
a broad range of shareholders

- Stock exchange announcements, increased regularity
during early stages of the pandemic to provide
shareholders the most up to date status of the group

Annual report

Retail Investor events, Including Mallo, Investor Maet
Company and Pl World

The Directors have regular contact with existing
sharehelders and potential investors in The Panoply. Neal
Gandhi and Oliver Rigbycommunicate via email, calls and
face-to-face meetings with shareholders.

Following our Hl Interim results in November we conducted
a virtual readshow that took place across two weaeks,
providing the oppartunity to engage with existing and
potentiol new shareholders.

L 21 Gt
Following the Novernber roadshow the Company
successfully completed a secondary sale of 2,761,849
existing ordinary shares of £0.01 each in the Company.
The Sale Shares represented approximately 4.0% of the
Company’s issued shares at the time.

Gl GRamEios

our services to our custemers and to maintam our

productivity. They have regard to several factors when
considering a business relationship with The Panoply,
including; the success of our business, developing long
term relationships, trust and credibility, ethics (Including
anti-corruption and bribery, human rights and maodern
slavery).

CrinaL s

F_:-\salr}r;--‘

We are committed to bullding strong working relaticnships
with our suppliers and business partners. It is the
responsibility of all our employees to engage directly with
our suppliers and business partners to ensure we are
aligned on quality, ethics, innovation and delivery.

Inline with our consolidation focus, we appointed a Group
Strategic Partnerships Director, responsible for the Group’s
relationships with Micrasoft, Amazon (AWS) and Google
(GCP). Cur relationships with these key technology parties
are critical ta the Group's continued success.

Enionz 0.

The Group recently attained o Microsoft Gold Cloud
Platform competency, demonstrating a “best-in-

class” ability and commitment to meet Microsoft Corp
custemers’ evolving neads in today's mobile=first, cloud-
first world as well as distinguishing itself within Microsoft's
partner ecosystem. Becoming o Microsoft Gold Partner
will allow the Group to combine strengths with Microsoft,
speeding up deployment and imprevement of Microseft
Azure environments.

5

The Panoply Heldings Plc
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Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Section 172

continuad

Nn‘r

Our People:

We understand how important it is to have a workforce
with different skills, perspectives and experiences. Across
the Group, we are making sure that our workplaces are
inclusive and supportive encugh to attroct the diversity of
talent that will enable us to grow.

Hovowo engage with our people

»  Provision of mental health first aiders
«  Monthly feedback loops

- Employee Assistance Program (EAP)
+  Employee Forums

»  Employee Resource Groups (ErGs)

2020 put many pressures on our people, none that
could have been foreseen. Our priority was to support
our peopla and their families in any way we could. We
encouraged open dialogue between employees and
rmanagers, and ensured teams had the resources to
manage any issues they faced.

We set up mental haalth first aiders, an employee
assistance programme and supported our employees
with young children through childcare company
Grandnanny, providing lree care o parents when
nurseries and schools were closed.

Engogoment Guiconia examphes
Details on the engagement with our people can be found

in our dedicated people section, please see pages 38
to 47.

the panoply/”

O Ha =W

The environmental impact of the digital industry has been
vastly underestimated. With a carbon footprint today
equal te the aviation industry, we want to raise awareness
of this and work with cur industry to minimiss its impact.

We believe that there is a better, more sustainable way to
da business. We're investing in training and research to
build teams of technology experts within the Group who
deeply understand the environmental impact of digital
products and are able to design and advocate for better
alternatives.

AU te R AL I L FERTRES =

- Partnerships with NGOs including Ecclogi and
Rewilding Britain

+  Membership of Sustainable Digital Infrastructure

Alliance

«  Membership of BIMA Sustainability Council

This year we have partnered with Emitwise, a technology
platform that helps us monitor and track cur carbon
footprint in real time. This partnership provides us the
capabilities to deliver against our vision of becoming real-
time carlbon neutral by 2023,

Alongside tracking our carbon, we have continued our
rollout of web Browser Ecosia, which has now heilped
finance over 750 trees, Ecologi on their Gold Standard
offsetting program and have implemented a Elsctric
vehicle Leasing Scheme through Octopus EV to enable our
employees to switch to green energy transport.

B FeaiT i e

Our approach to the planet challenges the status quo for
businesses. Wa go beyond the minimum that is required

of us as an organisation, prioritising not only how we can

mitigate our environmental impact, but alse bring about

positive change too.

Details on the engogement with our planet can be found
in our dedicated planet section, plegse see pages 48
to 55

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533046
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Our Communities:

During periods of upheaval, communities face the
threat of being left behind. We wanl Lo ensure those
communities not only thrive now, but also have a
meaningful stake in the future. Cur work is transforming
the way that businesses operate, ensuring that we are
equipping people with the skills they need to thrive in the
future workplace.

Our community iInvestment work is focused on
empowering vuinerable comrmunities through technology
and providing access to employment for diverse talent.

Engagement
+  Partnership with ADA National College for Digital Skills

+  Participants and alumni of Future Leaders
programme

Purposefully investing time and energy and empowering
the communities in which we live and work is at the very
heart of what we do. Although the restrictions last year
made community action more challenging, people
acrass the Group had some incredible opportunities to
get involved digitally.

As part of our 1% time pledge, every employee can spend
2 days each year participating in community action in
the form of voluntary and pro-bono work fur charities or
charitable organisations or on a project with a specific
charitable aim, either organised by the company or
employee.

Engagement outcome: examples

Details on the engagement with our communities can be
found in our dedicated communitios section, please see
pages 56 to 63.

The Panaply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Board of Directors

rMark Willian §mith, aged 66
Non-Executive Chairman
Mark has held several senior roles in creative and
innovative communication businesses. He began his
career as a chartered accountant at Touche Ross

& Co. {Deloitte). He then spent 20 years at Chime
Communications, which was acquired by Providence
Private Equity in 2015.

Mark is currently Chairman of Holiday Extras, a market
leader in the provision of online ancillary travel services,
where he has been Chairman for 5 years and Non-
Executive Diractor for 18. He is also Chairman of Merit
Group Plc (Previously The Dods Group), an AlM listed
intelligence, medig, training and events company,
operating in over 50 countries. Mark is also non-executive
Chairman of The Unlimited marketing Group a private
equity owned marketing services group.

the panoply//

Neal is a serial tech entreprenaur having co-founded four
companies that exited successfully with a combined value
of £l17m. He co-founded his first company at the age of 21
and, under the brand name of Jungle.com, that company
went on to be sold to GUS for £37m.In 1996 he co-founded
Xplora and sold it to Nasdag-listed USWeb in 1998.

Neal then co-founded Attenda, a managed services
consultancy that went on to be sold for £72m; one part

to Telecity Plc and the other to Darwin Private Equity. in
2006 he founded QuickStart Global, an offshara IT service
provider, which grew rapidly, and in 2010 was listed in the
Sunday Times Tech=Track 100 at number 3, his second
company in that list with Attenda having been listed at
number 2in 2001

Cliver qualified as an dccountant with MRI Moores
Rowland LLP in 2006 before spending six years as an
adviser in corporate finance with Danfel Stewart and
Deloitte. Oliver acted as a Nominated Adviser to the AlM
Market of the London Stock Exchange and was one of their
youngest Qualiied Executives.

Prior to co-founding The Panogly, Oliver set up Growth
Company FD Limited in 2012 to provide part-time CFOG and
corporate finance support to growing businesses.

Other Roles: Company Secretary

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Hon-Executive Director

Chris quelified as a chartered accountant with KPMG
before spending 8 years overseas in a variety of financial
roles with PepsiCo Inc. In 1988 when he was CFO for the
Central Europe Beverages Division, he was recruited by
WPP to be part of their small central team.

Chiris retired from his role as WPP Deputy Group Finance
Director in 2018 having spent 27 years helping build the
cornpany and having been invelved in all aspects of
operations, investor relations and the many acquisitions
that built that group. Chris also represented WFP on the
boards of a number of companies both in the UK and
overseds.

Other Roles: Chairman of the Audit, Risk and AIM Rules and
Compliance Committes

ol
& 1
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Non-Exgscutive RDirectar

Isabel is the founder of Profit with Purpose, o social
purpose consultancy working with companies and
nenprofits She is also an Industry Careers Advisor for MBA
students at the Said Business School, focused on social
impact.

In 2002 Marec Benioff, CEC of Salesforce.com, hired Isabef
to establish the Salesforce Foundation internationalky
(now Salesforce.crg). For 12 years she grew and led an
international team delivering technology, grants and
programmes in 110 countries, as well as generating
revenue of $12m to fund the work Isabel worked ot Oxfam
and Amnesty International for 12 years prior to joining
Salesforce.

Other Roles: Chairrman of the ESG Committee and
Remuneration Committee

e Neormon, oged BE
utive Director

S0

Rachel has extensive experience in digital leadership

and transformation, having held several senior positions
in the public, private and not-for-profit sectors, including
as a CEO. She was the first Chief Digital Officer at the UK
Department of Health where she developed its first digital
strategy. She is now a business advisor and menter and
runs her own consultancy providing advice and coaching
on strategy, leadership and digital transformation to
executives and Boards.

Rachel also brings significant additional advisory
experience to the Baard. She is a non-executive director of
Checkit plc, on independent Governor of Birkbeck College,
University of London, and a non-executive member of the
Advisory Board of Digital Leaders of which she is a former
Chair. She has featured in Computer Weekly's list of Most
Influential Women inIT since 2018

The Pancply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Corporcte Governance Report

The Panoply Holdings ple is committed te operating
proper standards of good corporate governance and

SR

The Directors beligve that the enlarged Group's key

has established a corporate governance maodel based
on the key principles of the Quoted Companies Alliance
Corporate Governance Code ("QCA Code”) The following -
outlinos how the Company addressos tho ton broad

governing principles defined in the QCA Code. The Non-
Executive Chairmnan is responsible for corporate

governance and the overall leadership of the Board and
ensuring its effectiveness.

The Panoply Holdings plc operates o business rmodel and
growth strategy that promotes the generation of

shareholder value through growth. The company .
eromotes professionalism, openness, honesty and

Integrity between its customers, staff, shareholders and
suppliers.

Principle 1 — Fstalalish o strategy and
business rmodel wh i

vodue for shorshsld

The Panoply is a technology-enabled services group,

built to service clients’ digital transformation needs

Founded in 2016, with the aim of identifying and acquiring
bost-of-breed specialist information technology, design

and innovation consulting businesses, we collaborate

with our clients to delfiver the technology outcomes

they're looking for at the pace that they expect and .
demand.

We believe an increasingly complex world needs a new
maodel to actieve high impact outcomes for chients and
their employees and more value for stakeholders.

We cornbine the dynamism and agility of smaller, expert

teams with the scale required to confidently address our

clients” most pressing needs, as they navigate the rapidly
changing nature of society ond business.

Since inception the Group has identified and met
numorous potential target companies and has
completed twelve acquisitions.

Uniike many buy and build modsls that have preceded
The Panoply, the Directors are focused on creating o
business where employees join o culture of purpose,
collaboration and innovation that delivers impactful work,
profitable organic growth and agility at scale.

The Directors believe that our flexible operating mode),
our trusted, multidisciplinary teams of experts, and our
commitment to making a differenice meant we were
berfectly placed to deliver long term value for
shareholders.

The Panoply has developed an efficient, formulaic
approach for acguiring companies. With an extensive
acquisition pipeling, the Directors intend to continue to
supplement the organic growth of the Group through the
addition of complementary companies.

the panoply/

strengths include:

Significant market opportunity ~ Tech Market View
estimates the UK Software and IT Services (GIT5)
market is worth an estimated £51.8b in 2020,
growing to £56.8b by 2023, The public sector
comprising 71% of the group's revenue is worth an
estimated £i2.1on of thig total. Further details
regarding market outlook can be found on pages 6
and 7.

Group platform — The Panoply provides a platform
for companies which join the Group to accelerate
their organic growih through cross-selling,
leveraging The Panoply brand, network, listed status
and balance sheet.

Alignment of interests — The Paneply's acquisition
maodel involves a significant proportion of the
censideration for an acquisition being issued in
Ordinary Shares thereby ensuring alignment of
interests with existing shareholders.

Profitable and cash-generative — the Group is
profitable, cash generative and enly intends to
make accretive acquisitions going forward

Purpose led business — The Panoply is leading the
way in terms of the guantity, quality and freguency
of ESG reporting;

- The Group recently appointed an ESG Board
Commuttee, led by Isable Kelly, NED;

- The Group balances both purpose and profit
by setting dedicated targets for by 2023 and
2025;

- Set a target to become a B-Corporation by
2023

Focused growth strategy

- The Panoply’'s acquisition model is designed to
attract ambitious companies, confident in their
ability to grow profitably and rewards cross-
selling and collaboration;

- The Panoply's management has an extensive
network to help identify, attract and execute
future acqguisitions.

Experienced Management and Board with proven
track record — The Panaply is managed by highly
experienced executive and non-executive directors
combining strong sector, public company and
international mergers and acquisitions expertise
with a track record of building, growing and exiting
services companies.

The Panoply Holdings Plg
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



f Z - Seck to understand arid meet
gle nesds and expecic

The Panoply proactively engages with its shareholders
and potential shareholders alike. This is through a series
of mechanisms:

g

. Formal announcements — as o London Stock
Exchange (LSE) AM listed company, we make all
statutory announcements through the LSE's
regulatory news service [RNS). A feed is maintained
cn our investor arec. The Panoply reports formally to
sharehelders by the publication of its annual and
half-yearly financial statements.

. Analyst and investor presentations — the Executive
Directors present the half-yearly and annual results
to institutional investors, analysts and the media.
The presentations dre ovdilable on the investor
section of the website.

. AGM — Notification of the date of the AGM is sent to
shareholders at least 21 working days in advance of
the meeting. Details are set out in the Notice of
Mesting. The Directors {and the external auditor) are
available at the AGM to answer questions, both
during the course of the meeting, and informally
afterwards. All details can ke found on the Investor
Announcements Section of the website

. News releases — in addition to statutory
announcements, we use RNS Reach to present
regular business nows and updates to sharcholdors.
We alsc have a full news service available on The
Pancply website.

. Interactive sessions — The Panoply's Executive
Directors arrange regutar {six, monthly) face to face
sessions with any interested shareholders cr
potential shareholders, and are also available for
updates at any point in the year. See contact details
below.

Investor focused micro-site — we maintain a fulf
section on the main Panoply website for investors.
This includes real-time RNS announcements; the
latest Investor Documents, presentations and
reports, share information and share dealing
interactive feeds; this corporate governance
staternent; o full list of investor related contacts.

. LSE Profile — we also maintain a profile on the
London Stock Exchange Issuer services website.

- Investor Email — we also manage an investor emall
account for any direct gusries -
investers@thepanoply.com.

Contact with major shareholders is principally
maintained by the Executive Directors, who ensure that
their views are cormmunicated to the Board as o whole.
The Chair is also available to discuss governance and
other matters directly with major shareholders. At every
Board meeting, the Board is provided with the latest

brokers’ reports and a surmmary of the contents of any
meetings with shareholders. The Board considers that the
provision of these documents is a practical and efficient
way for both the Chair and Senior Independent Diracter
te be Informed of major shareholders’ opinions on
governance and strategy and to understand any
shareholder issues and concerns.

If you would like to know more about The Panoply as o
shareholder, or potential shareholder, please contact us
through our investors email address and we will put you
in touch with one of our Exccutive Directors,

LT RN

Please see further details In the ESG Section of our Annual
Report (Pages 30 to 81) and Financial Staternents (Pages
100 to 159).

Principle 4 ~ Fmbed effective

munagement, considerihg boih

sr:eriunit cirgd throots, thios
infestion.

Risk managemeant activity is overseen by the Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Operating Cfficer, with the support of the Executive
Management Team.

Our framewark enables us to remain vigilant to all known
and emerging risks and cpportunities Effective risk
management supports informed decision making;
enables us to minimise impact from unforeseen internal
or external events; and allows us to fully exploit emerging
opportunities. Our objectives for risk management are to

. Identify, measure, contro! and report on business risk
that may undermineg the achieverment of chjectives,
both strategically and operationally, through
appropriate analysis and assessment criteria

Effectively allocate effort and resources for the
management of key and emerging risks

. Build an accurate picture at the highest level of the
key risks facing our business, and use this
information to drive business improvemants in a
considered and coordinated way

. Support and develop our reputation as g well
governad and trusted organisation

. Minimise costs and drive efficiencies in the way that
pervasive risk is controlled dcross the business

. Identfy weaknesses in, and opportunities to
improve, our business processes

ELE T ;
At the Operational level, a risk register is maintained
within every business of the Group. Risks are recorded

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Report continued

and managed within as required and are reviewed
regularly by the management of each business.

At a central fevel, there is a single central risk register for
Group Significant risks, which records the top risks to the
business.

Risk registers are reviewed on a quarterly basis which
suppeoerts the escalation of any risks with a high residual
impact, or potenticlly pervasive risks, 1o a higher level risk
register as appropriate.

et :‘LJ}"%’,:‘.@

The Board determines the amount and type of risk that
The Panoply is willing to take on in pursuit of its strategic
objactives. The Board's appetite for risk is influenced by
various key foctors including {but not limited to) the
overall economic, regulatory and cperationdl landscape
in which we operate.

The Executive Management Team advise the Board of
these key influencaos which oenablas the Board to adjust
the ameunt of risk that The Panoply takes on. Risk
tolarance may, by business choice, differ in different parts
of the company.

S

Risk registers are updated as and when required. A full
review is undertaken quartsrly. The highest rated risks are
presented to the Board every quarter by the CEQ. Every six
months the Board is presented with the detailed risk
registers for each line of businass Further details can be
found in our Risk Secticn of the Annual Report on

pages 75 to 77

Principle & - Malntaln o
funetioning, balanced tean
Chair.
The PLC Board {"the Board®) is responsible for the

Company's corporate governance systems and
processes that support good decision making.

The Non- Executive Directors, Mark smith {Chair), Isabel
Kelly, Rachel Neaman and Chnis Sweetland are
considered independent of management and free from
any business or other relationships that could materially
interfere with the exarcise of their independent
judgement. Both Mark Smith, Chns Sweetland and Rachsl
Neaman own shares in The Panoply and all three Non-
Executive Directors hald options, however this is not
considered to alter their independent status.

The Directors acknowledge the importance of the
principles set out in the QCA Code

Our Non-executive Directors have committed in their
letters of appointment to attend all reasonable board
and committeg meetings in addition to being reasonably
availablg at othar timeas for The Panoply business, Our
Executive Directors have entered intc employment

the panoply.”

contracts which require them te attend ali board and
committee (of which they are @ member} mestings.

The Non-Executive Directors mest at least once a year
without the Executive Directors present. All Directors
submit to re-election each year at the Annual Genercl
Meeting {["AGM") of the Company.

The Beard meets at least four times each year with
additional mestings when circumstances and urgent
business dictate. At each meeting the Beard reviews a
schedule of reserved matters including troding
pertormance, financial strength, strategy {including
investment and acquisition opportunities), rigk
management, controls, complicnce, reports to
sharehelders and succession management.

The Directors have established three committeas of its
Board, namely the Audit, Risk and AlM Rules Compliance
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Cormmittee (ESG
Ccmmittee).

The Audit, Risk and AIM Rules Compliance Committee is
chaired by Chris Sweetland and has primary
responsibility for monitoring the quality of internal
contrels, ensuring that the financial perfermance of the
Company is properly measured and repaorted on and
reviewing reperts from the Company's auditors relating to
the Enlarged Group's accounting and internal controls, in
all cases having due regard to the interests of
Shareholders The Audit, Risk and AIM Rules Compliance
Committee meets at least twice a year. Mark Smith is the
other member of the Audit, Risk and AN Rules
Compliance Committee. Oliver Rigby, CrO, attends Audit,
Risk and AIM Rules Compliance Committee meetngs by
invitation.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Isabel Kelly,
and reviews the performance of the Executive Directors
and determines their terms and conditions of service,
including their remuneration and the grant of options,
having due regard to the interests of sharsholders. The
Remuneration Committee meet at least once a year.
Mark Smith is the other member of the Remuneration
Committes

The Remunearation Committee also considers Board
policy in relation to the remuneration of the Choirman of
the Board. Non-Executive Directer remuneration is ¢
matter for the Chairman and the executive members of
the Board. No Director is involved in any decisions as to
their own remuneration or benefits.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
{£5G Committee) is chaired by Isabel Kelly, and has the
primary responsibility to Assist Executive Management in
setting the Company’s general strategy with respect to
ESG Matters, and to consider and recommend policies,
practices, and disclosures that conform with the strategy.

The ESG Committee meets at lsast twice o year
Christopher Swestland and Rachel Nearman are the other
members of the ESG Committee

The Panoply Hoeldings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



¢ & - ensure thol between them the
& ithe necsssary up—tﬂ—c,;zm
rice, skills ond eapabilities

The Board members and their relevant experience and
skills are detailed on pages 84 and 85. Tho Non-Exccutive
Chairman bkelieves that, as a whole, the Board has o
suitakle mix of skills and competencies covering all
essential disciplines bringing a balanced perspective that
is peneficial both strategically and operationally and will
enable the Company to deliver its strategy. The Board
consists of two executive directors and four non-
executive directors, all of whom are independent. The
nature of the Company’s business requires the Directors
to keep their skillset up to date. Updates to the Board on
regulatory matters are given by Company’s professional
advisers when appropriate.

In addition to the support provided by the Company’'s
retained professional advisers (Nominated Adviser,
lawyers, guditor and M&A adviser), external consultants
have been engaged to advise on a number of matters
including tax planning and market research. External
advisers attend Board meetings or committee meetings
as invited by the Non-Executive Chairman to report
and/or discuss specific matters relevant to the Company.

“ﬂnc—ipla 7
iSE:ﬁ o5 ¢

F*'ﬂ'u\;tr Boord [ arformun

The Chairman is rosp0n5|ble for the regu\ar evaluation of
the Board's performance and that of jts committees and
individual Directors. This year the Group undertock a
board review, which focused on assessing the board's
effectiveness and governance. The results focused on
four key areas where the following scores were recorded:

. Strategy and Business: 84%

. Risk Management and ESG: 80%

. Composition and Diversity: 75%
Board Dynarmics and Process: Bl%

Asg this is the first time undertaking this review these
results will b used as a benchmark for the board and will
be reviewed again on a yearly basis. Some of the actions
coming out of the review include the following:

More in-person meetings and dedicated strategy
awdy-day once Covid restrictions are lifted

Improvement in ethnic diversity on the board
- Further integration of financial and non-financial
reporting
ISR TR N

The Remuneration Committee meet as and when
necessary to consider the appointment of new executive

and non-executive directors, although the Board as a
whole take responsibility for succession planning. Beard
members all have appropriate notice periods so that if a
Board member indicates his/her intention to step down,
there would be sufficient time tc appoint a replacement,
whether internal or external.

The Company's Articles of Association require that one-
third of the Directors must stand for re-election by
shareholders annually in rotation and that any new
Directors appointed by the Board during the relevant year
must stand for election at the annual general meeting
immediately following their appointment. Any Directors
who are not employed by the Company or holding
executive office who have served on the Beard for at
least nine years will be subject to annuat re-election

Board appeointments are made after consultation with
acdvisers including the Nominated Adviser who
undertakes due diligence on all new potential Board
candidates.

Following consultation with the Remuneration Committee
and Nominated Advisers On the 18th October 2020,
Rachel Neaman was appointed to the Board s a non-
executive director.

Princigic 8 — Prom
thiotis bos=dan
behoviours

Wa are bound together by a collective belief that
business can be a force for good and that the work we
undertake delivers impact bayond just financial gain.

As our Group evolves and grows so should the values that
drive us. As we finalise the new power brand te launch in
September 2021, we will be developing uniflied values and
behavicurs for the integrated business.

As a people-focussed business, the four values that
underpin our culture are:

. Collaboration for impact

Ambition with inclusion
. Differance with authenticity

Agility with trust
Further details on our culture and four thermes can be
found on page 13
Frincipia € £
SIrUC ?*Jrea wnd procagses thinl ¢
gﬁur;m"c- and support good de
making by the Board,
On behalf of the Board, the CEO has overall responsibility
for managing the day to day operations and the Board
as a whole s responsible for monitoring perfarmance
against the Group’s godls and objectives. The individual

Board members’ specific responsibilities, contributions
and skills are set out on pages 84 and 85.

The Panoply Holdings Flc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Report continued

The Board has established three standing Commitiees,
the Audit, Risk and AlM Rules and Compliance Committee
{Audit Committes), the Remuneration Committes, and
the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
{ESG Committee) Membership of the Audit Committes,
the Remuneration Committee and the FG Committea
during the year under review was exclusively Non-
Executive.

ple 10 - Communicate how the
y s governed and s performi

ue with shareho

cengd other: akeholder s

The Company maintains a regular dialogue with key

stakeholders including sharehelders to enable interested

parties to make informed decisions dbeut the Group and

its performance. Further details regarding the Direciors’

sngagement with stakeholders can be found in

Section 172 on pages 78 to 81,

=t
wifts DRI ATEAR

Historical annual reperts and notices of general meetings
can be found in the Financial Reports secticn of the
Group's welbsite.

The Board discloses the rasults of Annual General
Meetings and these can be found in the Regulatory News
secticn of the welbsite.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year,
although the Company’s Auditors or any member of the
Audit Committee may request a meeting at any time,
should they consider that one is necessary. The role of the
Audit Committee 1s tc make recommendations to the
directors and shareholders, in relation to the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
Company’s External Auditors and to approve their
remuneration and taerms of engagement. Prior to the
commencement of each annual or interim audit, the
Audit Committee will discuss and agree the nature and
scope of the audit with the External Auditors and in
discussion with them, will monitor the integrity of the
financial staternents of the Gruup und approve any
formal announcements relating to the Company's
financial performance.

The Audit Committze develops and implerments policies
on the engagement of the Externa! Auditors te supply
non-audit services and wili report te the Dirgctors,
identifying any matters where the Audit Committee
considers that action or improvement Is needed, making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken

The Audit Committee is autharised by the Board to
investigate any activity within its terms of reference and
may seek information it requires from any employee of
the Company. The Audit Committee may seek outside
professional advice ot the cost of the Company, in order
to secure any relevant experience or expertise it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties.

the panoply//

The Audit Committee report can be found on pages 94 to
95 with the Independent Auditors report found on
pages 0210108

The Remuneration Committee report can be found on
pages 92 and 93

The ESG Committee report can be found on page 91.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Fivsiros i, Sl SR S T

During the year the ESG Committes (”the Committee")
comprised Isakel Kelly, Rachel Neaman and Christoper
Sweetland, these members are independent Non-
Executive Directors and details of their skills, experience
and qualifications is set out on Puyes 84 urid 85,

The committee also comprises the following members of
the executive, Bryony Wilde, Head of Impact, Luke Murphy,
Head of Investor Relations and Communications, James
Herbert, CEO of Nfoundry4 and Ching Chong, Group
Financial Controller and Committee Sscretary.

The Committee will also invite divisional leaders and
specialists relevant to the Committee’s agenda, and
Employee Resource Group {(ERG) Leaders on a regular
basis as appropriate.

tAain rezponsibiiities

The main responsibilities of the Committee are
summarised below:

Assist Executive Management in setting the
Company's general strategy with respect to ESG
Matters, and to consider and recommend policies,
practices, and disclosures that conform with the
strategy,

Te oversee the Company's reporting and disclosure
with respect te ESG Matters made in compliance
with existing and future legisiation set by the
Financial Conduct Authority and standards on
environmental, social impact D& related legislation.

. To assist the Executive Management in oversesing
internal and external communications regarding the
Compdany's position or approach to €3G Matters;

. To consider and bring to the attention of Executive
Management and Board, as appropriate, current
and emerging ESG Matters that may affect the
business, operations, performance or public image
of the Company or are otherwise pertinent to the
Company and its stakeholders, and ta make
recommendations on how the Campany’s policies,
practices and disclosures can adjust to or address
current trends;

- To advise Executive Management on stockholder
proposals and other significant stakehclder
concerns relating to ESG Matters;

Sumriaiy of activities in FY2025

In FY202], the Committee was established with the core
purpose of supporting the Company’s ongeing
commitment to people, planet and community matters
relevant to the Company.

The Committese’s core work programme focused on
establishing the appropriate reporting framework and the
specific targets and KPI's relevant to this framework.

The Group appointed EthicsPoint to support its formal
whistleblowing service. Whistleblowers can report in

confidence to the Chair of the ESG Cornmittes, who has
responsibility for investigating any concerns. The Board
and the Committee are made aware of any concerns at
Board or Committee meetings as appropriate and
informed as to the resolution or other status of
complaints.

There were six meetings held in the year from 1st April
2020 to 31st March 2021,

ESG roport

The Committee reviewed and evaluated the
approepriatensess of the annual! ESG report with
management, including:

the clarity of disclosures and compliance with the
World Economic Forum (WEF) Disclosure standards,
sustainable Development Goals {SDGs), Streamlined
Energy and Carbon Reporting {SECR} and relevant
financial and governance legislation

Ensuring that the methodelogies used to collect and
aggregate data were fair and that the proxies and
assumptions made to benchmark our data were
reasonable.

The Committee is able to question management at
both Group and business unit levels to gain further
insight inte the issues addressed in these reports.

. The outputs of the reporting and disclosures help
the Group identify their progress towards their 2023
and 2025 impact vision as set cut on pages 11
and 12

. The key significant ESG reporting sections and
outputs are further explained on pages 32 to 81
under tha Sustainable Future section.

Isabel Kelly
Chairman of the Environmental Social and Governance
Cormmittee

12 August 2621

The Panoply Holdings Pic
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Kemuneration Re [0 it

ration Comimittces

The Remuneration Committee datermines, on behalf of the Board, the Greup’s palicy for executive remuneration and
the individual remuneration packages for the Executive Directors. In setting the Group's remunerction policy, the
Rernuneration Cornmittee considers a number of factors, including the following:

e

. salaries and benefits available to Executive Diractors of comparable companies;
. the need to attract and retain Executives of on appropriate calibre; and

. the need to ensure continued commitment of Executives to the Group's success through appropriate incentive
schemes.

The Committee meets at least once a year

Given the increasing size of the company the Committee has worked this year to create and approve a Remuneration
Committee Operating Policy which adds prachical, operational intercretation and builds out the committees Terms of
Reference adopted in November 2018.

Section 6. of the Terms of Reference outlines the duties and respansibilities of the committee. The Remuneration
Comnnittee have now added practical interpretation to the following:

. Consider and recommend the remuneration for Executive Directors and senior employees {defined as anyone
reporting to an Executive Director).

. When setting remuneration policy for Directors have regard to pay and employment conditions across the
company.

Obtain reliable information about remuneration in other companies.
. Approve the appointment and contractual terms for all Executive Directars.
. Review and oversee the company's employee benefits structure.

. Review the policy for approval of expenses incurred by Executive Directors.

e

rafion of £

Sy sy S
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Tha remuneraticn packages comprise the following components:

Base salary
The Remuneration Committee sets the basa salary by reference to responsibilities and the skills, knowledge and
experience of the individual.

Bonus scheme and other benefits
There is no annual bonus scheme or other benefits in place currently.

- Share Incentive Schemes

An EMI and unapproved option scheme were implemented in the prior period and options were awarded to each
of the Executive Directors

. Other benefits
Private medical and life cover for employees including the Directors have been provided in the current year.
i 5 0 ¢ § S5
The fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors are determined by the Board. They are not entitled to receive any bonus or

other benefits but did receive unapproved share options at the time of their appointment. Non-Executive Directors’
letters of appointment are on a three-month rolling basis.

3 el L Y] £

n
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Direciors’ 1
Details of individual Directors’ emaoluments for the year {excluding employer's National Insurance contributions) are as
follows:

Non-Executive

Kark Srith
(appointed 18 October 2018) 50 - 7 - 57 54 21
Christopher Sweet and
{appointed 12 October 2018) 35 - 4 - 39 38 14
Isabel Kelly )
{appointed 18 October 2018) 35 - 4 - 39 32 12 =
Ruchal Neaman ;
{appointed 18 October 2020} 15 - - 15 - - =
z
Executive (=
Neal GandAi 1:2
{appointed 20 December 2018) 270 14 37 4 320 295 148 Fy
Cliver <igky 8
(uppoimed 20 December 20]6) 158 23 27 2 21C 180 150 ﬂ
Total 56¢ 37 6% 5 681 599 345 o
» . ]>
Bireotorg’ interssis iy shotes 8
The interests of the Directors in the Ordinary Shares of the Company at 31 March 2021 CC)
=4
I8 -1 —
w

BT N PR Lot i

Christapher Pau Swoetland ’ 80,000 30,600 30,000

Isabel Kelly - - _

Mark Williom Srrith 122,000 122600 122,000

Racheal Neaman 1765

Neal Gandni 15,081,000 6,306,885 6,786,884

Oliver Righby 5087781 5,086,107 5,124,930
15,382,648 15063814

14522092

Directorg’ interesis in share options
The directors have been granted options over the shares of the Company as follows:

Granted i Pt - -Mar-20 & N L

o _ 2008 S oo BMar-2l e e B
Christopher Pau' Sweetland 20,300 - Unapproved scheme —.=20,300-— 74p 31]03/‘21
Christopher Paul Sweetlond 20,300 Undoproved scheme 20,300 74p 31/03/22
Christepher Paul Swestland 20,302 - Unasproved schems 20,302 74p N/03/23
Isabel Jane Kelly 20,300 - Unaoproved scheme 20,300 14p 31/03/21
Isaael Jane Kelly 20,300 - Unaaproved scheme 20,300 74p jasize
Isabel Jane Kelly 20,302 - Unaoproved scherme 20,302 74p 31/03/23
Mark Williom Smith 33,834 - Unapproved scheme 33834 74p 31/03/21
Mark Wilham Smith 33834 - Unaoproved scheme 33834 Tap 31/03/22
rAark willicm Smith 33836 Unapproved scheme 33,836 74p 31/03/23
Neal Gandi 135,338 - EMI scheme 135,338 Tap 31fo3f
Neal Gand-i 135,338 - EM! scheme 135,338 74p 31/03/22
Neal Gandni 135,340 - FMI sehemea 135,340 74p 3/c3t23
Ofliver Righy 135,338 - Fil schoma 135,338 74p 31/n3 /21
Cliver Rigby 135,338 - EMI scherme 135,338 J4p 31/03/22
Oliver Rigby 135,340 - EMI scherme 135,340 74p 31/03/23

By order of the Board

bame nnly A2 o B e

Isabel Kelly
Chairman, Remuneration Committee

12 August 2023

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
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ALt Risk and A

/

During the year The Audit, Risk and AlM Rules Compliance
Committee ("the Committee”) comprised Christopher
Sweatland and Mark Smith. Both members are
independent Non-Executive Directors and details of their
skills, experience and qualifications set out on pages 84
and 85. The Chief Financial Officer and the Group
Financial Director attend the meetings. The Committee
will also invite divisional leaders and specialists relevant
and external auditors to the Committee’s agenda if
appropriate.

Main responsibiiities

The terms of reference for the Committee are based on
the Guidance cn Audit Committees 1ssued by the

Financial Reporting Council. The main responsibilities of
the Committee are summarised below:

. review the integrity of the financial statemants of
the Group and any formal announcements relating
to the Group's financial performance

raeview the Group's internal controls established to
identify, assess, manage and monitor risks, and
receive reports from management on the
effectiveness of the systerns it has established, and
the conclusions of any testing performed by internal
audit and the external auditor

. make recommendations to the Board in relation to
the appointment of the external auditor and
approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor

- assess the independence, objectivity and
effectiveness of the external auditor and develop
and implement palicy on the engagement of the
external auditor to supply non-audit services

. review the integrity of the statement in the Annual
Report on being fair, balanced ond understandable,
as required under the Companies Act 2006

In 2021, the Cornmittee’s core werk programme focused
on a numiber of significant issues and other aeccounting
Jjudgements where the Committee believed the highest
level of judgement was required and with the highest
potential impact on the Group's financial statements
There were seven meetings held in the year from 1 April
2020 to 31 March 2021

3{’,

The Committee reviewed and evaluated the
appropriateness of the interim and annual financial
statements {including the announcements thereof to the
London Stock Exchcmge) with both management and the
external auditor, including:

. at the Board's request, whether the Annual Report
and Financial Statements, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and undarstandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess
the Group's position and performance, business
model and strategy

the panoply

Rules Complicnce Commitlee

. the clarity of disclosures and compliance with
financial reporting standards and relevant financial
and governance

. discussing the critical accounting policies and use
of assumptions and estimates, as noted on
pages 124 and I/ of this Annual Report and
Financial Statements, and concluding that the
estimates, judgemants and assumptions used were
reascnable based on the infarmation available and
had been used appropriately in applying the
Group's accounting policies

. reviewing the going concern and viability of the
Group over the longer term as part of its
asscssmont of the Group's rnsks

The Committee is able to question management at both
Group and business unit levels to gain further insight into
the issues addressed in these reports. The key significant
financial reporting issucs and other decaunting
judgements are set below and further explained on
pages 124 and 125 under section critical accounting
judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty.

iy ju

nificant acoou

Revenue and margin recognition

The Committee fram time to Utme discusses revenuce
recognition within the Group whether they are
aligned to IFRS 15. This includes finding out any
challenges subsidiaries may have in implementing
IFRS 15 in their finance framework and accounts.

Carrying value of goodwill and other intangibles

The judgement largely relates to the assumptions
underlying the value in use of the cash-generating
units, primarily the macroeconomic assumptions
{such as discount rates) underpinning the valuation
process. The Committee received reports from
manadgerment who prepared reports setting out the
allecation of the purchase price between goodwill
and other intangibles. The Committes also received
reports from managoement outlining the impairment
rmodel and the assumptions used; in addition, the
external auditor provided detailed written reports in
this area.

. Carrying value of investments

The judgement largely relates to the assumptions
underlying the value of investmants held by the
parent company. The Committee received reports
from management indicating their assessment of
the potential impairment of investments including
consideration of triggering events, the calculation of
value inuse and discount rates and sensitivity
analysis.

Fair value of contingent consideration

The Committee has reviewed the assumption used
to calcuiate the far value of contingent
consideration. This primarily includes a review and

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statementis for year ended 31 March 2621
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challenge of any EBITDA adjustments used in the
calculation of valuations.

. Going concern

In order to satisfy itself that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operation for the
foreseeanle tuture and that there are no material
uncertainties that could lead to significant doubt as
to the Group’s abllity to continue as a going
cencern, the Committes considered the Group's
budgets and forecasts, cash pasition {both existing
and projected), bank facilities and covenants.

The Committee will carry out a formal review each year,
to assess the independence and effectivenass of the
external auditor, Nexia Smith and Williamson (NSW) The
Committee has satisfied itself as to NSW's independence
and effectiveness.

(it Sweetighd

FIOTMRIA

+

Christopher Sweetland
Chairman of the Audit, Risk and AiM Rules and
Compliance Committoe

12 August 2021

ML SINNGDDVY 9 LHCdIY TYNNNY 1202
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Directors Reporl

The Directors present their Annual Report on the affairs of
the Group, together with the Financial Statements and
Auditor's report, far the year ending 31 March 2021.

Frincio ciivities

The Panaply is a technology-enabled services group, built
to service clients’ digital transformation needs. Founded
in 2C18, with the aim of identifying and acquiring best-of-
breed spectalist information technology, design and
innovation consulting businesses, the Group collaborates
with its clients to deliver the technology cutcomes they're
looking for at the pace that they expect and demand.

The Group is being increasingly recognised as a leading
alternative digital transformation provider to the UK
public services sector, with 71% of its client base
representing the public sector and 29% representing the
commercial sector.

Further information can be found in the Strategic Report
on pages 2 to 81

stinformution

The Panoply Heldings Plc is a pubhc limited company
listed on the AIM market of the Lendon Stock Exchange on
4 Decermber 2018 and is incarporated and domiciled in
the UK The Company’s registered number 1s 10533086,

Ganer

The Articles of Association for The Panoply can be
accessed on the weksite at
https:/ fwww.ithepanoply.com/investors-hub/overview.

An updated version of cur major shareholders table is
available on our website

wppGoriie GoVernanee
1
The statement on corporate governance on pagaes 86

to 90 is included in the Directors’ Report by way of
reference.

Rezults end dividends

The Group’s loss after taxation was £2.2m (2020: £2.0m
loss). The audited financial statements of the Group are
set out on pages 109 to 158. A maiden intenim dividsnd of
02 pence per share was declared for H1 2021, which was
paid on 29 January 2021 to shareholders on the register at
the close of business on the 8 January 2021

The Dirgctors propese a dividend* of 0.4
the year ended 31 March 2021 {2020: £Nil).

per share for

The information satisfying the strategic review
requirements is set out in this report on pages 2 to 81

The Greup's business activities, together with the factors
likely to affect its future development, perfermance and
position are set out on pages 3 to 29. The financial

*subject to approval ot the AGM ond on publication of the I'Y202) Corrpany
statutory accounts demonstrating sufficient distributable reserves

the panoply#

position of the Group, its bilings, gross profit and
profitability are described on pages 28 and 29 Details of
the key risks and uncertainties in the business, including
the operational impact of Covid-18 and expected impact
on the economy, along with the mitigation has been
proesentod in the risks and uncertainties is presented on
pages /oo 77

Having considered the Group's cash flows, liguidity
position and barrowing facllities, and after reviewing the
budgets and cash projections for the next twelve months
and beyond, the Directors believe that the Group and the
Cornpany have adequaote resources to continue
operations for the foreseeable future and for this reason
they continue to adopt the geoing concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.

[3iry

i

The present membership of the Board is as follows:
. Mark Smith, Non-Executive Chairman,

. Chris Sweetland, Non-Executive Director,

. Isabel Kelly, Non-Executive Director,

. Oliver Rigby, Chief Financial Officer,

. Neal Gandhi, Chief Executive Officer.

On the 19 Octocber 2020 Rachel Neaman, Non-Executive
Director, was appointed to the Board

The names and biographical details of the current
Directars of the Company are given on pages 84 and 85,
During the year under review, oll Non-Executive Directors
were independent of management and ony business or
other relationships which could interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgement.

Details of Directors” interests in the Company's shares,
service contracts and remuneration are set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 92 and 93.

The Group has not made any political donations during
the year. (2020:£nil}

We are committed to reducing any negative impact we
have on the planet and have invested significantly in
expertise and technology to identify cur greenhouse gas
emissions.

This is the first year we have reported our emissions
formally in-line with the UK Government's Streamlined
Energy and Carbon Reporling (SECR} requirernent More
in depth datg, analysis and commentary on our
environmental impact are included in the ESG section of
this annual repeort and we will look to continually improve
our environmental reporting as our processes evolve.

The Panaply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Energy and Carbaen breakdown from 1 Aprii 2020 to 31st
March 2021

Energy use
Total energy consumption: kwh 89,724
Energy consumption broak down:
. natural gas kwh 31,437
. vehicle fuel kKWh 15,018
. purchased electricity kWh 20,532
. business travel, car {diesel) kwh 22,632
. business travel, train (electricity)  kwh 704
. business travel, aeroplane

(aviation fuel} kwh 357
Greenhouse gas emissions
Total scope I: tCOqe 8.77
Scope | break down:
. natural gas tCOse 6.4]
- vehicle fuel tCOqe 036
Total scope 2 tCOge 479
Scope 2 break down:
- purchased electricity t COqe 479
Total scope 37 tCOqe 2.04
Scope 3 breck down:
. business travel 1 COqe 248
Total gross greenhouse gas
emissions [ COse 14.03
Intensity ratio, kilograms of t COge/Em 0331
CO7 equivalents per hundred revenue

thousand British Pounds of
revenue

*Only includes greenhause gas errissions from business travel, excluding
emissions frarm snort-tesm aeccormmodation or subsistence

Reduoin
In the reporting period, we have carried out several
actions to help us understand and reduce our
greenhouse gas emissions. Mora details of these can be
found in the ESG section of this report, however highlights
include

. Partnered with Emitwise, c leading provider of
amissions measurement software, to help us
understand our complate carbon footorint

. invested in Gold Standard carlbon offsets such as
renewacble energy projects as part of our policy to
offset emissions

. Provided lower cost access (o elactric vehicles far
employees using an EV salary sacrifice scheme

. Educated employees on the actions they can take,
using courses from Climate in Colour, Rewilding
Britain, The Beaver Trust, and Olio

Maothodolagy

To quantify the greenhouse gas emissions of our
activities, we have followed the 2018 HM Governmeant
Erwironmental Reporting Guidelines and the Greenhouse
Gas Protocol — Corparate Standard.

For natural gas (scope 1), emissions factors from the 2020
UK Gavernment's Convearsion Factors for Company
Reporting (BAIS, 2020) were used.

For vehicle fuel {scope 1), the spend-based calculation
appreach of the GHG Protocol — Corporate Standard was
followed, with emissions factors from the environmentally
extended input output model, EXIOBASE, for “retail sale of
automotive fuel” in the United Kingdom used.

For purchased electricity (scope 2), the location-based
calculation approdch of the GHG Protocol — Corporate
Standard was followed, with emission factors frem the
2020 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company
Reporting used.

For business travel, the spend-based calculation
approach of the GHSG Protocel - Corporate Standard was
followed for passenger car and rail travel, with emissions
factors from the environmentally extended input output
rmodel, EXIOBASE, for "other land transpert” in the United
Kingdom used. For air travel, the distance-bosed
caleulation approach of the GHG Protocol - Corperate
Standard was followed, with emissions factors from the
2020 UK Government's Conversion lactors for Company
Reporting (BAIS, 2020} used.

corrugztion

The directors are not aware of any incidents,

Shares (£0.01) in issue, listed on AIM. These shares hold the
right to vote at a general meeting

The Company has not purchased any of its own shares
during the year.

Details of the number of share options held under the
employee scheme are available in note 65 to the
financial statements

= Sie

Tha Company is required to issue further shares as
contingent consideration for their acquisitions. A
rnaxirmum of 13,728,000 shares remain to be 1ssued under
this obligation.

Further detalls of the remaining shares te be issued are
provided in note 20 of the financicl statements

Firii =i ; il ober

Details of financial nsk managemaent and objectives are
contained in Note 25 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Directors Report continued

Awarenezs of relevant cudil informe
Each of the Directers who held office at the date of

approval of this Directors’ Report confirms that, so far as
they are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the
Auditor is unuwaie; and

- the Directors have taken dll the steps they ought to
have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the
Auditor is aware of that information.

g

The Annual General Meeting will be held in London on

23 September 2021 — at 11 am. Notice of the Annual
General Meeting will be sent to shareholders on 12 August
2021

Indej:et A udito:

Nexia Smith & Williomson was appainted as Auditor to the
Group on 12 September 2018. There are no contractual
obligations in place that restrict our choice of statutory
Auditor.

LITIFIL

By order cf the Boord
Qliver Rigby
Cormpany Secrelary
12 August 2021

the panoply//
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Statement of Direcltors Responsibility

The Directors are responsible for praparing the Annual
Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable law and reguiations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial yvear. Under that law the
Directors have slected te prepare the Group and
Cornpuny financial staterments in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2008 and International
Reporting Standards {IFRSs)

Under company law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they ares satisfisd that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group and of the profit or loss of the
Group for that pericd. In preparing these financial
staterments, the Directors are required to:

selact suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

. make judgements and accounting estimates that
are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 have been followed subject to any
material departures disciosed and explained in the
fingncial statements; and

prepare the financial staterments on the going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business.

The Directors are respaensible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group's rransactions, disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial pesition of the
Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that
the financial statemaents comply with the Companies Act
2008

They are alse raspansible for safeqguarding the assets of
the Company and the Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregulurilies.

The Directors are respaonsible for ensuring that the
Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report, in addition to
any other information included in the Annual Report and
rinancial Staternents, is preparad in accordance with
United Kingdom company law, They are also responsible
for ensuring that the Annual Report and Financial
Statements include information required by the Al Rules.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company’s website. Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of the financial statemeits and other
Information included in annual reports may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096

Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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tependcent Auditor's Repori to the memibers of
e Panoply Holdings ple

opinicn

We have audited the financial statements of The Panoply Heldings Ple (the ‘parent company’} and its subsidiaties (the
‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2021 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated and
Company Statements of Financial Position, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity, the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framewaork that has been cpplied in their preparation is applicable law and
international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

In our opinion, the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March 2021 and of
the group’s loss for the year then ended,

. have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and
. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

N i
we conducted our audit in accordance with Internationa! Standards on Auditing (UK) (1Sas (Ux)} and applicable law.
Cur responsitilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group and parent company in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our qudit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Fthical
Standard as applied to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other sthical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and apperopriote to provide a basis for
our opinicn.

G geing concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the prepardation of the financial statements is appropricte. Cur evaluation of the directors’ assessment of
the group and parent company’s ability to continue to adept the going concern basis of accounting included:

. Challenging the assurnptions used in lhe detailed budgets and forecasts prepared by management for the
financial years ending 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023;

. Assessing the mathematical accuracy of the detailed budgets and forccasts provided by management;

- Comparing forecasts with actuals in the year and post year-end, to consider management's forecasting ability;
. Censidering the sensitivity of the assumptions and re-assessing headroom after sensitivity,

. Cansidering the group’s funding position and requirements; and

. Reviewing and challenging management’s calculations suggesting the Group is able to comply with all loan
facility covenants in the 12 manths from approvat of the financial statements.

Based cn the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually er collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company's ability 1
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months frorm when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect te going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply// Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Fey audit moiters

We identified the key audit matters described below as those that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period. Key audit matters include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstaternent, including those risks that had the greatest effect on our overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources
in the audit and the direction of the offorts of the audit team

In addressing these matters, we have performed the procedures below which wore designed to address the mattors in
the context of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion therean. Consequeantly, we do not provide
a separate opinion on these individual matters.

Business combinations The Group has a business model based  We focused on this area due to the high level of

accounting — Group (See  on acguinng businesses’ and during the  judgements and assumplions necessary to

Note 8) year, three acquisitions have taken perferm valuations of separately identificble
place. intangible assots arising from the acquisition of a
Th i ; business.

ere are significant judgements and

assumptions Nvolved to perform We challenged management on the identilication
valuations of separately identifiable of intangible assets and the inputs and
intangible assets arising from the assumptions used in the purchase price cllocation
acquisition of a business 'PPA’) to determine the value of the identifiable

assets and liabilities:
There 15 a sk that the values and

allocations of ntangible assets and Ag part of our procedures we:

41 SINNODOV 8 L0434 TWVNNNY 1Z0T

goodwill recognised are not in . Reviewed the Share Purchase allocation's
accordance with International Financial 'sPAg’) for each entity acquired during the
Reporting Standard (IFRS) 2 '‘Business period.

combinations’. . Obtained the PPA report prepared internally

and externally, together with the business
comhination calculations for each b
acquisiton and checked lhe mathemalical E
accuracy of these. Confirmed the basis of
support for judgements used by
management.

Used our internal valualions team to assess
the valuation model prepared in respect of
each acquisition, including the basis and
methodology adopted for identifying -
separate intangibles distinct from goodwill

oand the fair value of the consideration

recognised

Checked the appropriatenass of discount
factors applied

Considered the overall valuation of intangible
assats identified relative to similar companies
in the industry

Agreed the calculation of residual goodwill
based on the consideration payable and
identifiable asscts and habilities,

. Reviewed acquisition costs to ensure these
have been expensed within the Income
Statement in line vvith IFRS3.

. Reviewed the appropriateness of the of the

useful lives applied to the intangible assets
identified.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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incependent Auditor's Report Lo the members of

The Panoply

olchin g S P l¢: continued

Fair Value of conlingenl
consideration — Group and
Company {See Note 20)

Revenue — Croup (Sce
Note 3)

Ca r-rying-vdlue of goodwill -
Group (See Note 9)

The Share Purchase Agreements {SPAs)
contain clauses for contingent
consideration and clowbagk provisions
based on the acquired entities’
performance over the first two to four
vears [olloving acquisition

Management are required to apply
judgement to determine the foir value of

© the consideration payable, in accordance
© with IFRS 3.

The Group's activities include the
provision of business IT managemeant,

- design, implementation and support

services. These services have multiple

. deliverables and can be a fixed or

varnable price. A number of contracts are
expected to span the year end and the
acguisition dates.

Judgement will be involved in determining
the levels of revenue to be recognised in
line wilh IFRS 15 'Revenue recognition’,
particularly for contracts which span the
yvear end and acquisition dates

The Group has a significant carrying value
of goodwill ansing on the acquisition of
businesses in the prior year and current
year.

Anannual impairment review is required
to assess the carrying value of goodwill
for each cash generating unit (CGU)

We challenged the inputs and assumptions
used to determine the fair value of the
contingent consideration payable at aequisition
and subsequently at the reporting date.

As part of our procedures we,

. Reviewed the SPAs to obtain an
understanding of consideration payable.

- Reviewed and challenged management's
forecasts of future results which underpins
how the contingent consideration is
calculated.

. Compared historical forecasts against
actual results ond correborated
management’s assertions where
reasonably practicable

. Checked the appropriateness of discount
factors applied.

. Assessed if any of the contingent
consideration should be lreated as
employee benefits given that some of the
vendors have been retained in the
business

As part of our procedures we'

. Gained an understanding by testing the
design and implementation of controls
over revenue recognition which have been
put In place by the Group to prevent and
detect froud and errors in revenue
recognition

. Reviewed terms of major customer
contracts and assessed the accounting
for each revenue stream lor complionce
with IFRS 15.

. Performed tests of details on the different
revenue streams starting tests from
invoice and separately from contracts

. Performed cut off testing around the
subsidiary acquisiton dates and the year-
end to determing if revenue is recognised
in the correct period

We reviewed management’s assessment of
impairment of goodwil. We challenged
assumptions and assertions made by
management in their assessment and
considered whether the presence of impairment
indicators should result in an impairment
charge

the panoply s’
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Carrying value of
investments in subsidiaries
- Company {See Note 11}

Management uses a discounted cash
flow model and compuares the resulting
valugtion to the carrying valuc of goodwill
for each CGU to assess if any impairment
15 required.

There are significant judgements and
assumptions, such as growth rates and
discount facters, used by management in
determining the valuation

The Company has significant balances
relating to investments in subsidiaries.

The investimenls relate Lo the acquisition

: of subsidianies in prior year and current
| year.

The carrying value of the investments in
' subsidiories is clso underpinned by the

future financial viability of the subsidiaries

As part of our audit proceduras we

. Obtained the discounted cash flow
models and the underlying valuations for
each cash generating unit and checked
the mathermatical accuracy of these,
Confirm the basis of support for
judgements and assumgptions used by
rmanagement.

. Reviewed and challenged managemenl's
forecasts of future results which underpins
how the valuations are calculated.

. Compared historical forecosts against
actual results and corroborate
management's assertions where
reasonably practicable.

- Used our internal valuations team to
assess the valuation models and the
appropriateness of the discount rates
applied.

. Performed sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions used in the calculations.

. Considered the market capitalisation
value of the group as at 31 March 2021

We reviewed management's assessment of
impairment of the carrying value of investments
in subsidianes. We chalienged assumptions and
gssertions made by monagement in ther
assessment and considered whether the
presence of mpairment indicators should result
in an impairment charge

As part of our audit procedures wo:

. Considered whether the market
capitalisation of the group is less than the
carrying amount of investment balances
and therefore highlighting a potenticl
impairment indicator

. Chalienged assumptions and assertions
made by management In their
assessment of ihe investmenl balances
and considered whether the presence of
impairment indicators should result in an
impairment charge

. Reviewed the forecastad rasults of the
subsidiaries and corroborated
management's assertions where
reasonably practical

. Discussed with management the
underlying future and planned activities of
the subsidiaries.

. Reviewed any third party reports such as
investor analysis

. Obtained the discounted cash flow
models and assessed the mathematical
accuracy of each valuation

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Independent Auditors Reporl to the memb

The Panoply Holdings nle continued

Oui ¢
The materidlity for the greup financial statements as a whole ("group FS matenalty”) wos st at £860,000. This has been
determined with reference to the benchmark of the group's revenue, which we consider to ba one of the principal
considerations for members of the company in assessing the group’s performance. Group FS materiality represents
1.75% of revenuc as presented on the face of the Consolidated Income Statoment. This is an increase from the prior yoar
Lenuhimak of 15% of revenue due to the Increased size and diversification of the group.

cation of mists

The materiality for the Company financial statements as a whole was set at £658,000, capped by the performance
materiality of the Group. This has been determined with reference to the benchmark of the Company’s assets, which we
consider to be an cppropnate measure as the Cormpany exists only as o helding company for the Group. Materiality
represents 0.8% of total assets as presented on the face of the Company’s Statement of Financial Position.

Performance materiality for the group tinancial statements was set at £559,000, being 65% of group FS materiality, for
purposes of assessing the risks of material misstatement and determining the nature, timing and extent of further qudit
precedures. We have set it at this amount to reduce to an approprataly low level the prebability that the aggregate of
uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds FS materiality. we judged this level te be appropriate based on
our understanding of the group and its financial statements, as updated by our risk assessment procedures and our
expectation regarding current period misstatements including considering experience from previous audits where a
high number of audit adjustments were offset by management’s willingness to adjust and adapt for these.

Performance materiality for the parent company financial statements was set at £363,000, being 85% of parent FS
materiality. The level of performance materiality as o percentage of financial statement materiality has been
determined using the same reasoning os for the Group, noted above.

AN oveivisy e ol the

All of the Group's reporting components wers subject to audit for group reporting purposes, thus ensuring all of the
group’s revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities were encompassed in cur group audit.

Four of the components suiject to audit for group reporting purposes were based in Norway and Bulgaria respectively
and its audits were carried out by componsnt auditors based in Norway and Bulgaria We held video calls with the
auditors of the Bulgarian and Norwegian components, and on these calls performed our review of their audit working
papers

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report and Accounts, other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thareon. The directors are responsible for the other infermation. Our opinion on the
Annual Report and Accounts doss not cover the other information and, except to the extent ctherwise explicitly stated in
our report, wea do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Gur responsibility 1s to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistancies or apparent material misstaterments, we are required to determine whether this
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other infermation, we are required to report that fact.

We hove nothing to report in this regard.

h [ T N i F
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

o £ Comprinics

. the in‘formation given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statemeants; and

- the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirermnants.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply Company number: 16533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent cempany and their environment cbtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstaternents in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2008 reguires us to
report to you i, in our opinion:

adequate gccounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of directors' remuneraticon specified by law are not made; or

we have not received all the Information and explanations we reguire for our audit.

rasponsithlities :
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 98, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal contro! as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
frorm material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directars are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

af the finonoi

Auditor’s responsibilities for the qud istaternents

Cur chyjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or errer, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs [UK) wil always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregutarities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, cutlined above, to detect material misstatements in respact of irregularities, including fraud
The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below:

We abtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the group and parent company as
well as the laws and reguiations applicable, and considered these throughout our testing. We obtained an
understanding of the group and parent company’s policies and procedures by discussions with management. We also
drew on our existing understanding of the company's industry and regulation.

We understand the company complies with requirements of these frameworks through:

. Tha Directors updating operating procedures, manuals and internal controls as legal and regulatory requirements
changs, and

. The Directors regularly communicate with the Key Management Perscnnel of the subsidiary companies to ensure
all relevant legal and regulatory requirements are met.

In the context of the audit, we considered those faws and regulations: which determine the form and content of the
financial statements; which are centrail to the company's ability to conduct business, and where failure to comply could
result in material penalties. We have identified the following laws and regulations as being of significance in the context
of the company

. The Companies Act 2006 and IFRS in respect of the preparation and presentation of the financial statements;
. The Bribery Act 2010,
. The Data Protection Act 2018;

British, Norweagian and Bulgarian tox legislation,; and

. AlM regulations and Market Abuse Regulations

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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indeper me.n Aa ditor's Report to the members of
The Panoply Holdings plc

We performed the following specific procedures to gain evidence about cempliance with the significant laws and
regulations above,

. Made enguiries with management as to any legal or regulatary issues during the year
. We have reviewed Board minutes for evidence of non-compliance

We have obtained representation from management that they have disclesed to us all known instances of non-
compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations

. Reviewad correspondence vith externally engaged experts that support the internal services provided with
regards to whistleblowing

. Discussed specific laws and regulgtions related to the Bulgarian and Norwegian components with the component
auditors

. Reviewed the risk register

The senior statutory auditor led a discussion with senior members of the engagement team regarding the susceptibility
of the group and parent company’s financial statements to matsrial misstatement, including how fraud might occur.
The key areas identified as part of the discussion were with regard to the manipulation of the finoncial statements
threugh manugl journals and overstatement of asset values. This was communicated to the other members of the
engagement team who were not present at the discussion.

The procedures carried out to gain evidence in the above areas included,;
Testing of the high and significant risk balances as explained in the Key Audit Matters section, and

Testing of manual journal entries, selected based on specific risk ossessments applied based on the group and
company's processes and controls surrounding manual jeurnals.

The senior statutory auditor was satisfied that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence and
capabilities to identify or recognise irregularities. in particular, both the senior statutory auditor and the audit manager
have a number of years’ experience in dealing with companies subject to AIM Regulation and international subsidiaries.

A further description of our responsibilities 18 avallablé on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
wwww fre.org.ukf/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of cur auditor's report.

e of gur report

This report is made solely (@ the parent company's members, as o body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the parent company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the parent company and the parent
company’s members as a body, for our audit werk, for this repott, or for the opinions we have formed.

ngpéem Dr.ew

(TJ

rAn T

Stephen Drew

Senior Statutory Auditor, for and on behalf of
Nexia Smith & Williamsen

Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

25 Moorgate
London

EC2R BAY

12 August 2021

The Paneply Holdings Plc
the panoply?” Campany number: 10533086
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Consolidated income Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Revenue ' - 3 5,097 21533

CostofSgles . . .. (s49es)  (19528)
Grossprofit o 16,129 12,007
Administrative expenses (18,085) (15148)
Other income - B B B 43 184
Operating loss _ ) 3 ) ) i ) 4 {(1,543) (2,958)
Adjusted EBITDA 7101 3,846
Amortisation of intangible assets 10 (2,509) (1,583) .
Depreciation 1212 (835) 737) R
Loss on fair value movernent contingent consideration 20 (4,260) (3764) z
Share-based payments [ {294) {128} é
Costs directly attributable to business combinations 4 (496) (438) E
Costs relating to business restructuring 4 (250) ~ (158) %
Operating loss (1,543) (2,958) %
Finance income 4 1 7 E
Finance costs 4 (303) (189} 8
Netfinanceexpense .. . . ... . . Loy () 9
Loss betore taxation {1,845) (3)40) z
Texation S & (384 @ 7
Loss for the period (2,229) (3,044} =

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translation of f(rarrg\gn éﬁ;érothris ) ) 68 104

Total comprehensive loss for the period L ) (2181)  (2940)
Loss per share
Basic and fully diluted L o7 (s®)  {83)

The accompanying accounting policies and notes on pages 118 to 158 are an integral port of these Consolidated
Financiol Statements

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533098
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



no

Consolidoied Statement of Financial Position
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Non-current assets

Goodwill g 53,323 35,672
intangible assets 10 29,370 8,591
Property, plant and equiprment 12 292 290
Right of use assets 13 445 1,045
Deferred tax assets 22 15 -
Total non-current assets ) - ~ 83,445 45598
Current assets o -

Trade and other receivables 14 14,014 8,590
Contract assets 18 1,144 1413
Other taxes and sociol security costs 18 137 206
Cash and cash squivalents ) 15 5,734 4814
Total current asscts 21,0289 14,823
Total assets 104,474 80,421
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 18 (5,68]) (4,343)
Other taxes and social security costs 18 (5.326) {z.0010
Deferred and contingent consideration 20 (8,478) {10,685)
Lease liabilities 13 (338) {609)
Borrowings 17 {55) (29)
Contract licbilities o 18 (1041) (3454)
Total current licbilities S L (2.817)  (20021)
Non-current liabilities '

Deferred tax abilities 22 (5133) {1,623)
Deferred and contingent consideration 20 (3,741) (5,093)
Borrowings 17 (13,000) {(5,000)
Provisions - dilapidations (76) {23)
Lease licpilities L B (s3)  (300)
Total nen-current liabilities o (22,003) (13,034)
Total liabilities (43,820) (22155)
Netassets S . 60854 27065
Equity o - S T
Share capital 21 804 551
Share premium 21 5,691 5673
Merger reserve 21 60,926 25804
Capital redemption reserve 21 5 5
Other reserves 21 796 434
Retcined sarnings (7,568) (5,201)
Total equity L 60654 27266

These financial statements ware approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 August 2021, Signed
on behalf of tha Board of Directors by

Oliver Rigby - gy A Neal Gandhi l/
Director R P R X T Director m Lar A oy 2PuEoonoalwt

The accompanying accounting policies and notes on pages 116 te 158 form an integral part of these financiat
statements

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Changes
for the year ended 31 March 2021

N

-
m
M

it
o
—
)

reta

litn

Lo

EEEEE L P L1
At 1 April 2019 20779 - 5 239 {2157} 19,251
Adjustment {note 21) - {(15,108) 15,106 - - - - -
At1 April 2019 (Restated)) 423 5,673 15,106 5 {38} 239 (2157} 18,251
Loss for the period - - - - - - (3.044) {3.044)
Exchonge differences on

translation of foreign

operations - - - - 104 - - 104
Transactions with owners
Shares issued 128 - 10,698 - - - - 13,826
Share - based payments T - 29 i e
Equity at 31 March 2020

(Restated) 091 5673 25804 5 ___.. .66 368  (s20) 27266

nE o L it “
copat a RN i - T B

ERTEE oo Can o Do Lo e
At 1 April 2020 (Restated) 55l 5,673 5 66 368 (8,201) 27268
Loss for the periad - - - - - - (2,229} (2,229)
Exchange differences on

translation of foreign

operations - - - - 68 - - 68
Transactions with owners
Shares issued
Shares issued 253 12 35,122 - - - - 35,393
Dividend paid - - - - - - (138) (138)
share - based payments - - - - - 24 - 284
Equityat3lMarch2021 804 __ 5691 60926 5 134 662 (7568) 60,654

The occompanying accounting policies and notes on pages 16 to 198 form an integral part of these financial
statements

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Consoliddated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Cuash flows from operating activities:

Loss before taxation {1.845) (3140)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation 12,13 835 737
Amortisation 10 2,509 1,583
Share-based payments 5 294 129
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses {5} 104
Finance expense 4 303 185
Finance income 4 m €
Movement in fair value of contingent consideration 20 4,260 3,764
Working capital adjustments:

Increase in trade and other receivables {1,032} (2,586)
Incregse in trade and other payables . _. . __ 483 19/8
Net cash generated from operations ) ) 5,801 2,751
Taxpaid . oo sy 44
Net cash generated from operating activities ) i 5,642 2,707
Cash flows from investing activities:

Net cash paid on acquisition of subsidiaries 8 (10,813} {(5.876)
Deferred consideration payment 20 {259} (,088)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 12 (137) (131)
Additions to intangibles [¢] (321} (198)
Interest received ) 4 1 8
Net cash used in investing activities _ - ) _. . (ms29) - (7283)
Cash flows from financing activities:

New borrowings is) 8,000 5,000
Cost relating to the issue of new borrowings - (148)
Repayment of borrowings - (507)
Payrnent of lease licbilities 26 (610} {629)
Finance costs (331) (178)
Dividends paid o ) ) (138) -
Net cash generated from financing activities 6921 3,540
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equirvalent's';' 1,034 (1.036)
Cash and cash equivalents at baginning of the period 4,614 5,650
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held - o S 8 -
Cash and cash equivolents at end of the period 5 5734 4514
Comgrising:

Cash at bank and in hand 15 9734 4614

The accompanying accounting policies and notes on pages 116 to 1568 are an integral part of these Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply:’ Company number: 10533086
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Company Statement of Financial Position
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Non-current assets

investmenis Ll 98,478 54,952
Prupenly, plunl ond equiprent 12 4 1

Total non-current ussgt;- _ j _: 7 7 7 T 98,482 - 547553
Current assets 7 ' -

Trade and other receivables 14 298 183
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 23 901 1337

Cash and cash equivalents B 15 344 147 ~
Totaleurtentassets O 7 S 1:7 S
Total assets 100 025 56,620 )Z>
current liabilities =
Trade and other payables 16 (s61) {494) b4
Other taxes and social security costs 19 (53) (157) %
Deferred and contingent consideration 20 (8,478) (10,847) Q
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - _ _ .. .2 (s040) (3227}
Total current liabilities (14132)  (14425) x
Non-current liakilities o)
Deferred and contingent consideration 20 (3.741) {5,998) 2
Borrowings S i 1 (3ooo)  (5000) é
Total non-current liabilities i ) L i 7705741) - (loges) o
Total liabilities - (36 873) - (25,423) =
Netassets 8982 3ol %
EQUITY S T . ) i s
Share capital 21 804 55] g
Share premium 21 5,691 5673
Merger reserve 21 60,926 25,804 ?
Capital redemption reserve 21 5 5 =
Other reserves 21 662 368 :
Retained earnings o 1,064 {1.204)

Total equity 69152 31197

The Pancply Holdings Plc nas elected 1o take the exemptlon under sectlon 408 of the Compcmses Act 2006 from

presenting the company profit and loss account.
The Company's profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 was £2.4m (2020 £3.9m loss).

The financial statements weare approved by the Board of Directors on 12 August 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

Oliver ngby
Director

Neal Gandhi
Diractor

The accompanying accounting policies and notes on pages 116 to 188 form an integral part of these financial
staternents.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Company sStatement of Changes in Equilty
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Teo’

Sezialun Lo £ f H . : - Lo
At Y April 2019 423 20779 - 5 2,710 2456
adiustment {note 21) - {15,106) 15,106 - - -
At 1 April 2019 (Restated)) 423 5,673 15,106 5 239 2,710 24,155
Loss and total comprehensive

loss for the pariod - - - - (3,014) (3.914)
Shares issued 128 - 10,5688 - - - 10,826
Share-pased payments T T - e - 129
Equity at 31 Mareh 2020 o N o T
_Restated) 851 5673 = 265804 5 368 (1204) 31197

At1 April 2020 {Restoted) 31197

Profit and total comprehensive

income for the period - - - - - 2,406 2,424
Shares issued 253 18 35122 - - - 35,393
Share-based payments - - - - 294 - 276
Gividendspaid T T i o 38) (38)
Equiyat$iMarch2021 804 569l 60926 B 687 1064 69152

The accompanying accounting policies and notes on pages 116 to 158 form an integral part of thesa financial
statements.

The Panoply Holdings Pic
the panoply Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Company Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit/ {loss) before taxation
Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Impairment of intercompany balances
Impairment of invastments

Dividends received

Sharg-based payments

Finance expense

Movement in fair value contingent consideration
Working capital adjustments:

Increase in trade and other receivables

(Dscrease)/increase in trade and other paycbles
Net cash generated from operations

Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisition of subsidiaries (paid)

Deferred consideration payment

Balances repdid from/{(provided to) subsidiary companies
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Dividends received

Net cash used in investing cetivities

Cash flows from financing activities:

New borrowings

Finance costs

Proceeds from loan from subsidiary undertakings

Costs relating to issue of new borrowings
Dividendspeid .. __.

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net decrease/f{increase) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period
Cbmprising: ST ' -
Cashatbank andinhand

The accompanying accounting policies and notes on pages 116 10 158 form anintegral part of these financial

statements.

2,424 {3.014)
12 1 -
886 450
1 100 -
(9.358) (1,678)
5 294 129
256 120
20 4260 3764
(774) {302)
N v B
(1,883) {1199}
8 (n,675) (7,360)
20 (21} {712}
303 {765}
12 (4) (1}
6,131 1,678
_(s388) (78
25 8,000 5,000
(221) (107)
- 1000
{95) (148)
(138) -
7546 5746
197 {2,815)
147 2,762
05 . 344 a7
15 344 47

The Panoply Heldings Plc
Company number: 10533086
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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O the Consolidated Financial Statements

. Geznerolinformotion

The Panoply Holdings pic is a public limited company incorpaerated in England and Wales under the Companies Act
2008 with registered number 105330986. The Company's shares are publicly traded on the AlM Market as part of the
London Stock Exchange.

The address of the registered office 15 7 Savoy Court, | ondon, Fngland, W 2R OEX. Tho principal activity of the Groug is
the provision of digitally native technology services to clients within the commercial, government and nen-government
organisation (NGO} sectors

The following subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements of The Panoply Holdings plc have taken
advantage of the exemption from audit conferrad by s479A of the Companies Act 2006:

. Manitesto Digital Limited {Registered number 37885631)

. Foundry 4 Consulting Limited {Previously Not Binary Limited) (Registered number 10686321

. iDisrupted Limited (Registered number 09496322}

. Hurman Plus Limited (Registered number 11771564)

. Questers Global Group Limited (Registered number 08116392)

. Questers Resourcing Limited {Registered nurnber 05640807)
Daeson Group Holdings Limited (Registered numbar 11418077)

. Deeson Group Limited (Registered number 01073356}

. Greenshoot Labs Limited (Registered nurmber 10857409}

- FutureGov Limited (Registered number 068472420)

. Us-Creates Limited (Registered numbbor 05938821)

. Ameo Professional Services Limited (Registered number D9786677)

. Arthurly Limited (Registered number 1580054}

. Difrent Limited (Registered number 09227500)

- Keep IT Simple Limited (Registered number 10443621)

L Fos
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordancae with applicable International Financial
Repaorting Standards (IFRSs) in conformity with the Companies Act 2006 and the AlM rules for Companies The
measurement bases and principal accounting policies of the Group are set cut below. These palicies have been
consistently applied to all years presented unless otherwise stated.

[ eI RN R a
H

The financial statements include the financial results of the subsidiaries listed in Note 1l for the full year with the
exception of the following subsidiaries from the date of acquisition All subsidiaries are incorpordted in the UK unlass
otherwise stated:

Arthurly Limited — acquired on 8 June 2020
. Difrent Limited — acquired on 7 September 202C
. Keep IT Simple Limited — acquired on 28 February 2021

Further details of the above acquisitions can be found in Note 8 Business Combination.

1a GRS

As detailed further in the Directors’ Report, after reviewing the budgets and cash projections for the next twelve months
and beyond, the Directors believe that the Group and the Company have adequate resources to continue operations

for the foreseeable future and for this reason they have adopted o going concern basis in preparing these finoncial
statements.

In considering the business activities for the forthcoming 12 months, the directors have assessed the impact of principal
risks and uncertainties through scanario modelling. This includes an assessment of the impact of Covid-18 and inflation
by assessing the impact on our services, sector, customers and through looking ot trends in the digital transformation
scctor. The Group has agreed a rolling credit facility with HSBC of £20m of which £13m has been drawn down, Of the
£20m, £6m is available as a working capital faciity. This facility with HSBC, together with strong cash reserves within the
Group provide comfort over the viability of the Group to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.
Furthermore, trading for the 3 maonths to 30 June 2021 has been strong with ¢ cash balance of £48m as at the 30 June
2021.

After performing all the above assessments and through modelling scenarnos, it is concluded that we would mointain
sufficient undrawn capacity and satisfy all borrowing facility covenants in the next 12 months.

The Panoply Heldings Ple
the panoply// Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



The fellowing IFRS and endorsed standards and amendrnents, improvements and interpretations of published
standards are cffectiva for accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2020 and have been adopted with no
rmaterial impact on the Group's financial statements:

. Amendment to IFRS 3 ‘Business combinations’ (definition of a business): The amendment will help improve the
definition of o business and help companies determine whether an acquisition made is of a business or a group
of assets. The amended definition emphasises that the output of a business is to provide goods and services to
customers, whereas the previous definition focused on returns in form of dividends, lower costs or other economic
benefits to investors and others.

Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39 and IFRS 7 ‘Interest rate benchmark reform phase 1& 2°: These amendments
considers reliefs to hedge accounting in the period before the reform. The reliefs have the effect that IBOR reform
should not generally cause hedge accounting to terminate. The relief provided by the amendments requires an
entity te assume that the interest rate on which the hedge cash flows are based does not change as a result of
the reforrm The amendments to the IFRSs was early adopted and enacted in the current year.

. Amendments to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ Covid-19 related rent concessions: The amendment will make it easier for lessees
to account for Covid-19 related rent concessions such as rent holidays and temporary rent reductions. The
amendment exempts lessees from having to consider individual lease contracts to determine whether rent
concessions occurring as a direct conseguence of the Covid-18 related rent concessions that reduce lease
payments due on or before 30 June 2021

%
There are new IFRS accounting standards and amendments to sxisting accounting standards not yet effective in the

current year, but none of these are expacted to have a material impact on the Group in the following financial period.

-

20 rincipal <
a':l:i Bocis of ¢
The Group financial statements consclidate those of the Company and all of its subsidiary undertakings drawn up to

31 March 2021, A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company Centrol is achieved where the Company has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the activitios that affect the Company’s returns and exposure or rights 1o
variable returris from the entity. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

ligieation

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its subsidiaries are eliminated. Unrealised lossas are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, Amounts reportad in the
financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are dealt with using the purchase method. The purchase method involves the recognition at
fair value of all identifiable assets and lichilities, including contingent liabilities of the subsidiary, at the acquisition dats,
regardless of whether or not they wers recorded in the financial statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On
initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are included in the Consolidated Staterment of Financial
Position at their fair values, which are alse used as the cost bases for subsequent measurement in accordance with the
Group accounting policies

The consideration transferred in the acguisition is measuraed at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets dcquired.
Any goodwlll that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase 1s recognised in the profit or
loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to the issus of debt or equity securities.
The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such
amounts, to the extent that they exceed the settlerment amounts, are generally recognised in the profit or loss. Any
deferred contingent consideration payakle is measured ot fair valus at the acquisition date. If an obligation to pay
contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity, then it is not
remeasured, and settlement is acceunted for within equity. Otherwise, other contingent consideration is remeasured at
fair value at each reporting date and subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are
recognised in profit or [oss.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements far year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes 1o the Consoliaated Financial Statements continued

Goodwill is stated after separating out identifiable intangible assets. Goodwill represents the excess of consideration
payable over the fair value of the Group's share of the idantificble net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition.

3

i2) Segmont

Operating segments arg reported in a manner ennsistent with the internal roporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker as required by IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performancs of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of
Directors.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are consistent with the accounting policies of the Group as a
whole. segment adjusted EBITDA represents earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amaortisation, share-based
payments, fair value of this is the measure of profit that is reported to the Board of Directors for the purpose of resource
allocation and the assessment of segment perfarmance.

When assessing segment performance and censidering the allocation of resources, the Board of Directors review
information about segment asscts and liabilitics For this purpose, all assets and liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments with the exception of borrowings.

The Group is organised into, and managed through, the fellowing three operating segments, which are based on
service and supported by central functions:

. Consulting and innovation - Services include strategy consulting and service design

. Software development - Services include digital transformation, technical software development, cloud based
servicas and IT implementation

. Automation — Services include automation, robotics, chatbots and Al
in addition, management reviews revenue disaggregated by the following sectors to understand our customer base.
- Government — Sectors that arc run by baoth local and central governmoent

. Non-Government organisations (NGOs) — Crganisations such as charities, cultural, housing associations etc that
provide public services but are not run by Governments

. Commercial - Commercial clients that do not fall intoe the two categories above
Government and NGOs are classified as public services for reporting purposes.
<l

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

. the fair value of the cansideration transferred; plus

the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquires; plus, if the business combination is
achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquires; less

. the net recognised amount of the identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities assumed.
When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such
amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Costs related to acquisition, other than those associated with the issuc of debt or equity sccuritics that the Group incurs
in connection with a business combination, are expensed as incurred

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairrnent losses. Impairment review 1s carried out annually. If there is an
impairment, the cost is reduced by the accurnulated impairment amount.

(i} prey = O EEV G o
Revenue consists of the vatue of work delivered tc clients during the year axclusive of VAT and is recognised as
performance obligations are met in accordance with the terms of the contract which are primarily on a time and
rnaterials basis. Revenue is wholly attributable to the principal activities of the Group. The Group adopt IFRS 15 principles
in recegnising the revenue. Revenue recognised in excess of iInveices raised is included within contract asset. Where
amounts have been invoiced in excess of revenue recognisad, the excess is includead within contract liability.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply// Company number: 16533096
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The majority of the services are provided on a time and material basis where clients are billed monthly for the time
spent on a project which corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity’s performance completed to
date and accordingly revenue is recegnised at the amount billed. For fixed-price contracts whare critena te recognise
parformance obligations over time have been met, revenue is recegnised based on the actual service provided to the
end of the reporting period as a propaortion of the total services to be provided. This is determined by actual labour
hours and cost incurred relative to the total expectad lubour hours and cost. The use of labour hours and costs 1s a
faithful depicticn of the transfer of services as it directly relates to the effort required to satisfy the performance
cbligation. Only inputs relating directly to the performance in transferring the services are included when measuring
progress to date. Due te changing circumstances, extent of progress and completion may be revised which may affect
revenue and costs. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in
the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

The maijority of the contracts dre one single performance ebligation. Bowever, some contracts include multiple
deliveragbles. In most cases, the deliverable is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract; therefore, it is
accounted for as g separate performance cobligation. In this case, the transacticn price will be allocated to each
performance obligation based con the stand-alone selling pricas.

Standard terms of payment within 30 or 60 days are typreally adopted. There is therefore no financing companant.

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies the performence obligations, the timing of which is set out in Note 3.2.
For the majerity, contracts are for performance obligations that are satisfied over time. However, there are some
contracts which contain performance obligations that are only satisfied ot a point in time  The revenue for these
contracts is recognised when the performance obligation has been satisfied, for project development work this occurs
when the customer accepts the final output.

When the customer has a right to return the product within a given period, the entity is chliged to refund the purchase
price. For instance, if potential candidates put forward are considered unsuitable by the client and no one is recruitad,
The contract stipulates reimbursement of 50% - 100% of the fee, under the agread terms of contract. Under IFRS 15,
revenue is only recognised to the extent it is highly probable thera will not be a significant reversal of revenue in @ future
period and is usually thereforc recegnised only when a successful candidate 1s recrurted

A small number of contracts have variable consideration associated with it, whereby a bonus Is paid if certain cost
savings are made by the client. These are recognised using the ‘mast likely amount method’ once it has been identified
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue will not oceur.

Iterns included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment In which the entity operates ('the functional currency’). The Consolidated lNnancial
Statements are presented in pounds sterling, which 1s the Company’s functional and presentation currency and the

Group's presentation currency.

e O e | A
Transactions in foreign currencies are transtatea at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liakilities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the Statement of Financial

Position date. All exchange differences ara recognised in the Conselidated Income Statement.

As at the reporting dole, the gssets and habilities of overseas subsidiaries are translated into pounds Sterling at the rate
of exchange applicakle at the reporting date and their Income Statements are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period. The exchange differences arising frem the retranslation of foreign operations are taken directly to
foreign exchange reserve.

Translation differences on non-menetary financial assets and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
trected as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the rates of exchangs at tha reporting date
Currency translation differences arising are transferred to the Group's foreign exchange reserve and are recognised in
the Income Statement on disposal of the underlying investment.

The Panoply Heldings Ple
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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y The Consolidated Financial Statements continued

- Sguipnnt
Property, plant and equioment are stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recegnised in the Consclidated Income Statement.

Depreciution is caleulated on a straight-line basis s¢ as to write off the cost of an asset, less its estimated residual
value, over the useful economic life of that asset as follows:

Leasehold improvements 3 - 10 years (depending on the length of the lease)
fixtures and fittings 4 - Syears
Computer equipment 3 - byaars

Useful economic lives and estimated residual values are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate.

NN, 5 o Qe
In accordance with IFRS 3 "Business Combinations”, an intangible asset acquired in a business combination is
recognised ot fair value at the acguisition date. A fair value calculation is carried out based on evaluating the net
recurring income stream from each type of intangible asset. Intangibles are initially recognised at fair value, and are
subsequently carried at this fair value, less accumulated amertisation and impairment. The following items were
identified as part of the acguisitions of entities by the Group and were still owned at 31 March 2021

ob Iniongin

. brand amortised over 2 - b years;

. customer lists amaortised over 3 - 8 years;

. database over 5 years, and

. Software Intellactual property over 3 - 10 years
. Software over 2 - 3 years

The allocation of fair values to the tangible assets and the identification and valuation of intangible assets affect the
calculation of goodwill recognised in respect of an acquisition and as such represent a key source of estimation
uncertainty.

ny o Other g 2
Caosts associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identificble software products controlled

by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

. It is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;
. Management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;
. There is an ability to use or sell the software product;

It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits,

Adequate technical, financial and other rescurces to complete the development and to use or sell the software
croduct is available; and

The expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software development
employee costs and an gppropriate portion or relevant overhaads. Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred Development costs previously recognised as an expense are
not recognised as an asset in subsequent periods.

Computer software development costs recognised as asscts arc amortised over their estimated useful lives, which
doas not exceed 3 years.

i} Itanditinent testing of gooc i
impairmant reviews are tested at cash generating unit ("CGU") level. Goodwil is allocated to those CGUs that ars
expected to benefit from synergies of the related busingss combination. During the year, Arthurly and Keep IT Simple
integrated with the Foundry 4 CGU and Difrent formed its own CGU. Additionally, in the year, the FutureGov and Ameo
CGU’s merged into FutureGov CGU.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply/” Company number: 10533096
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Impairment reviews are carried out using multi-year cash flow projections from the approved budgsts of the Group.
These are discounted using a weighted averdge cost of capital ("WACC”) specific to each CGU. The internal rate of
return for each CGU reflects the time value of money and the nature and risks of the CGU. Cash flows are estimated
over a maximum of five years and g terminal value.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverale amaunt The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and valueg in use based on
an internal discounted cash flow evaluation. Impairment losses are credited to the carrying amount of the relevant
goodwill.

poent in s ilgries and impoirmont

The investment in the Company's subsidiaries is recorded at cost less provisions for impairment. Carrying values are
reviewsd for impairment annually to determine if there is any indication that any of the investments might be impaired.
The Company uses forecast cash flow information and estimates of future growth to assess whather investrments are

impaired.

If the results of operations in o future period are adverse to the estimates used for impairmaent testing, an impairment
may be triggered at that point.

k1 Taxotjon

Current tax is the tax currently payable based on taxable profit for the year. Deferred tax is generally provided on the
difference between the carrying amounts of assets and liakllities and their tax bases. However, deferred tax is not
provided on the initial recognition of goodwill, nor on the initial recognition of an asset or lability unless the related
transaction is a business combination or affects tax or accounting profit.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as g component of tax expense in the Consolidated Income
Statement, except where they relate to items that are charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the related
deferred tax is also charged or credited directly to equity.

b #insirurrients
Financial assets and financial llabllities are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the Groug and
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
' RVER .
The Group classifies its financial assets as follows:

These assets arise principally from the provision of services to custormers (e.g. trade receivables), but also incorporate
cther types of financial assets whaere the objective is to hold these assets 1in order to collect contractual cash flows and
the contractual cash flows are sclely payments of principal and interest. They ara initially recognised at the transaction
price that is directly attributable to their acquisition or 1ssue and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interast rate method, less provision for impairment.

Impairment provisions for trade receivablas and cnntract assets are recognised based on tho simplifiod approach
within IFRS © using the lifetime expected credit losses. During this process the probability of the non-payment of the
trade receivables and contract assets is assessed. This probability is then multiplied by the amount of the expected loss
arising from default to determine the lifetime expected credit loss for the trade receivables. For trade receivables, which
are reported net, such provisions are recorded in a separate provision account with the loss being recognised within
administration expenses in the Consolidated Income Statement. On confirmation that the trade receivable and
contract assets will not be collectable, the gross carrying value of the asset is written off against the associated
provision.

Impairment provisions for loans to related parties are recognised based on a forward- looking expected credit loss
rmodel. The methodeology used to determine the amount of the provision is based on whether there has been a
significant incredse in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial asset. For those where the credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition of the financial asset, twelve month expected credit losses along with
gross interest income are recognised. For those for which credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime expected credit
losses along with the gross interest income are recognised. For those that are determinead to be credit impairad, lifetime
expected credit losses along with interest income on a net basis are recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other shart term highly liquid
invastrments with original maturities of three montins or lass.

The Panoply Hoeldings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Noles [o the Consdolicdated Financial Statementis continued

Financial liabilities and eguity iInstruments issued by the Group and Company are classified in accordance with the
substance of the contractudl arrangements entered and the definitions of ¢ financial liability and an equity instrument.
An equlity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group and Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the company are recarded at the proceeds received, net of

direct 1ssue costs.

Bank borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of any transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of the
Instrument. Such interest-bearing liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interast
rate rmethod, which ensures that any interest expense over the period to repayment is at a constant rate on the
balance of the liability carried in the Consolidated and Company Statement of Financial Position. For the purposes of
each financial liability, interest expense includes initial tfransaction costs and any premium payable on redemption, as
well as any interest or coupon payable while the labllity is cutstanding.

Trads payables and other short-term monetary liobilities, which are initiclly recognised at fair value and subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amaortised cost of @ financial asset or hability and
allocating interest income cr expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or, where appropriate,
o shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

R T N

Centingent consideration is classified either as equity or as a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial lability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value, with changes in fair value recognised through profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acguirer's previously held
equity intarest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

My Emiloy
R N e S A

All material share-based payment arrangements dare recognised in the financial statements. All goods and services
received in exchange for the grant of any share-based remuneration are measured at their fair values. Fair valueas of

employee services are indirectly determined by reference tc the fair value of the share-based payments awarded.

Their value is appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of nan-market vesting conditions {for example,
profitability and sales growth targets).

Alt share-based remuneration is ultimately recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Income Statement with a
caorresponding credit to “share-based payment reserve” If vesting periods or other non-market vesting conditions
apply, the expense is allocated over the vesting period, based on the best available estimate of the number of share-
based payments expected to vest. Estimates are subsequantly revised if there is any indication that the number of
share-based poyments expected to vest differs from previous estimates

Any cumulative adjustment prior to vesting is recognised in the current pericd. No adjustment is made to any expense
recognised in prior pericds if share-based payments ulimately excreised are different to that estimated on vesting.

Upon exercise of shdre-bosed poyments, the proceeds received, net of attributable transaction costs, are credited to
share capital and share premium.

The fair value for the share-based payment is measured using the binomial model for share-based payments with no
rmarket performance conditions and the monte carlo method for options with market performance conditions.

n:ooPe
Contributions to defined contribution schemes are chargsd to the Consolidated Income Statement as they accrue in

accordance with the rules of the scheme. Differencas betweoen contributions payable in the year and contributions
actually poid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the Consclidated Statement of Financial Position.

¢} Frosentaticn of res alis

In some instances, Alternative Performance Measdres (APMs) such ds adjusted EBITDA {refer to Financial Review on
page 28) are used by the Group to provide ‘odjusted results. This is because Management dre of the view that these
APMs provide a more appropriate basis on which to analyse business performance and is consistant with the way that
financial performance is measured by Management and reported to the Board.

The Panaply Holdings Plc

the panoply/’ Company number: 10533086
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Adjusted EBITDA is a non-IFRS measure, defined as the Group's operating profit before expensing depraciation of
tangible fixed assets, amortisaticn, costs relating to listing, acquisitions and restructuring, impairment, gain or 10ss on
fair valug movement contingent consideration and share-based payments.

There are further APMSs discussed within the Annual Report. However these have not been included within the notes of
the Financial Statements and therefore have not been defined here. Full definitions have been provided in footnotes
where used.

Lo

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liakility at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for annual lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restare the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less
any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the useful Iife of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful
economic lives of the right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment In
addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease lability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the prasent value of the lease payrents that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group's incremantal borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the
discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liabilities comprise the following:

Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments

11 SINNQDOV % LHCd3d IVNNNY 1202

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or o rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencemeant date

- Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantes; and

+ The exarcise price undar a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an
optional renewal period if the Group is reasonable certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the Group is reasenably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Itis remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising for a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group's estimate of
the amaount expected to be payable under a residual value guarentee, or if the Group changes its assessment of v
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, o corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the profit and less If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

ST T I T A T . .o .
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabllities for short-term leases of machinery that
have a lease tarm of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets including IT equipment. Assets with a value less
than £5,000 are considered low value. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

q)  Graniincoms

Government grants are not recognised untit there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are generally recognised in the Consclidated Incormne Staternent on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the Group receognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Judgement is applied in ossessing when there is reasonable assurance the grant conditions have been cemplied with
ond that the grant money will be received

The Panaply Heldings Pl
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Noles (o the Consolicdated Financial Statemeinils continued

r) 3D
Research and development expenditure is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement as an expense until it can
be demonstrated that the conditions for capitalisation under IAS 38 “Intangible Assets’ apply. The criteria for
capitalisation include demoenstration that the projectis technically and commercially feasible, the Group has sufficient
resources to complete development and the asset will generate probable future econamic benefit.

During the year, resecrch and development costs dre within Administrative expenses and are not identifiable with its
own subhecding. The allocation of the administrative costs that relates to research and development for the Group is
carried out annually at the point of assessing for R&D tax credit relief as part of the tax work.

The Group banefits from both small, medium enterprises for R&D tax credits and research and development credits
(RDEC)

RDEC research and development credits are accounted for as having the substance of a government grant and
recognised in other income. The grants are recognised on the basis of the fair value of claims made. A corresponding
other recelvable is recognised at the time the claims are accepted and will subsequently be offset against tax payable.

Ly

Financial instrurments issued by the Group are treated as equity only to the extent that they de not meet the definition of
a financial liability. The Group's Ordinary Share capital is classified as equity instruments. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Further details
of the categories of share capital and reserves and disclosed In Note 21

In the current year, the Group restated the share premium account, whera amounts should have been recorded under
a merger reserve as required by merger relief under Companies Act, Section 812, Further detail is provided in Note 21,

t)  Critrealaceouniing judgoiaonis ond koy sourgasal v

ST R HE MY

In preparing these financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of revenues, expenses, assats, liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. The resulting
accounting estimates, which are based on management’s best judgment at the date of thase financial statements, will
seldom equal the subsequent actual amounts. The estimates and assumpticns that have o significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are surmmarised
below.

The main Judgemeh.ts dre'

. Deciding what are the performance obligations in a contract

. Deciding whether the contract should be measured over time or at a point in time
. The cost to complete contracts to determine the percentage completion

Under IFRS 15, measurement and recognition of revenue required the Group to make judgements and estimates. In
particular, there are a large number of cantracts within the business which may require significant contract
interpretation to determine the apprepriate accounts such as whether promised geods and services specified in an
arrangement are distinct performance obligations and based on the contract terms, whether the performancs
obligation should be recognised ot a point in time or over time (refer to Note 3.2).

IFRS 3 Business combination reguires the management to assess the CGU as part of purchase price allocation process.
The Board uses their judgement in deciding the number of CGU per entity acquired during the yeor. CGU is defined as
the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets. The board determines the number of CGU by ascertaining the number of main
Income stream generating from an entity. In 2021, Difrent was deemed to make up its own CGU. Arthurly Limited and
Keep IT Simple were deemed to be included in the Foundry4 CGU. In the year, FutureGov and Ameo CGUs merged to
become ane CGU (FutureGov). Following the activities in the year, there are a total of 8 CGUs {2020. 9).

Acquiring a business antity would include purchasing its intangible assets even when there were no intangible assets
oh its Staternent of Financial Position. The board uses judgement in identifying the types of intangible assets ds a result
of business combination. During the year the board identified several intangibles such as customer list, brand, client

database and software. Details of intangitle assets identified on acquisitions are in notes 8 and 10.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
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Impairment of goodWi[l is subject to an annual review. The key estimate for the carrying value of CGU Is the cash flows
associated with the CGU and the WACC. Each of the CGU held by the Group is measured regularly to ensure that they
generote sufficient positive cash flows to justify no impairment

The Group performs an impairment review of CGUs on at least an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the 'value
in use’ of the cash-generating units to which the intangible value is allocated Estimating a value in use amount
requires management to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Whers thears is indication
of impairrment, the goodwill is impaired by a charge to the Consolidated Income Statement. The key area of uncertainty
is the revenus growth. Management perform sensitivity analysis to ascertain the level of growth rate that will start to
impair the goodwill on a yearly basis. Further explanation is included in Note 9 - Goodwill and impairment.

An assessment of impairment of im/estments is parformed if thereg is an indicator of impairment. The key estimats for
the carrying value of the investmant is the cash flows associated with the investrment and the WACC. Each investment is

reviewed regularly to ensure that they generate discounted positive cash flows.

The same principles used in the assessment of impairment of goodwill is used for estimating the 'value in use’ of the
cash flows of the investment. Where there is an indication of impairment, the investment is impaired by a charge to the
censolidated income statement. The key area of uncertainty is the revenue growth, Management perform sensitivity
analysis to ascertain the level of growth rate that will start te impair the investment on a yaarly basis.

The fair value of contingent deferred consideration is determined by reference to the future EBITDA of the acquired
business and applying the contingent deferred consideration formula as specified in the asset or share purchase
agreement and discounting the net present value of the future cash fiows. The total fair value of consideration for the
businesses acquired during the year was £43m (2020: £22m; and the goodwill was caleulated as £18m (2020; £15m).
The range of contingent consideration in the current period was £nil to £E6.1m; further details areincluded in Note 8.

An assessment of the recoverability of intercompany balances is performed by reviewing the future cash flows of the
subsidiary. Where there is an indication of impairment, a provision for doubtful debt is recorded by a charge to the

Company income statement.

s

3. Segment reporting

The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports reviewed and used by the Chief
Cperating Decision Maker (CODM), being the Board of Directors, in assassing the Group's performance and in
determining the allocation of resources.

The Board has concluded that it monitors the Group's performance and makes business decisions around investments,
resource allocation and acquisitions based on the Group’s services. These services are noted below and consists of 3
reportabls segments. All other revenue that is not classified as a reportable segment are classified as ‘All other
Segments’ or ‘Central Services”.

. Consulting and innovation — Thig part of the business provides strategy consulting and service forganisational
design services to external clients in the government, commercial and NGO sectors

. software development — Services within this sector Business IT Management. include digital transformation,
technical software development and implementation, cloud based services, data basad services and support
services.

. Automation — Services include automation, rolotics, chatbots and artificial inteligence

All other segments - Other segments not included in the above. This primarily relates to the Group’s operations
comprising of magazine publication and events management services which are not core to the Group.

The Board of Directors primarily uses a measure of revenue and adjusted EBITDA which is taken as earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation, armortisation, costs relating to business acquisitions and restructuring. costs relating to share-
based payments and fair value moverent in contingent consideration to assess the performance of the operating
segments. Information about segment revenue is disclosed in the tables below.

The Panoply Heldings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

211 kRevonuo

'
-1

Included in revenuss arising from 'Software development’ service are revenues of £26m (2020 £3.2m) which arose frem
the Group's largest customer and represcnts 5% of the Group's total revenue.

9,581

Co-_nsul_ting_émd_innc_)vation 7 ) 7 57,]65

Software development 26,184 2242
Automation 2,278 1361
All other segments 104 278
Intersegmert elimingtions _ (a574) (929)
Totalrevenue 5097 383

United Kingdomn
Norway
Switzerland
Rest of EU

USA

Other
Total Revenue

Commercial 7 - 14,230 1,476
Government 28,047 13,207
NGO _ 8,820 6,850
Total Revenue R . BT Es3

4154

Consulting and innovation 1548
Software development 5,170 4575
Automation (18) (238)
All other segments a7 {200)
Central services o o {2,252} {(1841)
Total adjusted FBITDA e A ] N 1 t-1
finance costs T (303} (183)
Finance income 1 7
Depreciation and amortisation (3,344) (2.320)
Costs relating to business restructuring (250} {155}
Costs directly attributable to business cornbinations (496} (438)
Fair value movement in cantingent consideration (4,260) (3764)

s ()

Share-basedpayments . . . .. -

Loss before tax _ Qg45)  (3140)

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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313 Segmont osgets
Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These assets are allocated based on the
operations of the segmeant and the physical location of the asset.

40,629 29985

.(-Z-onsult\'ng and innovation

Software development 69,314 32,565

Automation 1,023 1,425

All other segments B 52 204

Towlsegmentassets __ Mogis _ e4j7

Intersegment eliminations {8,818} {5,425)
Unallocated:

Central services o o - ) 2314 1667

Total essets per the Statement of finncialPostion 104,474 60421

214 Segmiontfinbillios
segment labilities are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. Thess assets are allocated based on
the operations of the segment and the physical location of the lability.

The Group's borrowings are not considered to be segment liabilities, but are managed by the Group finance function.

4 1T SINNODOY 3 LdOdIY 1¥NNNY 120T

Consulting and innovation 12,649

Software development 19,024

Automation 1,996

All other segments ) 279
Totalsegmentliabiities 33948 29702
Intersegment eliminations N R )
Unallocated:

Central services ~ ) ) 18,690 8,878
Total liabilties per the Statement of Financial Position . 43820 _ 33)55_

ey of rovoenig frony Tl

i v ded BUiccion P00 Tl . . DR
External Revenue 25,325 58 - 51097
Inter-segment revenue 1,783 2766 - 35 {4,574} -
Total revenue N 27108 28183 2277 103 {(a574) 51097
Receognised at a point in time - 8,569 - - - 8569
Recognised overtime - _ Z2iee 17814 2,277 103  (4574) 42528
Totalrevenwe . 2408 2683 2277 _ o3 (ag74) 51097

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number; 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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S Tet

B =R I L RO SN Ll . [V - P
External revanus 20,672 1345 278 - 3533
Inter-segment revenue 570 . - {029} -
Total revenue ~ 21242 361 278 {929) 31533
Recognised at a peintin time 7408 1 158 - 7.591
Recognisedovertime 9858 13834 1360 _ me _  (929) 23042
Totalrevene 581 2pe a3l 78 (999) | 815%8
o intor-segment revanuas are elminated on consohdation and reflectsd in the adustments and chminations column
Operating loss is stated after charging: )
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment (ses note 12) 175 154
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (see note 13) 660 583
Amortisation of intangible assets (se2 note 10} 2,509 1583
Employee costs (see nots 5.2) 24,485 18,080
Costs directly attributabls to the business combination 496 436
Costs relating to restructuring* 250 155
Disposal of fixed assets - 34
Loss on fair value movement contingant consideration {see note 20) 4,260 3,764
Share-based payments (see note 55) 294 129
Short-term leases (see note 13) S .. B I

" Busingss resiructuning costs war incurred in the yoar relging to tha restructuring of parsonnol and conschdation of legal entitics In e pnar year, restrastuing reicted
o the closure of the publicgtion part of the business and to the restrustunng of porscrnal

soroiuneralios

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and its associates for the audit of parent company

and consolidated financial statements 189 145
Fees payable tc Company's auditors and its associates for the audit of Company’s subsidiaries 26 27
Fees payable to Company's auditors and its asscciates for other services:

Audit-related assurance services 9 2
Other services - 4
Tax compliance and other tax advisory services - 131

- B 224 300

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply// Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Finance income

Intersst income from financial assets held for cash management purposes 1
Finance income . B 7
Finance costs ) ) - ) 7 7
Interest payable on bank loan and cverdrafts 279 147
Interest and finance charges paid/payable for lease liabilities and finangicl liabilities not at
_ fair value through profit or loss . S 4
Finance cc}:éts cgpcn;cd_- I i ) ) 303 189 o
Netfinancecosts .- S .-
5 Emo %
51 Dircctars o : <
The average number of staff employed by the Group during the financial year is 495 (2020: 361) as follows: %
i NN 8
Consultant == ' ' 380 - 220 e
Administrative staff =+* 72 ns 5:
Management ) 43 26 8
Total e~ ; S .. B | I, .
** Consuitant includas 194 consuitars employsd by Questars solely for chents’ prapocts, whore they provide hugh'y skifed IT toams 19 chants é
Tt Administran se staff o'so parnaipate 0 income generating actwitics, solos and marketing —
Employee numbers are stated including Directors. i
L
Wages and salaries 21,053
Pension contributions 585
Share-based payments 294
Social security costs 2,261 1313 =
Other benefts ] 282 -
Totol ... 28485 18080
.
B B i - _ ) ) P roz”
Number of key personnel for the Grbup 30 26

Group key personnel comprises of Directors of the pc:rrentﬁcombcmy and the directors of the principal operating
companies.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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> Consolidatea Finonaidl Stalemenls continued

5.4

oy mcng

Emoluments for the key management personnel for the parent company.

569 Bl

Wages and salaries

Pension contributions 37 38
Share-based payments 69 43
Social security costs 68 65
QOther benefits 6 3
Total _ I 749 664

The total emolument for the Group key perscnnel for the year:

Wages and salaries

Pension contributions 98
Share-based paymants 70
Social security costs 295
Other benefits . s . B
Total! 3263 2788

The aggregate of remuneration of the highast paid director (including Employer NT} of the Company was £355k
{2020: £329k) The amount of pension contribution paid Into the defined contribution scheme for the highest paid
director totaled £14k in the year. The full breakdown of other benefits are detailed in the remuneration report

Details of individual Directers’ emolurments for the year {including employer's National Insurance {"NI") contributions)
are as follows:

Non-Executive

Chris Sweetland 35 35 4 4 4 3 43 42
Mark Srmith 50 50 6 [ 7 4 63 60
Isabel Kelly 35 30 3 3 4 2 42 35
Rachel Neaman 16 - ? - - - 18 -
Executive

Neal Gandhi 275 259 35 34 45 34 3565 329
Cliver Rigby 158 141 18 18 52 39 228 198
Total 569 55 _ 68 65 W2 81 749 664
GOEIn S NI b

The Group has the following equity-settled share plans:

N o o . R \" - e |
Share options were granted to employees as determined by key management personnel and the Remuneration
Committes at IPO of the company. N further EMI opticns can be granted by the Group. The options cannot be
exercised within two years unless specific criterias are mat and have a maxirmum life of 18 years. Exercise of the options
will be settled by the issue of shares and there are no cash alternatives. Options crdinarily are forfeited if the employee
leaves the Group before the options vest.

The Panaoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096

the panoply?/
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Share options are granted to employeas as determined by key management personnel and the Remuneration
Committea. The CSOP permits the Company to grant CSOP options which have tax advantages pursuant to the
provisions of Schedule 4 to the Income Tax onrmngs & Pensions) Act 2003 ("Schedule 47). The cptions cannot be
exercised within one year unless specific criterias are met and have a maximum life of 10 years. Exercise of the options
will be setfled hy tha issie of shares and there are no cash alternativos, Options ordinarily arc forfeited if the employee
leaves the Group before the options vest.

T L A TS
Unapproved share options are typically granted to employees based custide of the UK as determined by key
management persennel and the Remuneration Committee. The eptions cannot be exercised within two years uniass
specific criterias are met and have a maximum life of 10 years. Exercise of the options will be settled by the issue of
shares and there are no cash alternatives. Options ardinarily are forfeited if the emplayee leaves the Group before the

options vest.

o

The Group has established a Share Incentive Plan for UK employees in the current year. Under this scheme all eligible
employees are able to purchase ordinary shares ‘Partnership shares’ through tax-efficient salary sacrifice. Fauch
Partnership share offers a free matching award of ordinary shares on a cne-to-one basis. ‘Matching share'. The shares
are held in trust by Cytec Solutions Cerporate Trustess whe alse administers the scheme. A minimum period of three
years is imposed before the employee can withdraw.

. ty cro- [ S
The number of outstanding options under each valuation method has been disclosed in the table below.

oLt [Tl

[al 17 H [N

Number of outstanding options s at 3iMerch 2021 Lo MO 33ra8M 4426726

The following table lists the key inputs to the mode! used for the grant of share options in 2021,

There were no grant of share options made in 2020, Expected volatility was deterrmined by calculating the historical
valatility of the Group's share price over the expected term

Exercise price

Share price at grant date 184.6p
Expected volatility' 35.00%
Cxpected dividend yield 0%
Risk fres interest rate 0.00%
Contractual life of option (yeo_r_s_} 10

I e expected price wolatilty s bassd on the hstarical volathty (nasad an the remaming We of the optons) adjustea for any expected changes to future volatlity due
to pubtely avalablo infarmation

The Panoply Heldings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial S

rMents continued

The total share-based payments expense included in the Consclidated Inceme Statement is:

Share-baosed payments o employass
Share-hospd poyments o pon-employees

The total share-based payments expense relotmg to Directors of the Company is £68k (2020 £43k)

The total share-based payments expense relating to key mandgement personnel of the company is £127k (2020: £70k).

6. Toxe

ot Lt
UK corporation tax for the period at 19% (2020:19%)
Adjustments in respect of prior period provisions
Adjustments in respect of prior pericd R&D credits
Overseas current tax charge on income for the year

Total current tax

Deferred tax

Current year

Change in deferred tax rate
Adjustments in respect of prior periods
Total deferred tax

Total tax credlt/(churge)

439 288

- (77)

15 n

. 454 __..180
(384) 95

During 2021 a deferred tax cradit of £454k (2020 £2096k} was attributable to deferred tax on intangible assets acquired

as part of business combination. lor further deferred tax information - see Note 22.

The relationship between expected tax expense basad on the effective tax rate of the Group of 20% (2020 4%) and the
tax expense recognised in the Censclidated income Statement can be reconciled as follows:

Loss for the y year before tax
Toxrate ...
Expecgd toxcredit o
Principal differences due to:
Expenseas not deductible for tax purposes

Non taxable income

Adjustments in respect of prior pearicd provisions
Adjustments in respect of prior period R&D credits
Adjustments in respect of prior period deferred tax
Difference in overseas tax rates
Movement in deferred tax rates
Deferred tax asset not recognised

the panoply /s

(3140)

- 19% 19%
T @m0 Teg7
(907} {956)

(2) (3)

(69) 121

172 451

15 -

14 39

- (80)

. 42 {83)
- (384) 96

The Panoply Heldings Pl
Company number: 10533096
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29) | (3oa)

Loss attriputable to ordinary shareholders - e e

o . AR IOV IR L AVCRRAY IR UL Y
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue, basic 63,783,475 48,162,078
Basic and diluted loss per share _ (35)p (63

Earnings per erdinary share has been colculated using the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.

There is na difference between basic loss per share and diluted loss per share os the share-based payments are
anti-dilutive.

The Group have a number of share-based payments (see note 5} and share purchase agreements (see note 8) where
the terms and conditions could offect the measurement of basic and diluted earnings per share. A number of shares
that were issued during the period are contingent on certain conditions being met and therefore these have been
axcluded from the calculation of the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in 1ssuc.

ations
During the year the Company cormpleted the acquisitions of Arthurly Ltd " Arthurly’, Difrent Ltd ‘Difrent’ and Keep T Simple
Ltd ‘KITS". A summary of the acquisitions is shown below.

2. Businss

LRI

o
W

~ 26-Feb-2]

Date of acguisition 09-Jun-20 i (_)-7;Sép*20

Consideration payable Cash & Shares  Cash & Shares  Cash & Shares

% acquired 100% 100% 100%

Acquisition related costs 43 174 233 450
Intangible assets acquired on acgquisition 454 2,081 19,932 22,967
Net assets 74 549 2,207 2,840
Total identifiable net assets acquired at fair value 528 3,130 27149 25,807
Cash 321 3,801 2,406 16,528
Cash - Deferred consideration - - 457 467
shares {including contingent deferred consideration) 953 6,239 19,271 26,463
Total fair value consideration 1274 10,040 32,144 43,458
Goodwill 746 6,910 9,995 17,651
Cash flow

Acquisition of business (net of cash ccquired) 3 3251 7,559 10,813

OB

Total cash outflow (net of cash acquired)

All aecquisition-related costs of that were not directly attributable to the issue of shares are included in administrative
expenses in the Consclidated Income Statement and in operating cash flows in the Staterment of Cash Flows.

Having jeinad the Group, Arthurly and KITS will sit within the Foundry4 CGU as part of the deep tech, engineering focused
division of the Group. The Foundryd CGU helps organisations in highly regulated sectors harness technology to solve
complex challenges, focusing on CTO/CIOs looking to enable digital transformation through the adoption of hyper scale
cloud, data analytics, Al and machine learning and automation. Difrent will form its own CGU bringing the total CGUs in
the Group to &.
B ol P p
The consolidated pro-forma ravenue and proﬁt,’(loss) for the year ended 31 March 2021, had the acquisitions occurred
on 1 April 2020 are shown below. These amounts have been ealculated using the subsidiary’s results adjusted for:

. differences in the accounting policies between the Group and the subsidiary; and

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes Lo ine Consoliddled Financia! Staterments continued

. the additional depreciation and amortisation that would have been charged, assuming the fair value odjustments
to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets had applied frorm 1 April 2020, together with the
consequential tax effects.

Arthur\\k
Difrent
KITS

Feofinems’ -zioe -
Arthurly 124 335
Difrent 543 119

BT T PRI [P

The cash paid for acguiring the companias and the cash inherited are summarised as follows:

Arthurly 32 318

Difrent 3,801 550
ks S ) L ) .. 12408 4847
Total 16528 (8715

The cash paid by the parent company only is as follows

Frnzty, EEEE

-Arthuri&/ 321
Difrent 3,801
KITs 7958

On 9 June 2020 the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Arthurly. Prior te acquisition, Arthurly had
already been working in partnership with other Group companies, winning and delivering a number of projects to
provide. The acquisition of Arthurly adds to the Group's depth of capabilities in hyperscale cloud projects, in particular
glving the Group greater strength on the Microsoft stack The code trading activities of Arthuly are in design,
development and engineering services and building software and data products, services and solutions on large cloud
vendor platforms.

Arthurly was purchased for an initial considerction of £1.3m being £1lm in shares and £0.3m payable in cash. Further
consideration may be payable based on revenue generated for the 16 months to 30 September 2021, Any such
additional consideration shall be caleulated following the agreement of the relevant revenus calculations and
publication of the Group's resulls relating to the financicl period ending on 30 September 2021 and shall be payable by
the allotment and issue of shares in The Pancply.

The number of such shares to be allotted and issued shall be calculated by dividing the deferred consideration
payable by a price per share in The Panoply which is the greater of 82 pence and the volume-weaighted average mid-

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply# Company number: 105330496
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



markat price (VWAP) over the 30 business days prior to the relevant issue date. Any shares in The Panoply which are
allotted and issued as part of the deferred censideration will be dllotted and issuad in 4 tranches at six-month intervals.

As with previcus transactions, all Panoply Shares cllotted and issued under the SPA (including the shares issued as part
of the Initiat Consideration) are subject to custornary lock-in arrangaments. £0.1m worth of the shares are subject to
claw back in the event of underperformance in accordance with the Group’s acqguisition formula The total
consideration payable is cappsd at £1.5m

IFRS 3 requires that consideration te be measured at fair value. The total consideration (before calculating its fair value)
of £1.5m is further analysed based on the timing of the consideration payments and an estimation of the contingent
consideration likely payable as at the transaction date to work out the forr valuc (naot proesent value) of the
consideration as at the transaction date using cost of debt 2 85% for calculating cash consideration and completion
shares using WACC of 14.7% The fair value of the tatat consideration is calculated to be £1.3m.

LT

Intangibles

Brand - 30 30
Customer lists - 424 424
Tangible assets

Property, plant and equipment 8 - 8
Current assets

Trade and other receivables 144 - 144
Cash and cash equivalents 318 - 318
Current liabilities

Trade and other liabilities (265) - {265)
Tax linbility (45) - {45)
Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax R - &8s (_@6_)
Netassets 160 368 528
Cash 32
Share issuad {Contingent to performance until FY2020) 300
Contingent consideration (Equity) S 853
Fair value of total consideration S T 2
Goodwill o 746 .

The trade and other receivables are all considered recoverable. The goodwill is related to ossembled workforce and will
not be deductible for tax purposes.®

©on 7 September 2020, the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Difrent, a digital transformation
consultancy focused on the Healthcare sector.

Difrent uses o partnership approach to help its clients ta achigve their digital transformation goals. The company’'s
proposition includes strategic consultancy, user centared dasign, business analysis, business change, procurement,
and front and back end development. Difrent also specialises in remote-first delivery, enabling organisations to deliver
positive outcomes entirely remotaly.

Difrent was purchased for an initial consideration of £8.8m being £4.8m shares plus £4.0m cash. The cash portion was
funded through an extension of the Group's revelving credit facility with HSBC to £7m with the balance funded from the
Group’s own cash reserves. £0.4m of the cash element of the consideration was withheld pending the finalisation of the
completion accounts, resulting in an adjustment of £0.2m in the initial consideration payable to £8.6m.

Further consideration may be payable based on revenue generated for the 12 months to 31 March 2021 and 12 months
to 31 March 2022, Further consideration will be calculated at 0 66x revenue growth above £7.6m in each pernod and
there will be a claw back of Consideration Shares if there is a revenue decline befow £7m for the 12 months te 31 March

The Panaply Heldings Pic
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021

135

)
&
h2
b=
=z
Z
C
b=
—
el
m
o
o]
el
=
g
g
Q
@]
O
C
=z
=
[2

SIS LG



126

srcicl Statements continued

2021 and £7.6m for the results to 31 March 2022 at Ix the decling, such clawback being limited to consideration shares
with a value ot £4.8m. The maximum total consideration is capped at £13.3m.

Any such additional consideration shall be caiculoted following the agreement of the relevant revenue calculations of
the Company refating to the financial pericds ending on 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022 and shall be payabls by the
allotrent and issue of shares in The Panoply. The number of any such additional shares to be allotted and issued shall
be calculated by dividing the deferred consideration payable by a price per share in The Panoply which is the greater
of £1.225 and the volume-weightad average mid-market price (VWAP) over the 30 business days prior to the relevant
issue date.

Any shares In The Panoply which are allotied and issued as part of the deferred consideration will be done so following
publication of the relevant annual report All of the Consideration Shares and any further shares issued by way of
deferred consideration shall be subject to customary lock-in for a period of 12 months following the date of their issue
{the Lock-up Period) and orderly market arrangernents for a period of 12 months following the end of the Lock-up
Period.

TRS 3 requires that consideration to be measured at fair value. The total consideration (kefore calculating its fair value)
of £10 4m is further analysed based on the timing of the consideration payments and an estimation of the contingent
consideration likely payable as ot the transaction date to work out the fair value {net present valug) of the
consicleration as at the transaction date using cost of debt of 275% for calculating cash consideration and WACC of
15.0% for calculating completion shares. The fair value of the total consideration is calculated to be £10.0m.

AL 31 March 202, the foir value forecast EBITDA for March 2021 are assessed to be higher than the fair value EBITDA
forecast calculated at completion date. This is related to the unwinding of the discount rate leading to an estimated
total consideration calculated at £10.1m. A debit of £0.1m has been recognisad in the Statement of Total Comprehensive
Income in respect of the movement an the deferred contingent consideration liclhility

Intangibles

Brand - 326 326

Customer lists - 2,255 2,255

Tangible assets

Property, plant and equipment 29 - 29

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 1,348 - 1,348

Cash and cash equivalents 550 - 550

Current liabilities

Trade and cther liabilities {835) - (835)
Taxes and social security costs (3} - {(3)
Borrowings (50} - (s0)
Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax - (480) {490)
Net assets o o o - o . Loz 208 3,130
cash ' 2801

Share issued (Contingent to performance until FY2020) 4800

Contingert consideration (Equity) . 1,439

Fair value of total consideration ] ) 10,040

Goodwill ' 8,910

The trade and other receivables are all considered recoverable. The goodwill is related to assemble workforce and the
high profitability of the acquired business. It will nat be deductible for tax purposes.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the pqnoply;j—’ Company number: 10533096
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On 26 February 2021 the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Keep IT Simple Limited 'KITS". KITS typically
delivers managed services, with market-leading expertise in service Integration and management, which is seen by
large organisations as the highest valus-added layar in the technology services stack. KITS has built a reputation in the
public sector for ransferming and running live and critical services such as payments platforms on behalf of clients
inciuding the Rural Payments Agency and the Department for Cnvironment, food and Rural Affairs ("DEFRA”).

As at the acquisition date, KITS had a streng contracted pipeline backlog of £303m to be recognised between 2021 and
2024, Given the strong pipeline, the Group agreed to pay a total consideration of £32.1m, satisfied through the payment
of £7.5m cash, £18.3m of shares and £4.9m paid from free cash on KITS's balance sheet on complstion representing
excess cash of its normalised working capital requirements and £0.4m payable post year end on findlisation of the
completion accounts

The cash portion was funded through an extension of the Group's revolving eradit facility with HSBC to £20m, of which
£6m was drawn down at completion. The balance of £15m was funded from the Group’s own cash reserves.

Up to £7.0m of shares will be subject to a clawback in the event that KITS does not achieve d revenue target of £26.8m
either during the calendar year 2022 or the calendar year 2023. Should the revenue target not be met in either of thase
years, shares with a value of up to £7.0m can be clowed back from the seller with a value equal to the amount by which
the actual revenue in the calendar year 2023 is less than the revenue target.

Intangibles

Brand - 682 682

Customer lists - 19,109 19,102

Software - 141 14

Tangible assets

Property, plant and equipment 12 - iz

Current assets

Trade and other raceivables 1,980 - 1,880

Cash and cash equivalents 4,847 - 4,847

Directors Loan 650 - 650

Current liabilities

Trade and other liabilities (1412} - (1.412)
Tax iiability {412) - (412)
Non-current liabilities

Deferedtex . __.. ... - (sa48)  (3448)
Net assets 5,665 16,484 22149

cash ) i 12,406

Share issued (Contingent to performance until FY2023} 19,271

Deferred consideration (Cash) ) 7 7 467

Fair value of total consideration ) 32144

Goodwill__ 9995

The trade and other receivables are all considered recoverable. The goodwill is related to assemble workforce and the
high profitability of the acquired business It will not be deductible for tax purposes.

2 Ay i proast yeor end

©on 30 June 2021, The Panoply Holdings plc acquired the entire issued share capital of Nudge Digital Limited, a digital
services agency which delivers strategy-led services primarily to the pharmaceutical industry, health sector and, mere
recently, to local authorities, with a particular focus areund care pathways. Nudge Digital Limited, company registration
nurmber 05805455 is incorporated in England and Wales. Its registered office is 8 Garden Close, Watford, England, WD17
3opP

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
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Notes Lo the Consolidated Financial statements continued

The consideration for the acquisition was £5.0m, satisfied through the payment of circa £17%m cash and the issue of
1,080,476 new ordinary shares in The Panoply.

The Group is currently performing a fair value review of Nudge Digital Limited's assets and ligbilities and will report these
within its next published financiol statements.

Y. GOOGWI GG IMBSITmsn:

As at1 April 2013 20,585
On acquisitions S 15,087
As at 31 March 2020 35,672
On acquisitions 17851
As ot 31 Mare 2021 53,323

Management have concluded the acquisitions in the year are separate cash generating units. In the year ended
31 March 202), there are nine cash generating units (CGUY.

Imizairnent tests for good

The value of CGUs is assessed according te the projected performance of the business. This is performed by calculating
the racoverable amount of all CGUs based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations uses a post-tax cash flow
projects based on |otest forecasts by each CGU which are extrapolated to cover a b yedr period. The forecasts used are
latest forecasts which have been adjusted for the impact of Covid-19 and the Expected impact on inflation. A risk-free
discount rate is based on WACC using the CAPM model. A risk free rate has been used to mitigate the risk of double
counting risk adjustments as these have been taken into account in the cash flows As the WACC used in the value-in-
use calculation are post-tax WACC, the implied pre-tax WACC has been subsequently calculated and disclosed below.

Each reporting peried, management comparas the resulting cash flow projections by CGU to the carrying value of
goodwill. Any material variance in this calculation results in an impairment charge to the Consclidated Income
Statement The following taile sets out the key assumptions for those CGUs that have significant goodwill allocated to
them The growth rate used varies between years, with the maxirmum growth rate shown in the table below. As well as
the following assumptions, EBITDA margin based on historic and latest farecasts have been used for each CGU and
ranges from 10% to 21%. A long term growth rate of 0 4% based on CPlas at 31 March 2021 was used to extrapolate cash
flows beyond the budget period.

c
(%

3y 13%

EdQﬁdry 4, H+ and Arthurly

FutureGov and Ameo 13% 159%
Bene Agere 13% 16%
Questers 13% 18%
Deason 10% 13%
Manifosto 10% 13%
Greenshoot Labs 10% 13%
KITS 8,985 10% 13%
Difrent o L 7 6,912 10% 13%

Based on the impairment review carried cut at the end of 31 March 262, the management believe that the projection of
cash flow from the CGUs exceeded the carrying value of the goodwill

The Panoply Heldings Plc
the panoply# Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Management concluded that the key factor for sensitivity analysis is the revenus growth rate from FY2023 onward. The
discount factor is assumead to be easily determined by way of the known risk of the market and the cost of debt which is
based on the credit facility from HSBC at 2.5% plus SONIA. If the forecasted annual revenue for each CGU falls by the
following rate shown in the tabkle below, goodwill impairment would be reguired.

Foundry 4 ' N ' 14%

Manitesto -23%
Bene Agere -3%
Questers -32%
Deeson -88%
Greenshoot Labs -68%
FutureGov and Ameo -18%
KITS ~43%
Difrent -47%

10, Intongible '
Intangible assets are nen-physical assets which have been obtained as part of an acquisition or research and
development activities, such as innovations, introduction and improvement of products and procedurss Lo improve
existing or new products. All intangible assets have an identifiable future economic benefit to the Group at the peint the
costs are incurred. Customer lists and brands are amortised over a maximum period of six years from the date of
acquisition.

T S R LI Sl T Soa_s

Cost

As atl April 2012 1,051 4,400 50 50 2 5,553
Additions - - - - 196 196
Acquired on acquisition o 526 - 4238 - - 4,764
As at 3| March 2020 1577 5638 50 50 198 10513
Additions - - - - 32 321
Acquired on acquisition 1038 B ___%?88 - 141 - 22,967
As at 31 March 2621 o 2615 30426 50 191 519 33,801
A_rr_{ortisotion - o o

As at 1 April 2019 73 263 z 1 - 339
Charge f(_)r the year o 319 1,224 10 ) 25 1,583
As at 31 March 2020 382 1487 12 1 25 1,922
Charge for the year 4439 2,031 10 9 50 2,509
As at 31 March 2021 o 801 3,518 22 15 75 4,431
Net book value

As at 31 Mareh 2021 1814 28,908 - 176 444 26,370
At 31 March 2020 1,185 7,151 38 44 173 8,591
AsatlApri2ole €78 47 48 49 2 524

The Panoply Holdings Pic
Cempany number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes Lo the Consolidaiaa Financial Staterments continued

As at1 April 2019

Additons . . o _ R 22458
As at 31 March 2020 54,952
Additions 43,626
As at 3 March 2021 ' 98578

LR NI
Impairment in the year
As at 31 March 2021

Vi

s at1April 2019 and 1 April 2020

As at 31 March 2021 98478
As at 2 March 2020 54,852
As at1 April 2020 32,499

Investments in Group undertakings are recorded ot cost, which is the fair value of the consideration paid plus the fair
value of contingent consideration determined at the acquisition date.

Al 31 March 2021, the Cempany had the following subsidiaries:

LTS

Nl

ajak nED
i

IR i IR LI
7 Savoy Court, London,

b

Digital service consultancy,

i00%

Foundry4 Limited éng\ond & Wales
{previously Not Binary WC2ZR 0EX software davelopmant,
Limitad) data and automation
Human Plus imited England & Wales 7 Savoy Court, London, IT focus in Robotic Process 100%'
WC2R OEX autemation (RPA)
iDisrupted Limited England & Wales 7 Savoy Court, London, Ceased trading in the year 100%
WC2R OEX
Manifesto Digital Limited  England & Wales 7 Savoy Court, London, Digital experiencoe agency 100%
WC2R OEX
Questers Global Group England & Wales 7 Savoy Court, London, Holding company 100%?
Limited WC2R OEX
Questers Resourcing England & Wales 7 Savoy Court, London, Provides dedicated highly skilled 100%
Limited WC2R OEX IT tearms from its technology
centra in Sofig, Bulgaria, a leading
European talent pool, 1o businesses
located in Europe and worldwide
Arthurly Limited England & Wales 7 Savoy Court, London, Capabilities in hyparscale 100%
WCZR OEX cloud projects
Difrent Limited England & Wales 7 Savoy Court, London, Digital transformation 100%
WC2R OEX consultancy
Keep IT Simple Limited England & Wales 7 Savay Court, London, Delivers managed services 100%
WC2R 0EX with expertise in service
integration & managerment
Questers Bulgaria ECOD  Bulganc 50fia, 17 H Ibsen Str, .S European talent pool, to businesses 100%

BG176406553

Bulgaria, a leading European talent
and worldwide

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096

the panoply/
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



TGt

Deescn Group Holdings
Limited

Deeson Group Limited
Greenshoot Labs Limited

Bene Agere Norden AS

FutureGov Limited

Us-Creates Limited

Armeo Professicnal
Services Limited

FutureGov Australia Pty
Lirmited

x

Cost of assets
A1 April 2019
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Additions
Disposals

At 31March 2020

Depreciation

Englond
Wales
England & Wales

England & Wales
Norway

England & Wales
England & Wales

England & Wales

Australia

ni G equipiash

Accumulated depreciation b/t

Charge for the year
Disposal
AtSIMarch 2020
Net book value B
AT 31 March 2020
AL 31 March 2019

b Not Binary Lirmated owns 100% of Hurman Plus imited

RS R R A € L

7 Sc:vdy Cgurt, London, i
WC2R OEX

7 Savoy Court, London,
WC2R 0EX

7 Savoy Court, London,
WCZR OFX,

Postboks 573

Sentrum G105 Oslo

Runway East
(second Floor)

23 St Thomas Street,
London, 581 8RG

Runway East
{Second Floor)

20 St. Thomas Street,
Loendon, SEl €RG

Runway East
(second Floor}

20 St. Thomas Street,
London, SE1 SRGL

Level 4, 29 Kiora Road,
Miranda NSW 2228

Holding company 100%
Digital experience agency 100%*
IT develocpment mainly in 100%
conversational interfaces and Al
Strategic and management 100%
digital transformation
Digital and service design 100%*
consultancy
Dormant 100%
Strategic and management 100%
consultancy focusing on digital
transformation
Dormant 100%
90 50 185 326
30 37 - a7
n4 17 - 131
(39) - - (34)
200 L S ABg
14 8 23 45
70 16 68 154
8 24 9 19
ne 80 94 280
76 42 162 280

2 Questers Globol Group Lirmiled fully owrr Questars Rosourcing bmtted, Quasters Techpark and Questears Bulgana

2 Docsen Croug Holdings Lirnited ovns 100% of Deeson Group Limited
A FuturcGow bimitod owns 1003 of FulureGov Ausiraka Py Limnited ond US Croales Limited

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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[ YT N . .
SLatsiments continued

Cost of assets
At 1 April 2020 200 04 185 489
Acquisition of subsidiaries 37 12 - 49
Additions 133 4 - 137
Disposals ] o S {73) ) (84)

At3IMarchoozt 297 109 185 53

Depteciation

Accumulated depreciation byf 84 24 91 199
Charge for the year 94 13 68 175
Disposal B (8a) a - (75)
ALdIMarch 2021 e e L L 1. N3

Net book value
At 31 March 2021 183 83 26 292

MgiMaen2020 ... .. 18 8 e 2%

Cost of assets
A1 April 2019 - -
Additions i 1
ASIMarch2020 T R )

Depreciation

Accumulated depraciation bff - -
Charge for the year ) ) - -
&1 3] March 2020 o -
Net book value N - o )

AL 31 Morch 2020 _ ) 1 1
ALSIMech209
Tt L _0
Gost of assets

AL April 2020 1 1

Additions ) I - § .8 4
AL 3T March 2021 - - . I IR .5

Depreciation
Accumulated depreciation bff - -
Charge for the year : . B .

ALBIMarch 2021 L ]

Net book value
At 3 March 2021 _ ) 4 a4
AtSIMarch 2020 L L I B B

The Panoply Heldings Ple
the panoply#/ Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



3. Leq
The Group leases various offices and office equiprment. Rental contracts vary from rolling 3 month contracts to fixed
contracts up to several years.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease compaenents. The Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate
far which the Groug is @ lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain ¢ wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Lease assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannct be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being
the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
te the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determina the incremental barrowing rate, the Group uses recent third-party financing received by the individua
lessee as a starting peint, adjusted to reflect changss in financing conditions since third party financing was received.

- B T R 1 PR SN
Right-of-use assets relates to property rentals where the lease term is greater than 12 months in duration. Items that do
not meet the criteria of a nght-of-use assct has been recorded in the income statement and is summarised below.

The Statement of Financial Position shows the following amounts relating to leases’

_445

Current 336 608
Non-current - 83 390
o S - 389 9998
Within ons year 341 614
In more than one year but less than two years 74 345
In more than twe years but less than three years - 73

o o a5 1032
Effect of discounting (286) (33)
Lease liability 389 S99

The Panoply Haldings Pic
Company number: 10533098
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes o the Consolidated Financial Stalements continued

| SR g YRR B B4

Cost of assé?s

1 April 2020 1,628 1628

addidons e, B0 8O

At 31 March 2021 1,688 1,688

Depreciation

1 April 2020 583 583

Charge for the year 660 660

At3IMarch 2021 e e oo M2as 1243

Net book value

AL 21 March 202) ) B ) , 445 445

The income statement shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Interest on lease liabilities T S 24 a2

Expenses relates to short term laases 34] 317

Expenses relating Lo leases of low-value assets, excluding shor term leases of low-valus assets 1 1
e o UV S Fee 380

R SR U AL 1 . LS U et

Tetaicashoutflowforloases L. 890 628

Trade onti cihor re

Trade receivaples - a )

Prepayments

Cther receivables B _ 58l

Trade and otherreceivables L _1aoi4 8590

Trade receivables at the reporting date cemprise amounts receivable from the provision of the Group's products and
services.

The average credit pericd taken on the provision of these services is 93 days {2020: 87 days).
The breakdown of the trade receivables by currency is explained under financial instrument section.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally have a 30 te 80 day payment term. The age of trade
receivables befare impairment is as follows:

The Panoply Holdings Pl
the panoply#/ Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Not yet due 5694
Past due 1-30 days 1,800
Past due 31-60 days 74
Past due B1-20 days 96
Fast due 91-120 days (23)
Past due 121+ days 3
Trade receivobles before impairment 1B
Provision for bad debt {82)
Trade receivables as at March 12,863 7734

Loss rates are calculated based on actual credit losses over the past three years and adjusted to reflect differences
between the historical credit losses and the Group's view of the economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables The Group's provision for the loss allowance is £195k (2020 £82k}

Other receivables 7 - 208 183
Trade and other receivables 298 83

15, Cashond cash eguiva

BN T Lo
Cash at bank and in hand T, - = 4,614
Cash balances are held with a small number of counterparties, with high credit rating. Borrowings were taken out
during the year. These are discussed in note 17.

M TENTR
o

Cos_,h at bank c_mc_lih- hé nd-

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of these assets s a reasonable approximation of their fair value The
credit risk on liguid funds is limited because the counterparty is a bank with a high credit rating

16, Trode ond other poayablos
1

TCurrant

Trade poyables
Accruals and other payables
Trade and other payables

i o i

Trade payables
Accruals and other payables

Trade and other payables

17. Borrowings

The Group entered into o three year £5m revolving crodit facility {"RCF") with HSBC UK Bank Ple ("HSBC”} on 11 June 2018
The RCF was amended to £7m in Septemiber 2020 and £2m was drown down for the acquisition of Bifrent. In February
2021, the RCF was further extended to £20m and £6m was drawn-down for the acquisition of Keep IT Simple. Of the total
facility, £13m has been drawn down and £7m remains undrawn. Within the £20m facility The Group can draw-down up
to £6m fer working capital purposes with the remainder set aside for acquisitions.

Interest is payable on a monthly basis at an average margin of 2.5% plus SONIA.

The Panaply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021

145

4 1 SINNCDOV 3 LdOd3d TVNNNY I20T

o
;
i

G
)
s
o
<

ok



146

Notes to ihe Consolidaied Financial Statements continued

The RCF reaches maturity in June 2023

HSBC has taken security over The Panoply and all of the Group's subsidiaries and their assets in connection with the RCF
Facility. The RCF Facllity contains customary terms and covenants, including financial covenants.

Under the terms of the RCF facllity, the Group i1s required to comply with the foliowing financial covenants:
the adjusted leverage (based on net debt over adjusted EBITDA) should be less than 175 and
. the interest cover taken as adjusted EBITDA over net finance costs must be more than 4.
Adjusted EBITDA is taken on a proforma basis, assuming that all companies have been part of the Group for 12 months.

The Group has complied with these covenants throughout the reporting period. As at 31 March 2021, the adjusted
leverage was 0.7 and the interest cover was 3814

it s 20
Bank icans
Total secured borrowings

I BRI

Credit cards & unsecured borrowings R o o s5 29
Total unsecured borrowings i ) 55 28
Tota! borrowings 13,055 5,029
Bank loans - o L 13,000 5,000
Total secured borrowings o 13,000 5,000
Total borrowings o o B o L _1_3,0097”” 5000

i A 1 I s ral Lo coniia it

All revenue relates to contracts with customers. The Group have a number of contracts where it receives payments
from customers based on a billing schedule. Revenue recognised in excess of involces raised 1s included within contract
asset. Whare amounts have been invoiced in excess of revenue recognised, the excess is included within contract
liability.

O

1413

Current contract asset

Loss allowance - ) - ) -
Total contract asset ) B ] 1144 1,413
Contract liability ) B 1,841 1,454
Total contract liakity L84l 1454

Contract assets have decreased despite the significant incredase in revenue as there has been a focus on invoicing
clients on a timely basis for work performed

Contract liabilities have increase due to overall contract activity where customers are paying in advance for
performance cbligaticns that have yet to be satishied.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply/ Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Povanuds

oanlga imrsin
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities and how much relates to performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior year:

Revenue recognisad that was included in the contract liakility taken over on acquisition

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning
of the period 1,454 368

long-is
The majority customer contracts for the Group as at 31 March 2020 are 12 months or less. Long term contracts with
unsatisfied perfermance obligations as at 31 March 2021 is £nil {2020: £nil),

TICONLUTis

5 opnint sociol seoclvity cost

[E3]

T LI

Corporation tax 1,439

VAT 2,423

Other taxes and social security costs ) N 1,464

Total ) 5,326

fon T D Lol PR

Corporation tax ' ' 22 197
VAT s g
Total o 2 206

C e

VAT

Other taxes and social security costs B 33
Total 7 53 157

The Panoply Heldings Plc
Company humber: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Siatements continued

I

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

) 011 %

The consideration payment of the acquired businesses includes deferred consideration, in the form of equity payment,
contingent upon certain results being achieved over relevant periods.

wifue 376y

Opening fair value at 1 Apri 16,545 10,849

Initial fair value for deferred contingent consideration on acquisitions in the year 2,093 2172
Settlernent of deferred consideration {shares) (n,025) {240}
Settlement of deferred consideration {cash) {121} -
Movement on fair value contingent consideration S 4,260 3764
Fair value at 31 March S ) 1,752 16,545
Deferred consideration measured at amertised cost 138 713
Deferred consideration on acguisitions in the year 467 -
Acquired as part of business combination - 513
Settlement in the year {cash) (izg)  {1088)
Amortised cost at 3 March B 467 138
Total 12,219 15,683

Deferred and centingent consideration as at 31 March:

Deferred and contingent consideration due less than one year 8,478 10,685
Deferred and contingent consideration dug more than one year 3741 5998
2s at 31 March - I 12,219 16,6823
| S T
Fair value at Apri 16,545 10,848
Initial fair value for deferred contingent consideration on acquisitions in the year 2,093 2072
Settlement of deferred consideration {shares) (n,025) {240)
Settlement of deferred consideration {cash) (121) -
Moverment on farr value contingent consideration 4,260 3,764
Fairvalue ot 31 March 1,752 16,545
Deferred consideration measured at amortised cost - 73
Deferred consideration on acquisitions in the year 467 -
settlement intheysar - S e v ]
Amortised cost at 31 March 467 -
Total 4 S 1229 16,545

Deferred and contingent consideration as at 31 March:

Deferred and contingent considaration due less than one year 8,478 10547
Deferred and contingent consideration due more than one year 3,74 5,098
As at 31 March 129 16,545

The contingent consideration more than one year has a range of years due from 1 Aprii 2022 to 30 September 2023.

The fair value movement of £4.3m in the year resulted from the unwinding of the discount and due to changss in the
value of contingent consideration based on latest forecasts and amendments to SPAs. The following SPA changes were
macle in the year:

FLithFr e goans

The second deferred carn-out consideration was agreed between the FutureGov scllers and the Group at an armount
equal ta a £1,249,290 in respect of the 12 month period ending on 31 March 2021,

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply/ Cempany number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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The first deferred earn-out consideration was agreed between the Ameo sellers and the Group at an amount equal to
£418,480 in respact of the 17 moenth pariod ending on 31 March 2021 and £889,710 In respect of the 12 month period
ending on 31 March 2022.

o

5s

Greonshsoe
The parties to the GSL SPA have agreed that the GSL sellers will recerve deferred sarn-out consideration equal to ¢ fixed
amount of £500,000 in respect of the 12 month period ending on 31 March 2020 {ths “First GSL Reference Period”), in
substitution for an amount that would have been previously determined by a calculation predominantly based on GSUs
EBITDA performance for the First GSL Reference Period. This is to reflect the value of GSUs revenue growth during the
period

The calculation far the amount of deferred earn-out consideration in respect of the 12 month period ending on 31 March
202 (the "Second GSL Refarence Pariad”) will remain based on the financial performance of GSLfor the Second GSL
Reference Pericd. In addition, the GSL defarred earn-out consideration remains payable by the Panoply by the Tssue of
the ralevont number of Panoply Shares {calcutated in accordance with the GSL SPA) in ona tranche following the
publication of the Panoply's accounts for the First and Second GSL Reference Period {as applicable).

1. Shore caplicl and resarves
Share capital and reserves comprise of the following categones:
Share capital The nominal value of shares inissue

Share premium: The excess of the value received for shares issued over their nominat value less transaction costs
and amounts used to fund bonus issues.

. Merger reserve - Under section 812 of the Companies Act 2006, where a company issues equity shares in
consideration for sharas in ancther company and secures at least 90% eguity helding in enother company, then
the excess consideration cver the nominal value of the shares issued should be recorded as a merger relief
reserve. The Group has previcusly recognised the excess consideration arising on the consideration {cosh and
shargs) within the share premium reserve.

The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and Consclidated Statement of Changos in Equity have been
restated to reclassify the excess consideration to the merger relief reserve from the share premium reserve. This
reclassification has no impact on the Consolidated Income Statement or retained earnings in the current or
pravious years.

. Capitdl redemption reserve. The nominal value of shares cancelled,

Foreign exchange reserve: Cumulative gains or losses recognised on retranslation of overseas operations.

share-based payment reserve: The cumulative charge recognised under international financial repaorting
standards less amounts exercised.

. Retained aarnings: Cumulative gains or losses not recognised elsewhere, less amounts distributed to
shareholders. In the current year, an interim dividend of £138k was made by the Company. The Company had
sufficient reserves to make the dividend, however the Company did not file intetim accounts with Companies
House to dernonstrate the Company had sufficient reservas which is a requirerment per The Companies Act 2006
section 836 and 838. The Company are resolving this issue by filing the intarim accounts as at the 30 September
2020 and through resolutions to be agreed ot the AGM.

ol B

Beg\'nnir-';g of year

Issued during year ) 128
Shares issued and fully paid . _ S 55

pel b e . - - - - . L
AL 31 March 80428360 55052257

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021
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Noles 1o the Consolid

[amat

o

15,106 21,202

ALT April 2019 42,295 473

Acquisition of subsidiaries 12,4686 125 - 10,461 10,588
Settlement of contingent consideration 4t 3 - 237 240
As at 31 March 2020 55,062 B51 5673 25,804 32,028
Acquisition of subsidiaries 14,562 146 - 24,225 2437
Settlement of contingent consideration 10,805 107 - 10,897 noc4
Shares issued to SIP scheme S 9 - s = 18
As at 31 March 2021 80,428 804 569 60,926 67,421

The share price with refarence te the acquisitions in the year ranged from 82.0p to 187.50.

i

As at 1 april 1,623 925

Deferred tax arising from acquisition of subsidiaries 3,964 903
Change in deferred tax rate - 77
Moverment in income statement for the year S {a54) (282)
As at 31 March 5,133 1622

The Government had announced an increase in corparation tax rate to 25%. As at the balance sheet date, this had not
been enacted and therefore has not beean reflected in current year's trading results

As at 1 April o - 14

Deferred tax arising on aeguisition of subsidianes - -
Movement in income statement for the year 15 R
As at 31 March o 15 -
Tosloazsc, N i,-;—‘,t
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax dsset has been réc;-(_:'é_r;i_séd . .0 el
Potential tax benefit available for offset against future profits in the jurisdiction in which

theloss arises. e e . 131

2%, igim ling party and

- iy fronsas
In the opinion of the Directors there is no ultimate controlling party. Al other transactions and balances with related
parties, which are presented for the Group and the Company, are detailed below.

clinng with sl

Transactions with subsidigries comprise sale and purchase of services in the ordinary course of business at normat
commiercial terms. Total income accrued in the Company as a result of management fee was £1413k (2020: £1,231k).
During the year the Company received £8,358k {2020 £1678k) dividends from its subsidiaries (refer to Company
statement of Cash Flow), There was alse purchases totalling £134k (2020: £169K). Intercempany loons to and from
subsidiaries for the year are noted in the table on the next page

The Panoply Holdings Plc
the panoply/’ Company number: 10533096
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Balances outstanding at 31 March 2021 and 2020 in respect of the transactions between Company and its subsidiaries
are shown below:

[ N PPN SRR I R A P R B P I S 51 Lol Tt

Other receivables from Group undertakings

797 760
Intercompany loans to Group undsrtakings® 104 577
Intercompany leans from Group undertakings B B (5.040) (3,227
Total ) {(4139) {1.890)

Other receivables from Group undertakings relates to management fees due to the Company from the subsidiaries. As
at 31 March 202, the balance was ELIBOK {2020: £760k), with o provision of £353k {2020: £nil).

*Intercompany loans to Group undertakings are at the market rate of 3% and are repayabkle on demand. As at 31 March
202, the balance was £1,086k (2020, £1,027k} with a provision of £882k (2020: £450K).

In addition, the Company owed £2k {2020 £2k) to subsidiaries which is included within the trade payables.

The expected credit loss on intercompany receivables and foans are £1,335k based on actual credit losses over the past
three years and adjusted to reflect differences between the historical credit losses and the Company’s view of the
economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables. The Company’s provision for the loss allowance as at

31 March 2021 was £1,335k (2020 £450k).

O PR
Transactions with subsiclaries comprise sale and purchase of services in the crdinary course of business at normal
commercial terms. Total intercompany sales excluding to parent Company were £374k (2020: £853k).

Ticintactions with Dirccw: s

Details of Directors' interasts in the Company's shares, service contracts and remuneration are set out in the report of
the Board to the members on Remuneration report on pagoes 92 and 932

The director’s ican provided to Neat Gandhi of £50k in the year ending 31 March 2018 from its subsidiary, Questers
Rescurcing Limited remains outstanding as at 31 March 2021 This is interest free and payable on demand.

In December 2018, the Group acguired Not Binary Limited. Neal Gandhi and Oliver Rigby owned shares in Not Binary
Limited totalling 5 per cent and 1 per cent respectively. The fair value of deferred contingent censideration shares due to
the directors is valued at £102k, which relates to consideration due less than cne year

In Decernber 2018, the Group acquired Questers Global Group Limited. Neal Gandhi owned shares in Questers Global
Group Limited totalling 585 per cent. The fair valua of deferred contingent consideration shates due to him is valued at
£1,341k {£873k being deferred consideration less than one year and £368k due from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023).

24 Finong vmmionis

In common with other businesses, the Group is exposed to risks that arise from its use of financial instruments. This note
describes the Group's cbjectives, policies and precesses for managing those risks and the methods used to measure
them. The significant accounting policies regarding financial instruments are disclosed in Note 2.

nnirumonis

The principal financial nstruments used by the Group, from which financial instrument risk arises, are as follows
Trade and other receivables
. Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables

. Contract Assets
. Deforred and contingent considoration
. Lease liabilities

Borrowings

The Panoply Heldings Pic
Company number: 10533096
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cial Statements continued

1

Notes 1o the Consolidated Fir

Finoncicl e g ol liabilities o seryartiscd gost
The book values of the tinancial instruments {excluding equity shares) used by the Group, from which financial risk
arises, are as foliows (note prepayments and other receivables are not financial assets under IFRS € but are disclosed

for ease of recanciliation):

T

iTnels assetE ob oot tssa o et e [

Trads receivables T 12,963 7,734

Prepayments 470 335
Other receivables 581 521
Contract assets 1,144 1,413
Cash and cash equivalents .57 4614
As at 31 March S T T 20,892 14,617

Financial assets at amortised cost include the following debt investments which is included within 'Other raceivables”:

50
50

Loans to related parties
As at 31 March

*The fair value of financial assets carried at amortised cost approximates to the carrying amounts because of the short
maturity of these instruments.

prresra wlhll R STEY T e £

Trade payables o 3,996

Other payables 263
Accruals 1,422
Borrowings 55
Deferred and contingent consideration 467
Lease liabilities 336
As at 31 March - ~ 6,539

[

Borrow-ings B S 13,000
Lease liabilities ) - o 53 N
AsatsiMarch 13053 . 5390

At g Company level, the principal financial instruments used fram which financial instrument risk arises, are as follows:

. Intercompany loans and other receivables due from Group undertakings
- Cash and cash equivalents

. Trade and other payables

. Deferred and contingent consideration

. Borrowings

. Intercompany lcans due to Group undertakings

VIS T b AL R S PR RN P

Cther receivables ) 183
Cther receivables from Group undertakings 760
Intercempany loans to Group undertakings* 877
Cash and cash equivalents 147
As Gt 31 Mareh o 1867

The Panoply Holdings Ple
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*The fair value of financial assets carried at amortised cost approximates to the carrying amounts because of the short
maturity of these instruments.

Trade payatles
Accruals and other payables

Deferred consideration

Amounts owed Lo Group undertakings

As at 3 Mcxrcﬁ

neasdremsnd

rinancial instruments in the category “fair value through profit or loss” are measured in the Consclidated Statement of
Financial Position at fair value Fair values of financial instruments are recognised and measured of measurements are
disclosed by leve! of the following fair value measurement higrarchy:

- Lovel 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets or liobilities

- Level 2 — Inputs other than queted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for assets or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly {that is, derived from prices}

Level 3 — Inputs for asset or liability that are not based on chservable market data (that is unobservable inputs)

The fellowing table presents the Group’s and Company's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at
31 March 2021

S SINNODOV 9 L0438 TVNNNY IZ0T

LS R L T L)

Contingent consideration (see below) . - T

| N AT N R

Opening balonce - 7 B . o 1-6-,‘545 o

Additions 2,092 272 DS
Settlernents (n,145%) (240)

Fair value movement deferred contingent consideration {reflected in Consolidated

_income Statement) 4260 3,764
Deferred contingsnt Coﬂsigjera-tion {see Note 20) 7 752 16,545

The Group finances its activities through equity and bank financing. No speculative treasury transactions are
undertaken, and no derivative contracts were entered into. Financial assets and liabilities include those assets and
liabilities of a financial nature, narmely cash and borrowings. The Group is axposed to a variety of financial risks arising
from its operating activities, which are monitored by the Directors and are reported in the Risk and Risk Management
saction on pages 75to 77.

e Y -J.J-“ .; o

The Group seeks to manage financial risk by ensuring sufficient liquidity is available to meet foreseeable needs and to
invest cash assets safely and profitably The Group palicy throughout the yea- has been to ensdre continuity of funding
by a combination available pank facility and the issue of equity. The following table shows the contractual maturities of
financial liabilities measured at armortised cost.

The Panoply Holdings Pl
Campany number: 10533096
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Jotes o the Consolicdated Financidl Statements continued

Trodé and othor

payabies (Note 18) 5,681 - - - 5681 561 - - - 561
Borrowings (Note 17} 554 13,48 - {647) 13,055 499 13148 - (647) 13,000
Deferred consideration

(Note 20) 457 - - - 487 - - - - -
Lease labilities

(Note 13) 34 74 - {26) 389 - - - - -
Amount owed to Group

undertakings (Note 23) - - - - - 5,040 - - - 5,040

L1043 13,222 . _(673)19592 B0 13148 - (647) 18,80

T;;de GF]CI other-

payables 4343 - - - 4,343 484 - - - 494
Borrowings (MNote 17) 173 44 5,048 (336) 5,029 144 144 5048 {338) 5,000
Deferred consideration

{Note 20) 138 - - - 138 - - - - -
Lecse liabilities

{Notc 13} gl4 345 73 (33) 999 - - - - -
Armount cwed to Group
undertatings (Nete23) - - _ - - - 320 - oo 327

5,268 489 5321 (369) 10,509 3865 144 5048 (3368) 872

The macro economic iImpact of the Covid-19 pandemic is uncertain, and continues to evalve, with potential disruption
to financial markets including to currencies, interest rates, borrowing costs and the availability of debt financing.

However, the Group's tinancial risk management strategies ssek to reduce our potential exposure in relation to these
risks.

The Group has a combined cash and cosh equivalent of £5.7m, previding significant headroom over short term liquidity
requirernents.

The Group's operating activities result in customer credit risk, for which prowvisions for expected credit losses are
recognised. This customer related credit risk is generally short term in duration and while Covid-19 impacts on our
customers it had no material impact on credit loss provisioning at 31 March 2021 and remains a risk in relation to this
matter for the year ending 31 March 2022

The Group's policy on capital structure is to maintain a level of gross cash avdilable, which the Board considers lo be
adequate to fund a range of potential EBITDA movements, taken fram a series of business projections and scenarios.
Based on these business projections which takes inte account the impact of Covid-19 the Board believes it has
sufficient cash resources gt its disposal to pursue its chosen strategy of maximising sharcholdor returns frorm its
customer base.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that trading entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns,
while maximising the returns to shareholders through the organisation of cash and equity balances. The capital
structure of the Group consists of cash at bank and in hand and equity attributeble to equity holders of the parent,

The Panoply Holdings Plc
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comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity on page 1.

The Directors seek to promote recurring revenuss to a wide range of business customers, Lo reduce the risks associated
with fluctuations in the UK economy and to increase the long-term value to customers and shareholders.

The declaration and paymont by tho Group of any future dividends on the Ordinary Shares and the amount will depend
on the results of the Group's operations, its financial condition, cash reguirements, future prospects, profits available for
distribution and other facters deemed to be relevant at the time. In order to mointain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of any pay-outs to the sharsheldsrs, return capital to the shareholders, issue new shares
and make borrowings or scil assets to reduce debt.

The Group's policy is to monitor trade and other receivailes and aveid significant concentrations of credit risk. The
principal credit risk arises from trade receivables. Aged receivables reports are reviewed monthly as a minimum. The
credit control function follows a policy of sending reminder letters that start ones an invoice is over 30 days overdue.
These culminate in < legal letter wath the threat of legal action. In a imited number of cases, legal action has baen
pursued. An aged analysis of receivables is shown in Note 14 to the finoncial statements.

In Iine with IFRS 9, the Group assasses the credit risk balances at each reporting date, to assess whather the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. The simplified approach has been applied
to trade debtors to measure the loss allowance at an amount equal (o the lifetime expectad credit loss (ECL) at initial
recognition and throughaut its life. The credit risk is assessed by reviewing the contract income amount compared to
the amount subsequently recovered. The Group dosas not identify specific concentrations of credit risk with regards to
trade and other receivakles, as the amounts recognised represent a large number of receivables from various
customers, including some government autnorities. Assessment of the average expected credit loss across the Croup is
deemed to b low over a period of 38 months to 31 March 2021 with the exception of Bene Agere. The bad debt provision
as at 31 March 2021 was assessed to be £195k (2020: £82k). Trade receivables are stated net of an impairmenit for
estimated irecoverable amounts to £13 0m {2020: £7.7m). This impairment has been determined by reference to known
issues. The Group was not adversely affected by the impact of Covid-19 on the expected credit loss assessment.

Write-offs are made whean the rrecoverable amount becomes certain. During the year £108k of bad debt was written off
against the provision which primarily relates 1o Bene Agere. The Group’'s main risk refates to trade receivables which are
stated net of the provisions above. No cellateral is held as security against these debtors and the carrying value
represents the fair value.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 menths before 3t March 2027
and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this perod. The historical logs rates cre adjusted to
reflect current and forward- locking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to
settle tha receivables. The group has identified that the GDP and the unemployment rate of the countries in which it
sells its goods and services are the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on
expected changes in these factors.

The Group's main foreign currency risk is the short-term risk associated with accounts receivable and payable
dencminated in currencies that are not the subsidianies functional currency. The risk arises on the difference in the
exchange rate between the time invoices are raisedfreceived and the time invoices are settled/paid For sales
denominated in foreign currencias the Group will try to ensure that the purchases associated with the sale will be in the
sarme currency. Most monetary assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated in pound sterling except for the
following currency in the table bsiow, and which are included in the financial statements at the steriing value based on
the exchange rate ruling at the Statement of Financial Position date

Sensitivity analysis in foreign exchange rates show an increase or decrease by 10% with all other variables held
constant, the net assets attributable to shareholders would increase or decrease by approximately £234k (2020: £181k).

The maximum exposure to foreign currency risk for the Group trade receivables at the reporting date was:

248

Norwegidan Krone (NOK)

Eurcpean Union currency (EUR) 181
United States of America Dollar (USD} . IR L LA
As at 31 March 469

The Panoply Holdings Plc
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Notes o the Consolidated Financial Staterments continued

P

The maximum exposure to foreign currency risk for Group cash and cash equivalent at the reporting date by was:

European Union currency (EUR)- ) 127 150

Norwegian Krone (NOK) 352 475
Australian Dollar (AUD} 2 -
Bulgarian Lev (BGN) 43 -
Serkian Dinar (RSD) - 58
United States of America Dollar {ust) o _ 186 13
As at 3 March - - - e9%0 698

NOK 265 441
BGN. e L L
As at 31 March 7 _ 348 646

In the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has an RCF facility balance of £13m denominated in GBP. The facility has
been taken out on a floating rate basis {SONIA) for a period of 3 years up to June 2023 Interest rate sk arises on the
change in SONIA which affects the interest payable by the Group

Sensitivity analysis in interest rates show that with an increase in 100 basis points, with all other variables held constant,
the net assets attributable to shareholders would increase or decrease by approximately £255k Muanagement
periodically reviews the interest rates with lenders to manage the interest rate risk associated with the loans.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
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o cctivities

1
¢

Non-cash investing and financing activities disclosed in other notes are:

Partial settlsment of o business combination through the issue of shares {see note 8)

. Acquisition of right-of-use assets (see note 13)

for acquisitions completed in the year.

Net {debt)/cash at | April 2019 - = asoy (ison S
New lsases - (127) (127) - -
New borrowings (5,000} - (5,000} - =
Loans acguired on acquisition (507} - {(507) - E
Cash flows 507 629 1138 (1.038) 0o A
Net (debt)fcash as at 31 March 2020 (5,000) (989) (5,999) 4614 (1385) O
New borrowings (8,000) - (8,000) - (8,000) 3
Loans acquirad an acquisitions (55} - (58) - {55) z
Gash flows - 610 610 1120 1730 8
et (debt}/cash at 31 March 2021 (13,055) (3sg)  (13.444) 5,734 (zno) &
Met cash increase in the year due to an increasa in trading and cash acquired on acquisition offset by a cash outflow 5

- S ! ! e 1ot ;E;;
St ) R £ ERNN L f 1
Net cash ot | April 2012 - - - 2762 2,762 ;,_;
New borrowings {5,000) (1000} (6,000} - (6,000) ,|
New borrowings — non cash items (2,227} (2,227) - (2,227} ':“
Cash flows S T T oo fesm) o (el 2
Net (debt)/cash as at 31 March 2020 (5,000) (3,227) (8,227} 147 (so80)
New borrowings {8,000) - (8,000) - (8,000)
New borrowings - non cash items (1813) (1813} - {1,813)
Cash flows - - - 197 197
Nat (dlebt)/cash at 31 March 202! _ (13000)  (5040)  (18,040) 344 (17,696)

Net cash increase in the year due to increase borrowings offset by a cash cutflow for acguisitions completed in the
year.

sifinoni

Undler saction B12 of the Companies Act 2006, where a company issues equity shares in consideration for shares in
another company and secures at lsast 80% equity holding in another company, then the excess consideration over the
nominal value of the shares issued should not be recorded within the share premium reserve.

The Group has previously recognised the excess consideration arising on the consideration (cash and shares) within
the share premium reserve. The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity have been restated to reclissify the excess consideration to the merger reserve from the share premium
resarve, This reclassification has no impact on the Consolidated Income Staterment of retained earnings in the current
or previous years. The only impact to the Staternent of Financial Position is displayed in the Statement of Changes of
Equity and therefore no Statermeant of Financial Position has been presented as at 31 March 2019

The Panoply Holdings Plc
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lotes Lo the Consolidated Financic

28 Post-bolonce sheet ovents

On 30 June 202, The Panoply Holdings plc acquired the entire issued share capital of Nudge Digital Limited, a digital
sarvices agency which delivers strategy-led services primarily to the pharmaceutical industry, health sector and, more
recently, to local authorities, with a particular fecus around care pathways. Nudge Digital Limited, company registration
number 05805455 is incorporated in England and Wales, Its registered office is 8 Garden Close, Watford, England,

WDi17 3DP

The consideration for the acguisition was £5.0m, satisfied through the payment of circa £175m cash and the issue of
1,090,476 new ordinary shares in The Panaply.

The Group 1s currently performing a fair value review of Nudge Digital Limited's assets and liabilities and will report these
within its next published financial statemeants.

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096

the panoply
Financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021



Directors, Secretary and Advi
tirootoars
Mark Smith

Non-Executive Chairman

Chris Sweetland
Non-Executive Director

Isabel Kelly
Nan-Executive Director

Rachel Neaman
Non-Executiva Director

Neal Gandhi
Chief Executive Officer

Oliver Rigby
Chief Financial Officer

SO

reiaiy

QOliver Rigby
Oorn
10533096

Rt

¥ e

fregisterss o
7 Savoy Court,
London WCG2R OEX

Hominotos aovis
stifel Nicolaus Europe Ltd
150 Cheapside,

7th Figor,

Landon EC2V 6ET

Nt by ok

Dowgate Capital Limited
15 Feltter Lang,
London EC4A 1BW

Harbottle & Lewis LLP
14 Hanower Square,
London WIS THP

N

AT R
) .r o

Nexia Smith & Williamson

25 Moorgate,
London ECZR 6AY

HSBC UK Bank plc
4th Floor,

3 Temple GQuay,
Bristol BS1 6DZ

Handelsbanken
Staines Upon Thames Branch,
Staines upon Thameas TWIS 3BA

Rogistiars
Neville Registrars
Neville House,

Steelpark Road,
Halesowen B62 8HD

The Panoply Holdings Plc
Company number: 10533096
Financial statemenis for year ended 31 March 2021

159

C 1 SLNNODOV %8 1HO43 TYNNNY 1202




